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INTRODUCTION FROM THE CHAIR 

This is my second annual report as the Chair of St Helens CCG and the last year has been one of 
challenges for the NHS and for the local authority, striving to deliver excellent and compassionate 
care as partners facing increased demand for services whilst resources are stretched. I have seen 
at first hand health and social care at the front line serving our patients and public across St Helens. 
Councillor Marlene Quinn took over as the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board last year and 
she and I together, have made a number of visits to front line services to see for ourselves how 
patients and carers, paid and unpaid,  are supporting our most vulnerable citizens. I pay tribute to 
those who tirelessly, and for little monetary reward, go the extra mile for people in need of care and 
support. 
 
Mike Palin, the Chief Executive of the Local Authority, has been restructuring his senior team and 
we welcome the new role that Mike Wyatt has now been given as the Strategic Director for People 
Services. Our partnership with the Council is strong and robust and together we are more effective  
in addressing the challenges we face.  
 
Dr Omar Shaikh stood down this year as Deputy Chair and I want to express my thanks to him for 
all he has done in that role. We welcome Dr Mike Ejuoneatse as the new Deputy Chair and already 
he has stepped up to the plate and is making a difference in his role. 
 
It was with much sadness that we said farewell to Sarah Johnson who regrettably left the CCG last 
autumn.  Sarah was one of the key drivers who helped set up the CCG and she became the Deputy 
Chief Executive. We thank her for all that she did and send our very best wishes to her for her 
future. 
 
The Governing Body has faced and continues to face financial challenges and we have worked with 
our patient and public engagement groups, our member practices and our provider Trusts to try and 
ensure that we can manage demand in the most effective way for patients within the finances that 
are available to us. That joint work will and must continue going forward to get the best results we 
can with the money that we have available.  Despite the concerted efforts of the Governing Body, 
the CCG was not able this year to deliver the 1% surplus. We have a robust recovery plan in place 
but next year will also be extremely challenging financially. We will be working with our colleagues 
across Cheshire and Merseyside to transform models of care and with our member practices to 
ensure referrals from primary to secondary care are within both the NHS constitution and the 
resources that we have available. 
  
I pay tribute as well to our provider Trusts for their partnerships and their commitment to our 
patients and carers. I will single out if I may NHS St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals rust who  
recently received rightly the recognition they deserve in their Care Quality Commission report in 
which St Helens Hospital was awarded "outstanding" - one of only two hospitals in the North to be 
so recognised and Whiston received "good with outstanding features." I congratulate them and all 
their staff for their commitment to their patients that enabled that standard to be met. 
 
Our Clinical Chief Executive, Dr Steve Cox was honoured recently when he was made a visiting 
Professor at Chester University, a much deserved recognition for his dedication and clinical 
leadership not just in St Helens but across the NHS in Cheshire and Merseyside. 
 
Finally, I wish to thank my colleagues on the Governing Body, both clinical and lay as well as all the 
staff.   We are numerically small but huge in ambition and energy to make a difference for our 
patients and public. CCG's are clinically led organisations and we have had to make some difficult 
decisions over the last year on how our money is invested and we will face even more during this 
year. It is that clinical leadership, working with clinicians in both primary and secondary care that 
informs our decision making to invest our budget in the best possible way to benefit patients in our 
borough. 
 
Geoffrey M Appleton - Lay Chair  
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1. PERFORMANCE REPORT 

1.1 An Overview 

Statement from the Chief Executive 

I hope you find this year’s annual report both informative and interesting.  You will 
probably be aware through a variety of national and local media that the NHS has been 
under significant pressure both in terms of financial sustainability but also service 
delivery.   

 
From a financial point of view, the health and social care economy has suffered 
significant cuts over the last 5 years in adult social care.  The Better Care Fund (BCF) is 
a £14.2m allocation of local NHS money which we invest in adult social care to support 
vulnerable people within the borough that might otherwise lead to urgent medical care 
or nursing care without this support (please refer to page 57 for further detail). Last year 
was the first full year of BCF money invested in this way in St Helens and I think it is 
safe to say from both a local authority and CCG point of view that this money has both 
been invested usefully and has delivered significant benefit for some of the most 
vulnerable patients in society. 

 
The overall financial performance of the CCG must be considered against a back drop 
of these cuts to social care and the significant financial investment in our local hospitals 
PFI scheme.  This means that we have less money to spend on actual health care s 
explained further below, but do however benefit from excellent 21st century hospital.   I 
think everyone would agree that both St Helens hospital and Whiston hospital are 
examples of the type of modern highly equipped hospitals for the future that our 
population needs.   

 
The CCG team and Governing Body have worked very hard this year with all our 
partners, in particular the LA, Healthwatch and our local providers and with the Health 
and Wellbeing Board, to deliver better quality care to our patients within the financial 
constraints that we are given. We have raised with NHSE the unique population 
changes that this borough experiences due to previous high mortality in over 65 years 
leading to very low over 85 year population.  Improvements in health and wellbeing 
have led to the fastest growth in over 75 populations within Merseyside.  This 14.4% 
increase over the last 5 years against a relatively flat overall population (1.2% growth) 
means that our overall funding due to population growth did not meet the needs for 
increased care of elderly people within the population.  Despite this, we have been able 
to manage more acutely ill over 75 years- old patients in the community than ever 
before and for the second year running, the number of admissions has fallen.  I would 
like to pay tribute to all of the community based services including general practice and 
community nurses in particular who have made this possible despite very significant 
workforce struggles.  As our population grows, up to 40% of patients over the age of 85 
have some form of dementia.  As the number of patients requiring continuing health 
care (e.g. long term nursing care) in the community grows, there is also a significant 
growth in patients with long term mental health problems such as depression, bipolar 
disorder and schizophrenia over the age of 75 year olds.  Our mental health services 
are developing particularly in the way they manage elderly patients out of hospital. 

 
The Payment by Results (PBR) funding system means that where a borough has high 
levels of morbidity (ill-health) the admissions and hospital based care has additional 
financial costs attached to it using the PBR formulae.  As St Helens has very high levels 
of ill-health like Knowsley per head of population, this further challenges us financially. 

 
From a hospital perspective this means that the patients who are admitted are now 
more complex and difficult to manage than ever before.  These episodes of care are 
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increasing so we are doing all that we can to manage more minor ailments away from 
hospital and utilising Intermediate Care.  In both the hospital and community sector we 
have seen a progressive improvement in key targets such as stroke, wound care and 
MRSA / CDiff infections compared to previous years.  In many parts of the community 
A&E departments struggle with minor illnesses admitted inappropriately.  However, in 
our local health and social care economy the vast majority of these cases are managed 
away from hospital in practice and Walk-in-Centres.  Our A&E department struggles 
with the high levels of complex elderly who are admitted.  These more complex patients 
require more intervention and hence it is more difficult for our systems to achieve the 
national 4 hour target.  All the commissioners and providers within this health economy 
are working hard together to improve performance against the 4 hour target. 
 
There are a number of additional developments which will support this.  Within general 
practice, we have seen the second year of our annual over 75 ‘Comprehensive 
Geriatric Assessment’ programme.  Over two years, we have reviewed 17,500 over 
75’s.  This is a national first, and has contributed to the reducing admissions for our 
growing elderly population.  Each year, our practices manage approximately 500 extra 
over 75’s due to increasing life expectancy, but also the increasing complexity of 
multiple long term conditions.  Further detail can be located on page 21 of the report. 

 
As we enter our third year since authorisation, the CCG has achieved a great deal, 
particularly to drive up quality in hospital and general practice.  The organisation itself 
has developed and in particular the team and membership have worked hard for the 
local population.  We have a strong well informed governing body who understand the 
key issues facing our system and we are building strong relationships with our partners, 
in particular, the local authority.   
 
Closer integration between the local authority and the CCG over the next 2 years will be 
vital as the financial envelope tightens.  The integration of public health into the local 
authority and now into the new People’s Directorate which includes adult and children’s 
social care has clearly been a positive change.  I wish to thank Liz Gaulton, who has 
just left her role as Director of Public Health for the way that she has steered the public 
health agenda within the borough.  It is vitally important that public health interventions 
both for wellbeing and prevention become everyday activities for all health workers.  We 
need to ensure that people arrive at 75 years of age in good health. 

 
We face a number of risks over the next year: 

 
1. The cost of the health care needs of our population exceeds our funding based on 

the last 2 years activity information.  The CCG has appointed a Recovery Director to 
help lead the financial recovery plan and deliver both savings and improved quality 
to help deliver our financial targets.  The Governing Body and NHSE are well 
informed on these issues and have been proactively engaged by the CCG in this 
matter.  Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC) have been engaged by NHS England to 
review the CCG Recovery Plan and the CCG is currently working to identify and 
establish robust plans to deliver a £2.8 million ‘unidentified’ QIPP target.  This 
recovery challenge is significant. 

 
2. There are significant workforce risks within the borough of St Helens, particularly 

affecting general practice.  We face a 25% GP retirement rate over the next 5 years 
and a greater than 40% Practice Nurse retirement rate.  We are working hard with 
Health Education England to meet these challenges. 

 
Returning to the issue of our local hospital provider, the Trust has a challenge to meet 
its requirement to pay for the PFI scheme.  Currently the NHS PBR system enables this 
to be funded through activity.  The NHS constitution requires patients to be seen and 
treated appropriately within 18 weeks.  Last year the Trust delivered this target (92%) at 
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over 96%.  This additional activity is not funded in the current system.  This financial 
challenge must be met for use to meet our financial responsibilities as a CCG. 

 
Finally, new changes within NHSE focus on the formation of Sustainability and 
Transformation Plans (STP’s).  St Helens CCG is part of Cheshire and Merseyside 
STP.  Within this geography is a Local Delivery System (LDS) that covers the 16 health 
and social care areas of Mid Mersey and North East Merseyside and Warrington – 
known as The Alliance LDS.   We will be working ever closer with organisations within 
this footprint to redesign services so that they will be sustainable for patients within the 
next 5 years. 

 
I hope that you find this year’s Annual Report useful and hope that you will be able to 
attend our Annual General meeting on 21st July 2016 

 

Professor Stephen Cox 
Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable officer) 
 

 

Statement of the Purpose and Activities of the Organisation 
  

1. Who we are 
 
NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is responsible for planning and delivering 
healthcare to a population of more than 190,000 people in St Helens. 
 
It also commissions or ‘buys in’ hospital services on behalf of the local community and is 
increasingly involved in the provision of primary care such as GP Practice Services. 
 
St Helens CCG is one of more than 200 clinical commissioning groups around the UK whose 
collective challenge is meeting the needs of a population growing in size, age and living with 
increasingly complex health conditions. 
 
It consists of 35 GP practices giving local clinicians the power to decide how and where an 
annual budget of £312m allocated to the CCG for 15/16 (minus running cost allowance) is 
spent on health care. 
 
The practices form our membership and are represented via a GP Forum (Members council) 
that hold the Governing Body which includes GPs, a hospital doctor, nurse and lay members to 
account. 
 
The Governing Body meets bi-monthly in public and is supported by a small group of officers 
who oversee the day-to-day running of the CCG. 
 
The reasoning behind a clinically-led organisation is that GPs have their finger on the pulse of 
the community and know how and where improvements need to be made.  
 
This includes the publication of St Helens CCG’s annual ‘commissioning intentions’ which 
focus on areas of greatest need, such as reducing unnecessary hospital admissions, improving 
access to mental health, and bringing services closer to people’s homes.   
 
The commissioning intentions are agreed in partnership with local stakeholders and 
underpinned by a longer five year plan. 
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2. Working with local partners to achieve our vision and values  
 
The Vision of St Helens CCG is to make a difference to local people by ‘delivering the right 
care at the right time at the right place. 
 
The CCG works in partnership to ensure that St Helens residents receive high quality, modern, 
sustainable, needs-led and cost effective care within the financial budgets available. We 
ensure that our plans fully reflect the joint priorities in the borough, through the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy, underpinned by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. The CCG is a key 
contributor to the development and priority setting process in relation to the strategy.  The 
Health and Wellbeing Board will be appraised in relation to our Annual Report and are in 
attendance at the CCG AGM.  
 
This will result in our residents receiving the right care, in the right setting by the most 
appropriately skilled clinician, which will improve the quality of care residents receive and 
reduce dependency in emergency and hospital services. 
 
The CCG will promote good governance and proper stewardship of public resources in 
pursuance of its goals and in meeting its statutory duties.  
 
Its overarching values are:  
 

 Efficient and Effective  
We will deliver the best care for the patients by making the most of our resources.  

 Respectful and Caring  
Our respect and care will be courageous, balanced and inclusive.  
 

 Leadership and Ambition  
We will strive to provide world class healthcare for the local population through courageous 
leadership.  
 

 Innovation and Creativity  
We will be open to new ideas, use available evidence to embrace new technology and ensure 
change happens.  
 

 Collaborative and Inclusive  
Listening to each other, working together, delivering the best for our community.  
 

 Honest and Transparent  
We will conduct ourselves and reach decisions in an open and truthful manner. 
 

3. The health of the local population. 
 
St Helens has unique population features which impact upon service requirements – its 
population is ageing, with increasing life expectancy, and yet persistent and in some cases 
widening inequalities.  Analysis of our population shows that compared to the England 
average, the Borough has in population terms more over 65s and below the England average 
for over 85s. In St Helens 19.5% of patients are 65+ (17.1% for England 2015).  This is an 
extra 2.4% of all patients.  For 85+ years St Helens is 2.1% (2.3% for England 2015) so 0.2% 
fewer of the overall population.  The largest increases in the population of older people, is 
expected to occur amongst people aged 50 and 79 years and in females aged 80 years and 
over. This articulates succinctly the key health issue relating to our population – the historical 
high morbidity of the over 65’s and growth in over 75’s by 400-500 per year,  due to past high 
over 65 mortality which is now improving due to advances in chronic disease management and 
lifestyle. 
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The IMD 2015 ranked St Helens as the 36th most deprived local authority in England (out of 
326). This is improvement from the IMD 2010, which ranked the Borough 51st.  Also, social 
inequality is not evenly distributed across the Borough with some areas, particularly in the 
centre and south of the Borough, with very high rates of deprivation.  Within St Helens, life 
expectancy varies considerably across wards. For male life expectancy there is a 10 year 
difference between wards, varying between 71.8 years in the Town Centre ward and 82.4 
years in Rainford.  For women there is almost a 9 year difference, increasing from 76.6 years in 
the Town Centre to 85.3 years in Eccleston (Public Health Intelligence, 2012-14 data).  In 
addition, population predictions for St Helens from the ONS suggest that between 2012 and 
2020 there will be a 56% increase in the number of males aged 85-89 years and a 72% 
increase in males in the 90 plus age group (ONS estimates of CCG populations 2014)1.  
Interestingly, due to premature mortality in deprived wards, clustering of elderly with multiple 
co-morbidities occurs in wards traditionally assumed to be less needy. 
 
In St Helens, it is estimated that approximately 22.7% of the GP registered adult population live 

with a long term condition, which is higher than the average of 16.9%.  Despite rigorous efforts 

to stem this growth, such as campaigns to raise awareness of specific cancers e.g. bowel and 

breast, by 2030 rates in the over 65s are predicted to double.   Further analysis shows that 

mortality related to long term conditions is also above the England average, for example stroke 

mortality locally is 78 per 100,000 people compared with 68 per 100,000 across England.  

Over the last 5 years GP registered population for the Borough has increased by around 1.5%; 
however within this the proportion of over 75s has increased by 14.4%. This annual increase 
(400-500 p.a. 2.5%-3% annually) of over 75s patients places significant pressure on key health 
and social care budgets. The table below shows a comparison of the over 75s growth in St 
Helens (5.8%) compared to other local CCGs between 2013–2015. This information 
demonstrates the growth in this age group is more significant in St Helens than other local 
CCGs, increasing the burden on CHC, primary care, social care and hospital care budgets.  St 
Helens CCG dementia prevalence is 0.8% overall. 
 
The burden of this complexity is driving increased cost per case ratios, which have seen urgent 
care costs rise well ahead of numerical activity. Similarly, the growth in Continuing Healthcare 
provides an interesting insight to the population change. 
 
Trend in Over 75s GP Registered Population 

Number of Patients aged 75 and over on April 1st each year 

Source: HSCIC date accessed 29/9/2015 Search Term "Numbers of Patients Registered at a GP 

Practice - April" 
 

CCG 

code 

CCG 2013 2014 2015 

Increase in 

patients 

2013 to 

2015 

Percentage 

Increase in 

patients 2013 

to 2015 
 

01C NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG 20114 20748 21003 889 4.4 
 

01F NHS Halton CCG 8232 8432 8566 334 4.1 
 

01J NHS Knowsley CCG 11605 11704 11820 215 1.9 
 

01T NHS South Sefton CCG 13279 13435 13526 247 1.9 
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01V 

NHS Southport & Formby 

CCG 
14573 14830 

14944 371 2.5 
 

02F NHS West Cheshire CCG 22645 23189 23736 1091 4.8 
 

12F NHS Wirral CCG 30055 30383 30810 755 2.5 
 

99A NHS Liverpool CCG 33188 33602 33776 588 1.8 
 

       
 

01X NHS St Helens CCG 15656 16179 16560 904 5.8 
 

1________________ 
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojectio
ns/bulletins/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland/2014-05-29/relateddata 
 

4. Below highlights a summary of achievements during 2015/16: 
 

 Primary care Acute Visiting Scheme maintenance supporting practice capacity 

and patient urgent care outcomes  

 Increased commissioning of practice ECG service and 24 hr BP/ABP improving 

access and diagnosis times to  patients 

 Community Gynaecology / ENT Service continued provision and access in 

primary care 

 Commissioning of Care Homes Service 

 On-going commissioning of Children’s clinics improving primary care resilience 

and access to local families, this has provided real evidence on admissions 

avoidance 

 Primary care nursing strategy and implementation has commenced with the 

recruitment of a Deputy Chief Nurse to further focus upon quality improvement 

in primary care, we have had excellent engagement from the membership with 

this piece of work lead by the Chief Nurse 

 GP Quality Contract review and focus for 16/17 and beyond – maintaining this 

on top of the standard contract to support primary care quality.  Ensuring links to 

Primary Care Strategy, ensure it has measurable outcomes, reduces variation in 

primary care and improves patient experience 

 Successful Delegated Primary Care Commissioning arrangements, successfully 

completing PMS reviews following handover from NHS England 

 Leadership in relation to the Clinical Quality and Performance Group at St 

Helens & Knowsley Hospitals following the Quality summit working in 

partnership to improve quality.  Meetings are held for each NHS Provider 

contract to ensure commissioners and providers are working closely regarding 

quality assurance and quality improvement.  Robust systems are in place to gain 

assurance about the effectiveness and safety of commissioned services with 

particular successes this year in respect of the work undertaken to improve falls 

at STHK which appears to be impacting on the number and severity of falls and 

improving incident report systems at 5BP, ensuring lessons are learned. 

 Community nursing and intermediate care review and redesign has taken place 

to improve better co-ordination and quality of these essential front line 

community services and outcomes for patients – implementation to commence 

following approval at Governing Body and GP forum in 16/17 

http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/bulletins/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland/2014-05-29/relateddata
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/bulletins/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland/2014-05-29/relateddata
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 The CCG continues to strengthen partnership working with the Council, 

developing and growing the integrated teams, pooling resource under the Better 

Care Fund arrangements to help improve outcomes in the borough, for example 

Continuing Healthcare - this is currently under evaluation 

 IAPT re-procurement to support improved efficiency and performance in terms 

of access for patients.  During the 2015/16 financial year, St Helens CCG had 

the opportunity to re-procure its IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological 

Therapies) Provider. The CCG went through the formal tendering process and 

Lancashire Care was successful. The contract started in November 2015 and 

replaced the previous service, provided by Bridgewater. Since the inception of 

the new IAPT service, performance has improved in the access rate to the 

service.  

 CAMHS re-procurement.  A review of CAMHS services within St Helens was 

undertaken jointly between the CCG and LA during 2014/15 and identified a 

number of concerns relating to the existing service provision, as part of the 

review a comprehensive needs assessment was undertaken which helped 

identify issues within service provision. 

The review identified gaps in provision at tier 2, issues relating to accessing tier 
3, CAMHS support for vulnerable groups and concerns over the numbers of 
children and young people accessing the service when compared to published 
prevalence data. 
 
As part of the review a comprehensive consultation and engagement schedule 
was created and followed, gathering evidence from multiple sources to help 
influence the development of a new service model for CAMHS for St Helens, this 
included looking at other areas that have recently reviewed their CAMHS 
services. 
 
Using the information collected during the consultation process a draft service 
model including pathway was developed, which included a new comprehensive 
tier 2 service and changes to the existing tier 3 provision, which included the 
creation of a new single point of referral for CAMHS services. 

 
Following the procurement exercise the successful provider, Barnardos was 
appointed to deliver the new enhanced CAMHS tier 2 service which has been 
expanded to cover all children, provide training for other professionals and jointly 
works with the existing tier 3 service to deliver the single point of referral. 
 
The service has been operational since July 2015 and has already completed 
some training for school staff and is receiving higher than anticipated numbers 
of referrals through the service. Further developments of both the tier 2 and tier 
3 services are planned over the next year as we look at changing the delivery of 
CAMHS from a traditional tiered approach to the emerging national models of 
integrated or holistic models of care and support across health and social care, 
such as the THRIVE model. 

 

 The CCG has invested £2,135,000 over the core GP contract value in 

developing and supporting quality improvement and capacity in primary care 

during 15/16 

 Teenage app, first CCG in the country to develop an application that young 

people can access on mobile devices for Health & Wellbeing information. 

 Minor Eye Condition Clinic 
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 Map of Medicine implementation has commenced to improve clinical pathway 

management 

 Healthwatch Good Practice Award Development and Implementation 

 The CCG has constrained management costs to keep within budget with a 

reduction from 13/14 – 14/15 of £0.4M.  

 Accreditation of the Shared Finance Team under the ‘Towards Excellence 

Standard, and positive outcomes from Internal Audit Reviews in relation to  the 

quality of financial systems, controls and financial reporting 

 Positive outcomes from internal audit reviews in relation to Stakeholder 

engagement, IG and Assurance Framework and Financial systems 

 A saving of circa £1M pa through better management of high cost out of area 

mental health placements.  Work has also commenced to make further savings 

by repatriating mental health rehabilitation places to bespoke in-borough 

provision in 16/17 

 Prescribing incentive scheme continues to achieve £1.5m - £2m pa in Quality 

Innovation Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) savings 

 Development of shared contract management service hosted by St Helens CCG 

to avoid duplication and more effectively manage contracts across St Helens & 

Knowsley 

 Managed the demise of the Commissioning Support Unit bring a range of back 

office functions “in house” or sharing with other CCGs /LA to find efficiencies 

 

5. Our priorities during 15/16 and beyond 

The CCG already has in place several strategies and plans approved by the Governing Body 

and which, in the main remain relevant, and inform the Operational Plan for 2016-17.  These 

include: 

 CCG 5 Year Plan (will be realigned with the STP by June 2016) 

 CCG 5 Year Financial Strategy 

 Out of Hospital Nursing Review Implementation 

 Primary Care Strategy – approved by Governing Body November 2015 

 Primary Care Nursing Strategy – approved by Governing Body May 2015 

 Older People’s Care Strategy 2015-2020 – approved by Health and Wellbeing 
Board November 2015 and CCG Quality Committee December 2015 

 Recovery Plan 2015-17 – approved by Governing Body November 2015 and 
refresh approved March 2016 

 Mental Health Strategy Framework 2015 
 

The CCG Operational Plan covers the nine “must dos” articulated in “Delivering the Forward 

View”: NHS Planning Guidance 2016/17 these are: 

1. Develop a high quality and agreed STP  

2. Return the system to aggregate financial balance and to deliver savings by tackling 
unwarranted variation in demand through implementing the Right Care programme.  

3. Develop and implement plan to address the sustainability and quality of general 
practice, including workforce and workload issues  

4. Access standards for A&E and ambulance waits  

5. Improvement against and maintenance of the NHS Constitution standards  
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6. Deliver the NHS Constitution 62 day cancer waiting standard make progress in 
improving one-year survival rates  

7. Achieve and maintain the two new mental health access standards  

8. Transform care for people with learning disabilities  

9. Develop and implement an affordable plan to make improvements in quality,   
providers participate in the annual publication of avoidable mortality rates  

 

In addition and complementary to the above, the CCG plan also contains relevant information 

relating to: 

 Background and context to the Operational Plan. 

 Activity Plans and Assumptions. 

 Primary Care - Sustainability and quality of General Practice. 

 Improving Quality. 

 Developing the Integration Agenda 

 Engagement Strategy 2016-17. 

 Equality and Diversity and Reducing Health Inequalities. 

 Supporting Research and Technology. 

Key Issues and risks that could affect the organisation in delivering its objectives 
 
Clearly there is significant risk in relation to delivery of the Operational Plan in 16/17, including 
financial risk and delivery of the QIPP plan. The CCG has well embedded governance 
arrangements relating to risk and the Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk 
Register will be the mechanism by which risk is managed. Key milestones and objectives from 
the Operational Plan will be identified for performance management through both the 
Integrated Programme Steering group in relation to delivery of the commissioning plan and the 
Finance and Performance committee in respect of general performance management of the 
overall plan. 
 
The CCG does not underestimate the scale of the QIPP challenge that it faces in 2016-17 and 
beyond.  Following approval of a 5 year recovery plan by the Governing body in March 2016, 
and subsequent feedback from NHS England, the recovery plan has been revised. The revised 
plan is a very challenging 5 year recovery plan submitted for approval by the Governing Body 
in April 2016. The CCG recognises that delivery of these essential cash releasing savings to 
support a financially sustainable organisation for the future, will have a likely detrimental impact 
on the income streams of provider organisations. Where those organisations cannot reduce 
capacity and costs to compensate then it will bring financial pressure. This is recognised in the 
CCG’s QIPP risk register. The development of the 5 year Strategic Transformation plan on a 
wider Cheshire and Merseyside footprint will provide opportunities for all NHS organisations 
within this boundary to work together to effect change on a larger scale. The CCG is pro-
actively working alongside partner organisations in the development and implementation of 
transformational initiatives. NHSE has adopted the Right Care Commissioning for Value 
Programme, with a phased national rollout. St Helens CCG is in the first wave of CCGs to 
embark on the programme, which is focused on improving patient outcome, reducing variation 
and improving efficiency. The CCG has identified 3 priority areas for initial implementation in 
2016/17, being Gastroenterology, Trauma and injury and Neurology. 
 
Going concern  

The CCG’s financial accounts (available at pages 99-126 of the Annual Report) have been 
prepared under a direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board under the National Health 
Service Act 2006 (as amended).  
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Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision 
of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that 
service in published documents. The CCG accounts have therefore been prepared on the 
going concern basis. 
 

Performance Summary 

The CCG assurance process led by NHS England (NHSE) is the key performance mechanism 
by which CCGs are able to demonstrate that they are delivering the best possible outcomes for 
their patients within their financial allocation. The assurance framework is designed to ensure 
that CCGs are delivering quality and outcomes for patients both locally and as part of national 
standards and that they are continuously improving from the start point of authorisation which 
was 1 April 2013. 
  

For 2014-15, which was the second year of CCG operation, the assurance process had 

identified the following key areas of challenge looking ahead to 2015-16: 

 Although the CCG achieved financial targets for 2014-15 the assurance process 

recognised the scale of financial challenge going forward and specifically the 

challenge of funding the Better Care Fund 

 Areas of challenge in terms of constitutional delivery were considered to be 

achievement of the Accident and Emergency Department (AED) 4 hour access 

standard, maintaining referral to treatment time (RTT) targets, consistency of 

performance around mixed sex accommodation (MSA) targets and friends and 

family test (FFT) coverage at AED. 

 Maintaining effective relationships and focussing effort on member practices, 

Governing Body members, providers and commissioners. 

         A new CCG Assurance Framework was published in March 2015 to take account of 

the changes which have taken place in the NHS environment since CCGs were initially 

authorised in 2013. This is based on continuous assurance process that aims to provide 

confidence to internal and external stakeholders, and to the wider public, that CCGs are 

operating effectively. 

  The most significant factors cited by NHS England are: 

 Increasingly challenging performance and financial positions – this clearly 
resonates with the CCGs position 

 The strategic direction set out in the NHS 5 Year Forward View 

 CCGs taking on a greater role in commissioning some of the services for which 
NHS England has a statutory responsibility – an example of this is Primary Care 
where the CCG has assumed delegated responsibilities from NHSE around GP 
services in 2015-16 

 

 The CCG Assurance Framework covers overall CCG delivery and performance and 

assessment. It is based on continuous assurance process that aims to provide 

confidence to internal and external stakeholders, and to the wider public, that CCGs are 

operating effectively. The diagram below illustrates the high level components of the 

assurance process which are summarised in the following narrative. 
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Assurance Components 2015-16 

Well-led Organisation 

Strong leadership and good governance which ensures patient and public involvement, delivery of all 
statutory functions and duties, including conflicts of interest, partnership working, and comprehensive 

commissioning support functions 

 

Delegated Functions 

 
 

Finance 

 
Performance: 

delivery of 
commitments and 

improved outcomes 
 

 
Planning 

 

 
Short term 

 
Long term 

 
 
 Well-led Organisation: As well as picking up most of the domains for the previous framework, 

CCGs will be assessed as to the extent to which they have the right range of commissioning 

support services in place to enable them to improve patient services and achieve financial 

balance, and the extent to which these services are sustainable; are able to adapt to future 

challenges; and are of high quality and represent good value for money. 

 
 Delegated Functions: Specific assurances will be required from CCGs which have taken 

responsibility for delegated functions which applies to St Helens CCG.  From April 2015 it 
includes primary care and may, in time, include other services.   

 
 Finance: Incorporates monitoring of the CCG’s financial management capability and 

performance, including an assessment of data quality and contractual enforcement as well as 
performance against statutory financial duties and the NHSE business rule requiring delivery of 
a 1% surplus in year. 

 
 Performance: a key focus of assurance will be delivery of improved services, maintenance 

and improvement of quality, and ensuring better outcomes for patients.  This includes progress 
in delivering key NHS mandate requirements and NHS Constitution standards and ensuring 
standards are met for all aspects of quality, including safeguarding, digital record-keeping and 
transfers of care.   

 
 Planning: the assurance of CCG plans will cover not only annual operational plans and related 

plans such as those relating to System Resilience groups and the Better Care Fund, but also 
longer term strategic plans, including progress with the implementation of the Five Year 
Forward View.  . 

  
 For each of the above, the CCG Assurance Framework 2015-16 Operating Manual sets out a 

detailed range of key indicators (approximately 10-15 for most of the 5 components of 
assurance) against which NHSE will measure the performance of the CCG. 

 
 The new framework will lead to an assessment for each component, which will place the CCG 

in one of four categories as set out in the diagram below: 
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Assurance Categories 
 

Assured as OUTSTANDING 

NHS England is fully assured by a CCGs performance in a component of assurance 

Assured as GOOD 

There are minor concerns or a higher level of risk but the CCG is managing it effectively 

LIMITED ASSURANCE, requires improvement 

A CCG has more serious challenges and a higher level of risk in a component 

 
For 2015-16 the CCG baseline assessment was assessed as “good” in 4 components of 

assurance and as anticipated “limited assurance” in one area which is Financial Management. 

The CCG did not deliver its planned outturn surplus of 1% for 2015-16 which automatically 

places it in the limited assurance category for this component of assurance. However, in 

relation to other aspects of financial management the internal audit opinion for 2015-16 is very 

positive. The CCG received an overall Director of Audit Opinion of “significant assurance” with 

the following levels of assurance in relation to finance related risk based reviews: 

 Financial reporting/budgetary control – high assurance 

 Electronic Staff Record (ESR) Human Resources/Payroll interface – significant 

assurance 

 Better Care Fund – significant assurance 

The CCG met with NHSE on 31 March 2016 for the purpose of its 2015-16 Annual Assurance 

assessment. The meeting covered all of the assurance components as detailed above. The 

final outcome in terms of the level of assurance for 2015-16 will not be known until a final 

assessment is completed at the end of May 2016 by NHSE however, given the financial 

position of the CCG and that the lowest component of assurance is applied, the CCG 

anticipates an assessment of limited assurance/requires improvement despite strong 

performance in other components of the process. 

In addition, the NHS Constitution sets out expected rights and pledges and the NHSE 

assurance process includes an assessment of the CCG against key thresholds when 

assessing organisational delivery. The tables below include key performance measures and 

CCG delivery against constitutional standards as of Q4 2014/15, 2015/16, due to the timing of 

production of the annual report and for consistency with the year-end assurance process this is 

based on Month 10 data predominantly (January 2016).  

1.2 Performance Analysis   .   

The below tables highlight the Key performance measures against constitutional 

standards as of Month 11 2015-16.  Pages 20-22 provide further discussion regarding the 

key performance measures. 
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Quality and Outcomes section 

 



 

17 
 

 

 

 

E.A.S.5 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline 14 21 9 27 71

2014-15 Baseline 21 20 11 9 61

2015-16 Plan 22 18 17 18 75

2015-16 Actuals 26 21 13 15 75

E.A.S.6 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline 1 2 0 0 3

2014-15 Baseline 1 0 0 0 1

2015-16 Plan 0 0 0 0 0

2015-16 Actuals 0 1 2 0 3

CDIFF Infections

HCAI measure 

(C.Difficile infections) 

(Tolerance set at 75)

MRSA Infections

HCAI measure 

(MRSA infections) 

(Tolerance set at 0)

E.A.S.1 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Register (DPCv3 Method) 1,333 1,387 1,419 1,442 1,442

2013-14 Estimated Prevalence 2,138 2,174 2,210 2,246 2,246

2013-14 Diagnosis Rate % 62.3% 63.8% 64.2% 64.2% 64.2%

2014-15 Register (DPCv3 Method) 1,523 1,576 1,731 1,793 1,793

2014-15 Estimated Prevalence 2,264 2,275 2,287 2,298 2,298

2014-15 Diagnosis Rate % 67.3% 69.3% 75.7% 78.0% 78.0%

2015-16 Register (CFASii Method) 1,811 1,829 1,847 1,865 1,865

2015-16 Estimated Prevalence 2,076 2,076 2,076 2,076 2,076

2015-16 Diagnosis Rate % PLAN 87.2% 88.1% 89.0% 89.8% 89.8%

2015-16 Register (CFASii Method) 1,851 1,889 1,898 1,895 1,895

2015-16 Estimated Prevalence 2,076 2,076 2,076 2,077 2,077

2015-16 Diagnosis Rate % Actual 89.2% 91.0% 91.4% 91.2% 91.2%

Dementia

Dementia - Estimated 

Diagnosis Rate %

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

P
LA

N
A

C
TU

A
L

QP Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2014-15 Baseline 16.56% 15.14% 15.11% 14.34% 15.28%

2015-16 Plan 17.21% 15.64% 15.61% 14.85% 15.82%

2015-16 Actuals 16.66% 14.84% 14.60% 14.70% 15.35%

Weekend & Bank Holiday 

discharges where patient 

was admitted Non 

Electively - %

Weekend and Bank Holiday discharges
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E.A.S.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2014-15 Baseline 6.9% 6.0% 6.3% 9.5% 7.5%

2015-16 Plan 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

2015-16 Actuals 8.5% 5.4% 18.0% 13.5% 11.3%

E.A.S.2 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2014-15 Baseline 44.5% 63.8% 37.7% 31.6% 43.5%

2015-16 Plan 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%

2015-16 Actuals 33.3% 46.2% 30.0% 36.5%

IAPT Access Rate - Data Source local

IAPT Access Rate 

(National Target 15.0%)

IAPT Recovery Rate - Data Source HSCIC

IAPT Recovery Rate

(National Target 50.0%)

E.B.5 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Total Seen within 4 hours 903 751 1308 1851 4813

13/14 Total Attendances 30207 30582 28262 29400 118451

13/14 Baseline 4hr % 97.0% 97.5% 95.4% 93.7% 95.9%

14/15 Total Seen within 4 hours 1553 1021 2099 2491 7164

14/15 Total Attendances 31559 31098 30911 25145 118713

14/15 Baseline 4hr % 95.1% 96.7% 93.2% 90.1% 94.0%

15/16 Total Seen within 4 hours 1262 1262 1262 1262 5048

15/16 Plan Total Attends 25249 25249 25249 25249 100996

15/16 Plan 4hr % 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0%

15/16 Total Seen within 4 hours 23942 23566 21645 69153

15/16 Actual Total Attends 26087 25955 26104 78146

15/16 Actual 4hr % 91.78% 90.80% 82.92% 88.49%

Data 

available at 

end of May 

2016

AED 4hr Performance (STHK Trust) Type 1 only

A&E Waiting times - 

Total time in the A&E 

department

(95.0% Standard)

B
A

SE
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N
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P
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N
A

C
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A
L

E.B.6 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1063 1039 1044 1126 4272

13/14 Total Number Waiting 1116 1101 1094 1188 4499

13/14 Baseline Performance % 95.3% 94.4% 95.4% 94.8% 95.0%

14/15 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1245 1230 1234 1258 4967

14/15 Total Number Waiting 1334 1296 1303 1315 5248

14/15 Baseline Performance % 93.3% 94.9% 94.7% 95.7% 94.6%

15/16 Plan No Waiting < 2 wks 1222 1215 1215 1222 4873

15/16 Plan Total Waiting 1294 1284 1282 1290 5150

15/16 Plan Performance % 94.4% 94.6% 94.8% 94.8% 94.6%

N
H

SE

15/16 Plan Performance % 93.7% 93.5% 94.8% 94.6% 94.1%

15/16 Actual No Waiting < 2 wks 1285 1457 1499 1519 5760

15/16 Actual Total Waiting 1360 1552 1567 1550 6029

15/16 Actual Performance % 94.5% 93.9% 95.7% 98.0% 95.5%A
C

TU
A

L
B

A
SE

LI
N

ES
P

LA
N

Cancer

All Cancer 

2 week wait

(93.0% Standard)
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Internal assurance in relation to CCG performance related to the NHSE assurance 

process 

The Finance and Performance Committee (F&PC) leads on performance management for 

the organisation and members receive a comprehensive performance report each month 

via the Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) with an up to date performance brief at each 

meeting escalating performance issues to the Clinical Quality Committee and Governing 

Body as appropriate. The F&PC will also focus on areas of performance by exception and 

“deep dive” into key areas. For example in 2015-16 the committee has looked in detail at 

CHC Pooled budget performance, performance in relation to the Falls service, Cancer 

breaches, readmissions to hospital, asthma, diabetes and epilepsy deep dive, performance 

of Winter schemes and access to Mental Health services. The Governing Body receives a 

performance summary which includes key constitutional measures, quality premium 

performance and a clinically led Governing Body dashboard. The Governing Body 

discusses performance and reviews key performance indicators, by exception, at each 

meeting as well as maintaining oversight around CCG assurance. 

 The CCG has continued to develop its performance reporting during 2015-16 ensuring a 

wide range of KPIs are reported and managed. The purpose is that these will further direct 

and support effective decision making and provide a basis for evidencing delivery against 

strategic objectives and compliance with mandated requirements. In relation to the 

Governing Body dashboard KPIs have been developed with Governing Body members and 

cover key commissioning strategic plan areas.  During 2015-16 the CCG has also 

maintained and developed an urgent care dashboard for use at the Strategic Resilience 

Group (SRG).  

 

 During 2015-16 the CCG proactively applied to NHSE to be included in wave 1 of NHSE 

work using the Commissioning for Value/Rightcare methodology (CfV). The aim is to 

identify those areas where the CCG is spending above average for its population but 

achieving relatively poor outcomes. An overarching aim of CfV is to reduce inequalities and 

disparities in access to healthcare, opportunity and treatment. For 2016-17 this work will 

focus on gastroenterology, neurology and trauma and injury. The CCG is working in 

partnership with St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals Trust in relation to this project. 

 

 The Integrated Programme Steering Group has oversight of the delivery of programmes 

and projects agreed between the CCG and the Local Authority to ensure and integrated 

system of health, wellbeing and social care across St Helens. During 2015-16 the IPSG 

has received a range of performance information, including financial performance, related 

to the operation of the Better Care Fund and the pooled arrangements in place for 

Continuing Health Care. The partners will continue to build on this in 2016-17 to ensure 

value of money in these significant areas of joint expenditure. 

E.B.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

15/16 Plan Incomplete <18wk 28077 28293 27588 27786 111744

15/16 Plan Total Incomplete 28944 29196 28450 28628 115218

15/16 Plan % Incomplete 97.0% 96.9% 97.0% 97.1% 97.0%

15/16 Actual Incomplete <18wk 31105 30687 31206 31332 124330

15/16 Actual Total Incomplete 31950 31764 32322 32788 128824

15/16 Actual % Incomplete 97.4% 96.6% 96.5% 95.6% 96.5%

P
LA

N
A

C
TU

A
L

The percentage of 

incomplete pathways  

within 18 weeks  for 

patients  on incomplete 

pathways  at the end of 

the period.

(92.0% Standard)

RTT Incomplete
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 Since 2014/15, North West Commissioning Support Unit (NWCSU) was St Helens CCG’s 

Business Intelligence (BI) provider. NWCSU provided a BI Tool called ‘Necto’; this BI Tool 

was used to obtain data and produce reports for the CCG to meet its statutory 

requirements. However, during 2015/16 NWCSU did not meet the quality requirements to 

be added to the Lead Provider Framework (LPF); a national register which lists those 

Providers who can supply and Commission BI services and Tools to CCGs.  Due to this, St 

Helens CCG, along with the other 11 Cheshire & Mersey CCGs were required to jointly put 

together a Service Specification to detail what BI Services they required going forward once 

NWCSU was devolved. This exercise was completed, and following a formal bidding 

process Midlands & Lancs CSU (MLCSU) were successfully awarded the contract to 

become the new BI Provider for St Helens CCG, which includes the BI Tool ‘Aristotle’. 

 

 MLCSU replaced NWCSU 1st March 2016 and St Helens CCG now uses Aristotle where it 

previously used Necto to perform its statutory requirements as a CCG. Aristotle and the full 

BI Service being delivered by MLCSU, with full implementation taking place in the first 

quarter of 2016/17. 

 

Performance outlook: Quarter 4 2015-16 and into 2016-17 and beyond 

The CCG Assurance Annual Assessment for 2015-16 by NHSE took place at the end of March 

2016 with the outcome to be published on 30 June 2016 in the form of a “Headline 

Assessment”. In addition, there are particular statutory functions for which NHS England have 

required a more detailed focus as part of the assurance process in 2015-16.  This is because 

of their complexity or high profile, requiring particular attention.  For 2015/16 these were: 

 NHS Continuing Healthcare – to include an assessment of CCG commissioning, 

assessment and decision making and progress with Previously Un-assessed Periods of 
Care (PUPoC) clearance. 

 Safeguarding of vulnerable patients. 

 Equality and health inequalities – to include assurance in regards to the Workforce Race 
Equality Standard, EDS2, and how the CCG is tackling inequalities, through its own 
commissioning and collaboration with its Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 Learning Disability – improving the system of care for people with learning disabilities 
and/or autism, reducing reliance on inpatient care and supporting inpatients back into the 
community. 

 Use of research – evidence of a plan to address the duties to promote and support 
research. 

 
To facilitate the assurance process and provide evidence towards the annual assessment the 
CCG has engaged its internal auditors MIAA to independently review performance in the above 
areas. MIAA met with CCG leads in each area to determine the CCGs position, identify the 
sources of evidence to support the position and assess any gaps. The outcome of this 
independent review was shared with NHSE as part of the year end assurance process. The 
CCG had no significant gaps reported and NHSE have not raised any concerns in relation to 
the year-end assessment.  
 
In relation to constitutional targets for 2015-16 and the outlook for 2016-17 the key 

performance issues, by exception and as reflected in the tables above, are:  

Accident and Emergency Department (AED) waits – the constitutional target is that 95% of all 

patients, regardless of presenting condition, should be admitted, transferred or discharged from 
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the AED within 4 hours of their arrival. Nationally this has proved a challenging target in 2015-

16 with overall NHS performance falling below target. Locally for St Helens CCG performance 

also fell below the 95% measure at 93.7% (latest data February 2016). This represents 

deterioration in the 2014-15 performance. The CCG is working very closely with key providers, 

mainly St Helens and Knowsley Trust, to ensure that plans to recover and achieve the target in 

2016-17 are met. The Clinical Quality and Performance group related to the Trust maintain 

oversight of all key performance targets and ensure that measures are taken to ensure that 

quality is not compromised for patients. 

Ambulance Performance – the CCG has fallen below the national target for the number of 

category A ambulance calls resulting in an emergency response within the 8 (75%) and 19 

(95%) minutes categories. The 8 minute target performance has, however, improved compared 

to the 2014-15 position. For 2015-16 the CCG achieved 74.8% in the 8 minute category 

(69.1% 2014-15) and 92.6% in the 19 minutes category (93.1% 2014-15). The improvements 

have followed from additional investment in ambulance services in the 2015-16 contract round. 

For 2016-17 the Strategic Resilience Group (SRG) will continue to provide the focus and 

vehicle to make further improvements and achieve the required targets. 

The CCG has set a tolerance for C Difficile infections of 75 for the whole year.  For 2015-16 

there were 75 recorded infections, therefore the 2015/16 target was achieved.  The CCG 

continues to work to the St Helens HCAI action plan, working collaboratively with St Helens 

Public Health team and healthcare providers. 

MRSA infections – there is a zero tolerance for MRSA infections. For 2015-16 the CCG 

recorded 3 infections. The Chief Nurse will be liaising with Public Health and the Infection 

Control Team regarding learning from these cases. 

IAPT Access rate – there is a national target based on prevalence data to ensure that 15% of 

people requiring IAPT services access such services and that 50% recover as a result. 

Historically the CCG has struggled to achieve either target. As a consequence, in 2015-16 the 

CCG re-specified the service that it required and formally re-tendered and appointed a new 

provider of IAPT services. Services commenced from the new provider on 1 November 2015. 

For 2015-16 the CCG recorded performance at 11.3% against the 15% access target, which is 

an improving position. For recovery 36.5% was recorded against the 50% target in Quarter 3 

(the latest data available). The new service is embedding well and the CCG is confident that 

the access and recovery targets will be met in 2016-17. To support this, the CCG has selected 

IAPT access as one of its quality premium markers for 2016-17 which will ensure that it is given 

specific focus.  

Looking forward to 2016-17 delayed transfers of care (DTOC) are a key issue for CCGs to 

ensure that patients are discharged in a safe and timely manner from hospital. To assist with 

this, the CCG will focus on weekend and bank holiday discharges. For 2015-16 the CCG set a 

target to achieve 15.82% of discharges at the weekend/bank holiday. It fell slightly short of this 

target at 15.35%. Significant attention has been paid to Delayed Transfers of Care and their 

impact on capacity within the trust to support admissions from AED this winter which has 

resulted in improved partnership working across organisations at an operational level e.g. 

involvement in board rounds, improved multi agency engagement in length of stay meetings, 

improved escalation via commissioners of individual complex cases that require commissioning 

support to address and resolve. An intense four day rapid improvement event at the end of 

May is anticipated to improve systems and processes further and develop a medium to long 

term action plan to improve that aspect of patient flow in preparation for next winter. 
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The CCG was required to submit a one year financial and Operational Plan to NHSE in April 

2015. The Operational Plan effectively forms year 1 of a five year Sustainability and 

Transformation plan with St Helens CCG working as part of a much bigger footprint for 

Cheshire and Merseyside. The Operational Plan covers nine “must dos” outlined in “Delivering 

the Forward View: NHS Planning Guidance 2016-17” which are underpinned by a range of 

performance metrics and targets related to outcomes in key areas.  In summary, the plan sets 

out an ambition to meet key constitutional targets relating to:  

 Delivery of access standards for AED and ambulance waits  

 Delivery of the NHS constitution standard for referral to treatment times 

 Delivery of cancer waiting standards and improving survival rates 

 Mental health access rates 

 Dementia diagnosis rates 

 Transforming care for people with Learning Disabilities 

The Operational Plan outlines the CCG’s plans in relation to levels of secondary care hospital 
activity in 2016-17. These plans are aligned to contractual plans agreed with hospital Trusts 
and other providers and financial plans. There is a rigorous planning process in place overseen 
by NHSE. The CCG’s plans include the following assumptions:  

 
 An increase on the 2015-16 forecast outturn position of 0.4% to reflect the projected increase 

in demand within the overall population.  
  

 The CCG has planned to achieve the NHS referral to treatment time constitution standard in 
that 92% of patients on non-emergency pathways wait no more than 18 weeks from referral to 
treatment. 
 

 The CCG has planned to deliver the NHS Constitution 62 day cancer waiting standard, 
including, by securing adequate diagnostic capacity; continuing to deliver the constitutional two 
week and 31 day cancer standards and make progress in improving one-year survival rates. 
 
Plans to achieve and maintain two new mental health access standards: more than 50% of 
people experiencing a first episode of psychosis will commence treatment with a NICE 
approved care package within two weeks of referral; 75% of people with common mental 
health conditions referred to the Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 
programme will be treated within six weeks of referral, with 95% treated within 18 weeks. 
 
 The CCG will continue to meet a dementia diagnosis rate of at least two-thirds of the 
estimated number of people with dementia. 
 
The CCG plans to locally transform care for people with learning disabilities, including 
implementing enhanced community provision, reducing inpatient capacity, and rolling out care 
and treatment reviews. 
 
Overall, the CCG plans to constrain elective levels of activity in 2016-17 using a range of 
measures as outlined in the Operational Plan. Total elective admissions are planned to fall by 
3.6% overall. 
 
Taking into account demand from an aging population, the CCG has planned for non-elective 
urgent activity to increase.  Accident and emergency attendances are planned to increase by 
3%  and non-elective admissions are planned to increase by 1.1%. 
 
The CCG will continue work commenced in 2015/16 to support the shift in our population of 
over 75’s.  A total of 13,760 Comprehensive Geriatric Assessments were performed by GPs 
between 1/4/14 and 31/3/16.  This led to the identification of emerging health concerns and 
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care management plans were then put in place.  The Integrated Access Point for St Helens 
has been enhanced for 2016/17 and has assessed 3019 over 75’s during 2015/16.  The Care 
Homes Service continues into 2016/17 and will be reviewed by the end of May 2016 to ensure 
it delivers positive outcomes for our care residents.  The implementation of the Older Peoples 
Strategy and the nursing and intermediate care reviews will ensure that the right care is 
available for older people. 
 
Key challenges in relation to CCG performance going into 2016-17 

Based on 2015-16 data available at the year-end assurance meeting on 31 March, the 

following areas are likely to post the most significant challenge for the CCG looking ahead to 

2016-17. 

 Finance and the delivery of the CCGs recovery plan – the CCG has set a deficit budget 

of £3.1m for 2016-17 and to achieve that position needs to deliver recovery plan savings 

of £10.96 m. 

 Healthcare Acquired Infections – there is a zero tolerance approach to MRSA infections 

and in relation to Cdifficile the CCG is likely to end 2015-16 slightly above target which 

was 75 cases for the year. 

 Accident and emergency four hour wait – the main Acute provider is currently performing 

below the 95% standard which clearly impacts on CCG performance. The provider has 

plans in place to improve performance linked to the receipt of STP funding in 2016-17. 

The CCG works closely to assist and support through the local Strategic Resilience 

Group (SRG). 

 Ambulance response times – performance has dipped over the winter period and it will 

be a challenge to recover going into 2016-17. 

 Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies – the targets for 2016-17 are more 

challenging, although access performance has improved with the commissioning of a 

new service in 2015-16 this will need close management to meet targets set by NHSE. 

 Cancer targets – overall the CCG achieved all measures year to date to January 2016 

but there are in month breaches. These targets require constant close attention to 

maintain performance.  

Financial Performance  

The CCG receives its funding from NHSE in two parts. The main element is the Programme 
Allocation, which is for the commissioning of health services including delegated primary care 
co-commissioning funding. The second allocation is the CCG’s Running Cost Allowance, which 
covers the administration and management of the CCG. The CCG cannot use its Programme 
Allocation to increase the Running Cost Allowance, although an under-spend on its Running 
Costs can be used to support its Programme Allocation. The CCG must ensure that health 
services are delivered within its Programme and Running Cost Allowance and cash flow 
controls, as set by NHS England. In addition, the plan was to maintain the 1% surplus brought 
forward from 2014/15. Due to financial pressures in the system, the CCG reported an overall 
surplus of £100k for 2015/16 and therefore was not able to deliver the 1% surplus as planned 
for 2015/16, however it has achieved all of its statutory financial duties as detailed in the table 
below.  
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Statutory Duties 2015/16 Target  
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Variance 
£m 

Met? 

Expenditure not to exceed income  316.0 315.9 -0.1 

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions 

0.0 0.0 0.0  

Revenue resource use does not exceed the 
amount specified in Directions 

312.1 312.0 -0.1   

Revenue administration resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 

4.3 4.1 -0.2   

 
 
Although the NHS has to some extent been protected, allocation growth has been lower than in 
past years. In 2015-2016, the CCG received the national average uplift of 1.94% growth 
(2014/15: 2.14%), so that it received £272.2m (2014/15; £267.4m) for its core programme 
budgets.  In addition to this, the CCG received a further non-allocation of £0.8m and a Better 
Care Fund allocation of £4.4m at the commencement of the financial year.  Further allocations 
were received during the year, including the funding for delegated primary care co-
commissioning  The CCG received £4.2m (2014/15; £4.5m) in relation to Running Cost 
budgets. In addition, the CCG also received back its previous year’s surplus of £2.8m.  
 
Although the CCG was able to meet its statutory duties in 2015/16 it was not able to maintain 
the 1% surplus carry forward into 2016/17 and therefore did not meet NHSE’s business rules 
for CCGs, hence NHSE’s limited assurance rating for finance explained above. The following 
table sets out why NHS St Helens CCG was not able to deliver its original financial plan and 
maintain the carry forward of the 1% surplus (£2.84m) in 2015/16. 
 

Table showing 2015/16 planned surplus  to actual surplus achieved £000's 

Original 2015/16 planned surplus 2,845 

Acute activity over performance (2,975) 

Continuing Healthcare &  MH packages of care pressures (1,949) 

QIPP saving plan underachievement (1,604) 

Non-recurrent budget benefits 972 

Other budget pressures (189) 

Risk share funding received 3,000 

Revised 2015/16 surplus achieved 100 

 
It was widely recognised that achievement of the 2015/16 financial plan was going to be very 
challenging.  The CCG commenced the year with a £6.2m QIPP savings target with over 
£3.2m of potential savings unidentified at the time of constructing the plans. Although the CCG 
delivered £4.6m n QIPP savings, the majority of the savings were non-recurrently and the CCG 
ended the year with £1.6m of savings undelivered. 
 
Early in the financial year the CCG experienced over performance in acute hospital contracts in 
addition to cost and volume pressures within Continuing Healthcare and Prescribing budgets. 
As the year progressed, it became clear that the CCG was no longer in a position to forecast 
delivery of the planned 1% surplus, and discussions commenced within the Mersey NHS 
economy to secure risk share funding of £3m in order to achieve a breakeven position.  This 
position was reported to NHS England. The CCG received £3m in repayable non-recurrent risk 
share support during 2015/16 and reported an overall surplus of £100,000 for the financial 
year.   
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 How was the money spent in 2015/16 and 2014/15? 
 
The Governing Body, management team and staff of the CCG work hard to ensure that this 
money is spent wisely, and that it supports the aim of commissioning high quality healthcare, 
whilst ensuring effectiveness and value for money. Allocations to the CCG were spent as 
follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This figure is net of £4.0m (2014/15; £4.8m) income received by the CCG.  Income in 
2015/16 relates to risk share funding received (£1.5m), claw back of estates funding (£1m), 
recharge of GP IT capital equipment (£0.4m) and various other income streams (£1.1m). 

 
The CCG’s Running Cost spending is divided between the costs associated with its own staff 
and accommodation, and those of the commissioning support services, which were purchased 
from the North West Commissioning Support Unit until 1st March 2016. At that date CSU 
services were taken on by the Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit following a 
procurement exercise undertaken by CCGs in Merseyside and Cheshire. 
 

 
*The £/head is based on the Office for National Statistics constrained population which 
equated to 188,400 in 2015/16 (2014/15;187,707)  
 
Value for Money 
 
For 2015/16, the CCG’s external auditors will be required to give their statutory conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money.  The organisation has set in place and embedded 
robust systems and processes to manage financial risks and opportunities effectively, and to 
secure a stable financial position going forward.  Given the financial pressures the CCG has 
proactively developed a strategy for long term financial recovery and appropriate arrangements 
to plan and secure financial resilience up to 2020/21.  Key to this is the formal financial 
recovery plan. In order to ensure that the recovery plan is credible and deliverable the CCG 
has put in place the following arrangements to ensure delivery: 
 

CCG Spending 2015/16 £m 2014/15 
£m 

Programme Expenditure   

Acute Services 148.7 148.0 

Mental Health Services 22.5 22.1 

Community Health Services 29.1 33.4 

Continuing Care & KMBC Pooled Budgets 23.0 21.0 

Prescribing & Primary Care Services 43.6 44.1 

Delegated Primary Care Co-Commissioning 26.2 0 

Other Programme Services (including Better Care Fund) 14.9 2.7 

Total Programme Spend 308.0 271.3 

Running Cost (Admin) Expenditure 4.1 4.5 

Total Expenditure* 312.1 275.8 

Running Costs (Admin) 2015/16 
£m 

2015/16 
£/head* 

2014/15 
£m 

2014/15 
£/head* 

CCG Direct Costs Staff 2.2 11.63 1.8 9.71 

CCG Direct Non-Pay 1.0 5.35 1.3 7.09 

Other CCG Shared Services 0.3 1.45 0.3 1.40 

Commissioning Support Unit 0.6 3.25 1.1 5.98 

Total Running Costs 4.1 21.68 4.5 24.18 
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 Leadership of the recovery process is clear and robust governance arrangements have 
been established in 2015-16 

 There has been significant clinical and wider organisational engagement in developing 
the recovery plan through a multi-disciplinary clinically led delivery group 

 The recovery plan is embedded in the overall commissioning programme/plans not 
separate to it 

 Engagement has commenced and will be escalated in 2016-17 

 Quality impact assessments are undertaken on all initiatives 

 Risk analysis of recovery plan proposals 

 Development of a programme office approach to ensure delivery of recovery plan 
measures 

 
  Good financial systems, processes and controls are important to the achievement of 

value for money in addition to the overall culture of the organisation.  In considering 
arrangements to achieve value for money the organisation can take confidence from 
the CCG’s strong internal audit results on budgetary controls, financial reporting and 
financial systems for 2015-16. 

 
Looking Forward to 2016/17 and beyond 
 
Following the General Election and the Government Spending Review, NHSE have been able 
to publish firm CCG allocations for the 3 years to 2018/19 and indicative ones for the 2 years 
after that. These include programme budget allocations for core commissioned services and 
the delegated primary medical services together with the separate running cost allocation. The 
allocation publication also showed notional allocations in respect of specialised services which 
relate to St Helens as NHSE is considering delegating responsibility for commissioning some of 
these services to CCGs. 
 
The CCG will receive a core programme budget funding increase of 3% (or £8.4m) in 2016/17 
which is less than the national average of 3.4% received by other all CCGs.  This gives a total 
programme allocation (excluding notional primary care allocations) of £285.1m. This includes 
the pick-up of previously separately funded allocations for GP Information Technology, 
Extended Tariff Offer and Children and Adolescent Mental Health of £1.87m which means that 
the additional growth increase to the CCG is really 2.4%. Although the NHS has been 
protected in relation to other public spending in a period of austerity, this is a historically very 
low level of funding growth for the health service which is meeting increasing demands from 
the population. The funding growth in 2017/18 and 2018/19 drops to 2%. Overall although the 
CCG does have an increase in its allocation it has many cost pressures to face. For the first 
time in 4 years NHS hospital activity tariffs have been increased by between 1.1% and 1.8% 
which consumes a significant proportion of the allocation growth being received by the CCG. 
 
NHSE has delegated co-commissioning responsibility for primary care medical services to the 
CCG. The allocation in 2016/17 for these services is £27.5m an increase of 4.4% on 2015/16.  
The CCG is considered to be 4.6% over its target allocation on primary care funding so growth 
will be constrained in future years according to the 5 year allocations announced by NHS 
England. 
 
The CCG’s Running Cost Allocation (RCA) was reduced by 10% (or £0.4m).  The CCG’s 
running cost allocation for 2016/17 is £4,174k.  The running cost allocation is determined by 
each CCG’s constrained GP registered population.  The allowance is to be reduced over the 5 
year allocation period.  This is because NHSE have a fixed national fund for running costs, so 
although St Helens expects growth in its registered population, it is lower than the national 
average so the proportion of national funding will fall.  As a consequence over the 5 years to 
2020/21, St Helens running cost budget is expected to decline from £4.17m to £4.12m.  CCGs 
are expected to accommodate additional commissioning responsibility including primary care 
co-commissioning and the transfer of services from specialised commissioning, pay awards 
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and incremental drift within the reduced allocation so in real terms the reduction is more 
significant than it might first appear. 
 
The CCG is expected to work collaboratively on a 5 year strategic Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan with the other CCGs and NHS Trusts within the Cheshire and Mersey 
area. The development of a satisfactory plan will allow access to national Sustainability and 
Transformation Funds which totals £2.9 billion by 2017/18. The CCG’s 5 year strategic plans 
will need to build into the Sustainability and Transformation Plan of the wider Cheshire and 
Mersey area. 
 
Looking forward the CCG faces significant financial challenges to return to financial 
sustainability, with a recovery plan to deliver £48m savings over 5 years to enable the delivery 
of the required 1% surplus in 2020/21. The savings challenge for 2016/17 is £12.5m, of which 
£7.6m has been identified at scheme level. A key risk facing the CCG is the full delivery of the 
2016/17 savings within the recovery plan in support of the longer term financial plan.  
 
As the CCG is currently working with NHS England and PWC partners on financial recovery, 
there may be a central NHS England view taken on the timeframe for CCG recovery plans.  We 
await this guidance. 
 
Additionally a further risk to financial recovery is the impact of future uplifts to the PbR tariff 
where this differs from the assumptions made. A change of 1% could generate a cost impact of 
around £7.4m over the 5 year recovery period. 
 
The CCG will continue to work in close partnership with St Helens Council and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board (HWBB). The HWBB is in the process of reviewing its priorities for the next 3 
years following a successful peer review in 2015-16. The CCG has been a key partner in this 
process. The council also faces a significantly challenging financial outlook and close 
partnership working is considered essential to ensure that value for money is achieved across 
the both health and local authority budgets. The HWBB will play a key role in ensuring that: 

 NHS constitutional targets are met for the population, including mental health 
targets through a shared Mental Health Strategy Framework for the borough 

 Maximising the effectiveness of pooled budget arrangements for the Better Care 
Fund and Continuing Healthcare 

 Oversight of the sustainability of the overall health economy 

 Collaborative working around developments relating to Liverpool City Region 
(LCR) 

 

For 2016-17 the BCF will total £14.2 million and the CCG will also put a total of £18.4 million 

related to Continuing Health Care pooled fund with the LA. 

 
The expectation of continuing reduced growth for NHS funding means that the CCG will 
continue to be faced with difficult choices on spending priorities.  Although the CCG has been 
able to deliver its statutory financial duties and targets in 2015/16, the relatively low levels of 
funding growth emphasises the importance of the CCGs Recovery plan and QIPP agenda to 
ensure that funds are used to achieve maximum benefit to the health of the population whilst 
continuing to deliver the necessary financial targets. The CCG has adopted the 
“Commissioning for Value/Rightcare” approach in order to address areas of expenditure where 
costs are high but outcomes are relatively low. The CCG is an early adopter of the programme 
having been admitted onto phase 1 of the rollout by NHSE.   Demand for secondary care is 
high and the CCG faces significant challenges to tackle this and to transform out of hospital 
services to deal with demand more effectively in the community and primary care. The CCG, 
together with its partners, has the energy and focus to tackle this. 
 
As well as constraints in relation to future resources, the CCG faces other principal risks and 
uncertainties that have the potential to impact on its long-term financial performance. As part of 
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the planning process undertaken with NHSE, the CCG is required to quantify its key financial 
risks and mitigations. The CCG has identified principal risks as follows: 

  
i. Activity over performance and associated costs under Payment by Results 

(PbR) arrangements; 
ii. Increased demand for community services under cost per case Any 

Qualified Provider (AQP) arrangements; 
iii. The cost and volume of Continuing Healthcare cases and high cost mental 

health placements out of areas; 
iv. Managing the GP prescribing budget; 
v. Financial risk associated with the transfer of GP primary care budgets; 
vi. Achievement of the CCG’s overall Recovery/QIPP programme.  
vii. Identifying any non-recurrent financial support within the overall health 

economy to support the recovery plan 
 

Through robust internal controls and governance, strong contract management, tackling 
prescribing waste and joint pooled budget arrangements with St Helens Council in relation to 
Continuing Health Care cases, the CCG will seek to manage and mitigate these risks.  The 
CCG has received a high level of assurance in relation to its financial reporting and budgetary 
control arrangements and high assurance opinion in relation to the quality of its internal 
controls. The internal structures which will help the CCG deal with these risks are set out in the 
Governance section of the Annual Report. 

Environmental Sustainable Development  

Sustainability has become increasingly important as the impact of people’s lifestyles and 
business choices are changing the world in which we live.   The Climate Change Act 2008 sets 
a legally binding framework to reduce carbon emissions, mitigate and adapt to climate change.  
The latest carbon reduction targets became law in June 2011 and require the reduction of 
carbon emissions by 34% by 2020 from a 1990 baseline, 50% by 2025 and 80% by 2050.  The 
NHS Sustainable Development Unit (SDU) has estimated that as at 2004, the NHS in England 
was responsible for 25% of England’s public sector emissions and 2.6% of total UK emissions.  
As such, the NHS has a significant role to play in carbon reduction, and to this end, the NHS 
has made a Carbon Reduction Commitment which sets a shorter term target of 10% by 2015 
from a 2007 baseline.  In order to fulfil our responsibilities for the role we play, St Helens CCG 
has proposed the following sustainability mission statement for inclusion within our sustainable 
development management plan (SDMP) for approval by the CCG Governing Body in 15/16: 

 
“NHS St Helens CCG recognises the imperative of driving the sustainability vision through 
greater resource efficiency, reducing emissions and environmental impact, and delivering 
positive impact on the local health economy by improving productivity’. 
 
Policies 
 
In order to embed sustainability within our business it is important to explain where in our 
process and procedures sustainability features. 
 

Area Is sustainability considered? 

Travel Yes 

Procurement (environmental) Yes 

Procurement (social Impact) Yes 

Suppliers Impact Yes 

 
As an organisation that acknowledges its responsibility towards creating a sustainable future, 
we will help achieve that goal by running awareness campaigns that promote the benefits of 
sustainability to our staff. 
 



 

29 
 

Climate change brings new challenges to our business both in direct effects to the healthcare 
estates, but also to patient health. Examples of recent years include the effects of heat waves, 
extreme temperatures and prolonged periods of cold, floods, droughts etc. Our board approved 
plans address the potential need to adapt the delivery the organisation's activities and 
infrastructure to climate change and adverse weather events. The organisation has identified 
the need for the development of a board approved plan for future climate change risks affecting 
our area. 
 
 
 
Sustainability Performance 

 
As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute towards 
the level of ambition set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, public health and 
social care system by 34% (from a 1990 baseline) equivalent to a 28% reduction from a 2013 
baseline by 2020.  
 
St Helens CCG does not own any properties and its lease and associated costs for energy, 
water and waste usage is managed by St Helens Chamber as our Landlord.  It has not 
possible to gain all of the information in relation to our energy spend for 15/16 and the CCG will 
continue to work with St Helens Chamber to gain further understanding of our energy use 
during 2016/17.  Upon receipt of the necessary data, a more comprehensive performance 
report detailing usage of these resources and the resulting carbon emissions profile will be 
produced and ensure more effective measurement of our contribution towards the target.   
 

 

 

Carbon Footprint 

The majority of the environmental and social impacts are through the services we commission.  

The NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy for England provides a framework which addresses 

sustainability both in how St Helens CCG operates as an organisation in its own right, and in 

terms of how it contracts for services from providers of healthcare. The plan aims to: 

Energy

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Use (kWh) 115,118 91,615 90,403

tCO2e 24.4 19.2 19.0

Use (kWh) 0 0 0

tCO2e 0 0 0

Use (kWh) 0 0 0

tCO2e 0 0 0

Use (kWh) 33,502 33,940 33,821

tCO2e 18.8 21.0 19.4

43.2 40.2 38.4

5,172£     5,638£     5,622£     

Electricity

Total Energy CO2e

Total Energy Spend

Coal

NHS St Helens CCG has spent £5622 on energy in 2015/16, which is a 8.7% increase on energy spend from last year.
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 Drive down direct C02 emissions and energy usage whilst also reducing revenue       
expenditure. 

 Influence commissioned services to reduce their carbon footprint in support of the       
target reduction 

 Ensure that all new buildings and other initiatives are developed with reference to the plan, 
such as the local estates review. 

 
In line with the NHS Carbon Reduction Plan our local plans will focus on the same areas. A 
summary of some of the key areas that will feature within our Carbon Reduction Plan are 
detailed below: 
 

 Waste 
The CCG is committed to the waste segregation process in line with legislation; we do not 
currently have figures in relation to our waste recycling percentage from St Helens 
Chamber.  Our Landlords will continue to review and monitor our waste and work with all 
tenants in an effort to increase this percentage. 

 

 Recycling 
Used stationery is recycled wherever possible. Used printer cartridges, drum kits and 
associated accessories are collected by a Toner Recycling Service. Confidential waste is 
collected by an external company on a monthly basis and shredded. All shredded material 
is 100% recycled. 
 

 Printing 
 
All PCs are defaulted to double sided printing and we encourage our staff to only print 
documents when necessary. 

 

 Commissioning and contracting  
As a commissioning and contracting organisation, we will need effective contract 
mechanisms to deliver our ambitions for sustainable healthcare delivery. The NHS policy 
framework already sets the scene for commissioners and providers to operate in a 
sustainable manner. Crucially for us as a CCG, evidence of this commitment will need to 
be provided in part through contracting mechanisms. 

 

 Furniture 
Furniture was procured through the Office Team who are committed to reduce their 
environmental impact and have implemented a variety of initiatives including recycling old 
unwanted furniture. 
 

 Cycle to Work Scheme 
In line with the Governments Green Travel plan, we have introduced a cycle to work 
scheme, to encourage employees to cycle to work in an effort to help reduce congestion 
and environmental pollution. 

 

 Future Strategy 
The CCG will continually improve the environmental impact of our activities by working 
with our staff, support departments and third parties. The CCG is developing a corporate 
Sustainability Development Management plan to be approved by the Governing Body 
during 2015/16. 

21 

 Energy and carbon management:  
St Helens CCG seeks to reduce its own energy and carbon footprint. Capital 
developments will be considered on a whole life cost basis and considered as part of the 
current Estates review. 
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Patient and Public Involvement   

Our legal duty to involve: 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 introduced two complementary duties for Clinical 

Commissioning Groups with respect to patient and public participation. 

Individual participation – commissioning groups (CCGs) and NHS England must promote the 
involvement of patients and carers in decisions which relate to their care or treatment. This 
requires collaboration between patients, carers and professionals, recognising the expertise 
and contribution made by all. The duty requires CCGs to ensure that they commission services 
which promote involvement of patients across the full spectrum of prevention or diagnosis, care 
planning, treatment and care management. 

 
This includes:  

 

 Personalised care planning, including patient choice and the option of a 

personal health budget when a person is eligible 

 Shared decision making regarding individual episodes of care and longer term 

care 

 Self-care and self-management support to better manager health and prevent 

illness 

 Information with targeted support to enable patients to be more in control of 

their health 

Public participation – this second duty places a requirement on CCGs and NHS England to 

ensure public involvement and consultation in commissioning processes and decisions.  This 

includes involvement of the public, patients and carers in; 

 Planning of commissioning arrangements, which might include consideration 

of allocation of resources, needs assessment and service specification 

 Proposed changes to services which may impact on patients. 

A key goal for NHS St Helens CCG has always been to achieve authentic patient participation 
and ensure patients and professionals ‘co-produce’ care in order to achieve true patient 
empowerment. Throughout 2015/16 we have aimed to transform the way in which we listen to 
and involve our patients, their carers and the public. In a time of unprecedented demand, the 
NHS has to turn to its service users and their communities to become active partners in 
planning and managing their own care.  

Listening to what patients have to say  
 

During 2015 the CCG continued to ensure that these core principles for engagement and 

consultation were used throughout our commissioning approach to inform, communicate and 

empower patients. These core principles, together with an oversight and understanding of the 

need to empower citizens in line with the 5 year forward view led the CCG to gain “significant” 

assurance with Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) for its approach to stakeholder 

engagement.  We actively audit communications and involvement reach and set targets of 

improvement each year to improve both the quality of our engagement and the quality of 

commissioned services.  St Helens CCG understands the need to “truly listen and ‘hear’ what 

is being said, proactively seeking participation from communities who experience the greatest 

health inequalities and poorest health outcomes” (Principles for Participation in 

Commissioning, NHSE 2015), with a robust Equality Diversity System 2 action plan, of which 
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the CCG partnered with Healthwatch St Helens and our providers, and recently agreed by St 

Helens CCG Governing body for progression in 2016 and beyond.   

A St Helens Child Health Summit took place on the 10th March, a joint venture between St 

Helens Local Authority and St Helens CCG, Public Health, Providers, partners, parents and 

young people.  

 Over 130 people attended this visionary event to kick-start our 2020 vision for Children 

and young people’s mental health and wellbeing! 

The subsequent co-designed vision will link into the research and development we are 

conducting with Loughborough University and act as a conduit for further co-design, 

incorporating the main themes of ‘Future in Mind’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our ambitious engagement strategy ‘working well together’ was approved by the CCG 
Governing Body in July 2015 and is the CCG response to ‘Transforming Participation in Health 
and Care’.  Based on feedback from our CCG ‘Working Well Together’ event, over 160 local 
people helped us to develop our key engagement objectives to support delivery, firmly 
underpinning our approach throughout 15/16.   
 
During 2015/16 and leading up to the St Helens 20/20 vision St Helens CCG has recognised a 

need to refresh the Engagement and Communications Strategy for St Helens.  We understand 

the challenges, we need to ensure our citizens are at the core of our work, and we understand 

we can always do more!  However, using the principles of respect; recognition of need; 

understanding what’s worked in the past; shared knowledge across our communities and 

voluntary sector; St Helens CCG has taken the time, planned well and used plain English to 

further engage our citizen’s, communities, voluntary sector and key providers in the 

development of an integrated Engagement and Communications Strategy fit for future 

planning.   
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Taking on the principles laid out in the 5 year forward view, St Helens CCG has taken the 

initiative across the health and social care economy, to collectively drive patient involvement 

forward in the development of the strategy helping to “shift power to patients and citizen’s and 

strengthen communities” (5 Year Forward View, NHSE, 2015) and moving forward into 2016 

and beyond we will continue to strengthen this activity at pace across our future commissioning 

plans submitted to NHSE. 

St Helens CCG has driven this forward at pace, by consulting with the public over the key 

principles that should drive our local Engagement Strategy Forward, and understanding what 

‘feels’ important to local people.  So far we have: 

 73 individuals who have commented on a local survey,  

 we have delivered a focus group to 35 individual stakeholders including our main 

providers.   

This has already shown that the top 5 priorities for citizen’s locally are ensuring the strategy is 

outcome focused, ensuring engagement around ‘wider issues’ as laid out in the 5 year forward 

view, i.e. financial sustainability, ensuring we use a variety of methods, including digital 

methods, ensuring a focus is on specific commissioning re-design. 

You can also see the key themes of our focus group and public engagement within the visual 

minutes above.  These key outcomes and ‘things to consider’ will drive and further develop our 

engagement and consultation at pace into 2016 and beyond.     

Subsequently, we also recognise the need to have in place the systems by which we can 
confidently highlight how the CCG continues to develop engagement and consultation with the 
local community and Healthwatch with particular reference to challenged financial position and 
economy.  By November 2015 to the current date we had: 
 

 Engaged over 160 local people in decisions relating to our financial sustainability and 
primary care services development.  We have been actively recruiting to a public 
membership of which we now have: 

 

 520 citizen’s actively involved and communicated with and a further 165 stakeholders 
over and above this.   

 
To support with Winter pressures and on-going sustainability, the CCG has commenced roll out 
of its Simple things make a difference’ campaign.  This is a campaign of simple messages to 
the public on how simple actions they can take can support self-care, avoidance of waste a 
make a real difference to sustainability in the NHS.  This has been launched via local press, 
buses, posters and leaflets across the borough and will be enhanced as we continue into 
16/17.  Some of the key messages include understanding on the wasted resources of not 
turning up for appointments, wasted medicines and making the right choices when it comes to 
healthcare and self-care. 
 
 

 
 

Our target for 2016/17 is an increase from 497 to 1,000 local people actively joining our 
membership scheme to make decisions “with us, about us” within a local context.  On review of 
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our communications and engagement reach in 2015, we estimate that we have engaged with 
and communicated to at least; 
 

 18,000 people across the Borough!  We have been able to be so successful due to the 

positive relationships with our stakeholders, networks the voluntary sector and 

Healthwatch St Helens.   

St Helens CCG is actively “seeking the views of those who currently use services, those who 

may use services and those who pay for them i.e. tax payers” (Draft Framework for patient and 

public participation in primary care commissioning, NHSE, 2015).  This has been recognised 

locally.  

Primary care development and St Helens CCG Primary Care Strategy implementation will be a 

key focus of 2016.  NHS England’s draft framework for patient and public participation in 

Primary Care recognises the challenge this affords.  To date St Helens CCG has seen a vast 

improvement in the quality of local PPG’s and the further development of the St Helens PPG 

Health Forum.  This forum also holds a quarterly networking event for PPG’s and other 

members of the public.  These events are open events with transparent Q&A sessions, in 

November 2015: 

 over 80 people attended to listen and give their views on the CCG plans to 

manage the financial challenge and to also share their own views with the CCG  

In January 2016: 

 over 80 people attended to understand more about finance, CQC and 

Healthwatch St Helens.  Healthwatch St Helens are a key partner on the St 

Helens PPG Health Forum.   

St Helens CCG also has a robust governance structure with a voted member of the PPG 

Forum attending the CCG Patient Experience and Involvement Group, a sub group of the 

Quality Committee, a formal Committee of the CCG.  In 2016 we hope to strengthen the PPG 

Health Forum so this is formally run by PPG’s, whilst tightening the structure of the Patient 

Experience and Involvement Group to ensure that views are fed into the heart of the CCG 

decision making structure.  Furthermore, the Patient Experience and Involvement Group is an 

integrated group with partners from the voluntary sector, Healthwatch St Helens, Local 

Authority, Public Health and for 2016, working closer with providers.   

Finally, St Helens CCG is actively working with Loughborough University on the development 

of a co-designed digital space for engagement.  This project has been seen across the CCG, 

AQuA and the University as innovative and this will be a key project moving towards our joint 

20/20 vision.  This would enable full engagement and consultation with the public and staff 

across the health and care economy from strategy development, business case development 

through the commissioning cycle to procurement.  St Helens CCG realises the potential for this 

research project now moving into the design phase, and the opportunities this can link with 

nationally such as NHSE Citizen panels and NICE engagement activity, all of which are 

currently linked to our patient and public involvement, to ensure not only participation in local 

initiatives but also across the region and nationally to ensure that our citizens are empowered 

and encouraged to undertake active involvement should they so wish to do so. 
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Access to Information  
 
Access to good quality health information, and the support to use it, is fundamental to securing 

patient and public engagement. Whilst there are powerful legal and ethical incentives for 

providing quality information, the CCG believes access will enable people to better manage 

their health and wellbeing and make fully informed decisions about their treatment and care.  

The CCG is working in partnership through the Health Informatics Services (HIS) towards a 

common health and social care accessible information system.  This will be linked to the social 

care community trust, Mental Health trust and General Practice clinical systems ensuing safe 

and effective information being available for decisions around care. 

The CCG has we also seen electronic discharge information becoming the norm for our 

patients being admitted to hospital.  This was a significant achievement for our local hospital. 

Patients are currently able to electronically book appointments at most of our practices and we 

are now working towards making summary clinical information available to patients. 

The Development of a local Children’s APP with St Helens LA has seen an innovate approach 
to providing a resource of health information for young people in the borough, developed in 
collaboration with young people in St Helens. 
 
Digital Roadmap 
 
The National Information Board (NIB) was established to provide leadership for a strategy - to 
put data and technology to work for citizens, patients and their carers, support healthier lives 
and secure safe and sustainable health and care, so that by 2020 all patient and care records 
will be digital, interoperable and real-time. In order to achieve this local health and care 
communities are expected to develop “digital roadmaps” to show how together they will deliver 
the 2020 ambition. In the recently published NIB document The Forward View Into Action: 
Paper-free at the Point of Care, the case is made that CCGs should lead and coordinate 
development of the digital roadmaps due to their role as commissioners of secondary care and 
their responsibility for GP IT. The document recognises that the footprint covered by a digital 
roadmap may involve a cluster of more than one CCG, together with the main NHS providers 
and Local Authorities in that area. The CCG has decided to work on a footprint based loosely 
on a Liverpool City Region – so coming together with the 5 other Merseyside CCGs, led by 
Liverpool CCG.  The CCG’s Operational Plan sets out the continued work towards this 
ambition. 
 
Personal Health Budgets (PHBs)  

At NHS St Helens CCG we believe personal health budgets enable people with complex health 

needs to have greater choice, flexibility and control over their health care and support they 

receive in order to achieve their personal outcomes. During 2015/16 we have further 

implemented the delivery of personal health budgets (PHB).  This will ensure consistency, with 

shared criteria and standards as well as a shared commissioning approach which is currently 

well established within the Local Authority. Evaluation in relation to impact on outcomes for 

people accessing PHB’s is underway. 

Working with the Third Sector  
 
NHS St Helens CCG recognises the importance that the Third Sector brings to public service 

provision in the form of the development of innovative solutions and the longer-term 

preventative agenda. We believe partnership working with the Third Sector can provide an 
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essential link between CCG and the population of St Helens: building services tailored around 

the needs of the individual from organisations that are firmly rooted in our local community.   

St Helens has a strong third sector and voluntary sector presence and during 2015/16 the CCG 
has sought to address some of the issues in voluntary and third sector commissioning. The 
work has examined issues of personalisation, self-directed care support and the development 
of a range of service choices. The Joint Commissioning Team with the CCG and Local 
Authority is in the process of reviewing voluntary and third sector grant funding: securing a 
collaborative approach to commissioning services in partnership with Local Authority partners 
to ensure value for money and that the CCG supports the sectors in understanding the 
strategic direction of travel for the CCG as it further develops.  

St Helens CVS, St Helens Borough Forum, St Helens Senior Voice and St Helens Social 
Inclusion Network have been just some of our key partners in collaboration, engaging and 
involving individuals and small community groups within their Forums. St Helens has a 
thriving Community Centre Forum, and as a CCG we commit to using these for 
engagement purposes, where we can, to ensure equality across the Borough. These 
centres are within key localities in St Helens, and are key to information distribution and 
engagement at the ‘grass roots’ of local communities.  

Healthwatch St Helens continue to be a key partner, upholding their position of scrutiny 
whilst working collaboratively on a number of engagement partnerships including local, 
regional and national events and consultations. We have developed such robust relationships 
with Healthwatch St Helens that we are supporting a joint project “Patient Friendly Practice 
Award” that is a direct result of outcomes provided from Healthwatch St Helens key priorities 
after a robust consultation with citizens around Primary Care experiences, and this will 
continue into 2016 and beyond and will feed into our Primary Care Strategy. 

St Helens CCG will be working closely with Healthwatch to ensure the public voice is 
represented in all areas of health and social care commissioning and enable St Helens 
Healthwatch to uphold its role. 

 
Carers support services 

 
In St Helens there has been considerable investment in preventative Carer services over the 
past years which means many of the additional responsibilities of the Care Act in regards to 
Carers are already being met locally. 
 
St Helens Local Authority now has a statutory duty to prevent, reduce or delay the need for 
support to Carers.  The guidance states that Prevention cannot be a one – off activity and 
should be considered at all stages of someone’s care and support. 
 
Examples of services and facilities and resources that will help prevent, delay or reduce the 
needs of Carers would include: 
 

 Information, Advice & Support including Advocacy 

 Support to care effectively and safely 

 Support to look after their own physical and mental health and coping 
mechanisms 

 Access to Benefits Information 
 

In St Helens these services are jointly commissioned by Health and Social Care. 
 
Additionally the CCG also commission hospital support workers that identify and support carers 
of people being discharged from hospital so that they can jointly agree the care that is required, 
and how this will be delivered prior to discharge. 
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There is also a new duty under the Care Act to provide Carers who meet eligible needs with a 
personal budget. St Helens have been providing “personal budgets” to carers for several years 
through Carer Break funding via the Carers Centre.     
 

Reducing inequality  

The CCG is a key member of the St Helens Health and Wellbeing Board working locally with 

key partners to set the joint health and wellbeing strategy for the borough and contributing to 

the development of the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment led by Public Health.  The 

CCG’s local commissioning strategy and our Sustainability and Transformation Plan for the 

borough is informed by the JSNA and local HWB Strategy.  These can be accessed at: Council 

website: www.sthelens.gov.uk 

The CCG Quality Committee and CCG HR & Remuneration Committee actively oversee the 
CCG’s equality objectives development and implementation as delegated by the Governing 
Body.  During 2015/16, the CCGs adopted an innovative approach to delivering the Equality 
Diversity System 2 Toolkit (EDS2); the toolkit supports the CCG in demonstrating compliance 
and performance in relation to the Equality Act.  The EDS has four goals key goals (with 18 
specific outcomes) achieving better outcomes, improving patient access and experience, 
developing a representative and supported workforce and finally, demonstration of inclusive 
leadership. Each of these goals can be assessed and a grading applied to illustrate progress in 
achieving the outcomes and the involvement of the communities and organisations that 
represent the views of people with protected characteristics is important.  (please see table 1 
below for the CCG’s current grading assessment). 
 
Our approach involved engaging with national, regional and local organisations who represent 
the views of people and communities who share protected characteristics this helps inform the 
needs assessment in the borough. This was undertaken via one-to-one meetings, workshops, 
interviews, briefings and research with partner organisations and stakeholders including to 
name but a few: Healthwatch, The Race Equality Foundation, Deaf Health Champions (Sick of 
It Report), In Trust Merseyside, Black Minority Ethnic Community Development Project(SHAP).  
The aim of the engagement was to ensure the CCGs understand the ‘barriers’ communities 
across protected characteristics face to enable the CCG to improve access and outcomes.  
These barriers were considered by a formal Panel in October 2015 and include issues such as 
language and other cultural barriers. 
 
The CCG recognises that patients and staff who share protected characteristics are less likely 
to complain, complete NHS surveys or access community networks to provide their feedback 
and this level of engagement with stakeholders will ensure that entrenched barriers 
communities face in relation to accessing healthcare services are understood and mitigated as 
part of the CCGs strategic and operational programmes including mainstream plans, changes 
to service specifications, business plans and strategies, procurement activity, contract 
monitoring and discussions with key partners including NHS England, the Local Authority and 
community, voluntary and faith sectors;  
 

This work has helped inform the CCG annual Equality & Diversity Report, which sets out how 
the CCG has been demonstrating ‘due regard’ to their Public Sector Equality Duty’s (PSED) 
three aims to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
community relations. This requires all public sector organisations to publish their equality 
information annually.    
 
In addition, all Public authorities are required to meet their specific duties under the Equality 
Act 2010 to set Equality objectives every 4 years.  As a result of the EDS 2 process an Equality 
Objective Plan has been developed to improve access and outcomes across protected 
characteristics. 
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Our Equality Objectives Plan for 2013-17is in line with the CCG’s statutory requirements and 
commissioning priorities. They set out clearly how we will meet our Public Sector Equality Duty 
to eliminate discrimination, Advance equality of Opportunity and foster good community 
relations. These objectives will help us make fair and transparent commissioning decisions, 
improve the equality performance of our providers and will be significantly refreshed as a result 
of the EDS process we undertook 
 
Key additions to the CCG equality objectives plan this year include implementing: 

 

 The new NHS England Accessible Information Standard to make sure people 
receive information about services in an appropriate format, which involves finding 
out if a patient has extra communication needs because of a disability or sensory 
loss; 

 

 The new NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard, which requires NHS 
organisations to take positive action to ensure employees from BME backgrounds 
have equal access to career opportunities and receive fair treatment in the 
workplace. 

 

The CCG will continue to strive to ensure that the services we commission are accessible to 

all. During the last twelve months we have made good progress around equality & diversity 

developing new and building on existing relationships with groups and individuals who share 

and represent the interests of protected characteristics. This year’s EDS2 exercise has allowed 

us to fully improve our understanding of what barriers certain communities face and tackle 

them through mainstream processes and plans.  We have developed a refreshed and long 

term Equality Objective Plan 2015-18 that focuses’ on the internal processes we need to 

improve and the actions we need to undertake to tackle barriers and disadvantages certain 

communities face.   

Throughout the EDS 2 engagement process stakeholder identified a range of issues and 
barriers that need to be addressed to improve access and outcomes.  These issues have 
formulated into an action plan which will form part of our long term Equality Objectives.  Once 
these issues are addressed in mainstream plans the grading status will progress from 
‘developing’ status to ‘achieving’ status.  

 
 
Table 1; St Helens CCG EDS2 Grades and outcomes: 

NHS ST. Helens CCG EDS2: The Goals and Outcomes 
Grade 
Status  

Goal Number Description of outcome  

Better health 
outcomes 
 

1.1 
Services are commissioned, procured, designed and delivered to 
meet the health needs of local communities 

 
Developing  

1.2 
Individual people’s health needs are assessed and met in 
appropriate and effective ways 

Developing 
 

1.3 
Transitions from one service to another, for people on care 
pathways, are made smoothly with everyone well-informed 

 
Developing 

1.4 
When people use NHS services their safety is prioritised, and they 
are free from mistakes, mistreatment and abuse 

 
Developing 

1.5 Local health campaigns reach communities   
 

Developing  
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The Full St Helens CCG Equality and Diversity Annual Report and plans can be accessed on 

our website at; www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk 

 

 

 

Professor Stephen Cox,  

Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 

NHS St Helens CCG  

 

25 May 2016   

 

 

 

 

Improved 
patient access 
and 
experience 

2.1 
People, carers and communities can readily access hospital, 
community health or primary care services and should not be 
denied access on unreasonable grounds 

 
Developing 

2.2 
People are informed and supported to be as involved as they 
wish to be in decisions about their care 

 
Developing 

2.3 People report positive experiences of the NHS Developing 

2.4 
People’s complaints about services are handled respectfully and 
efficiently 

 
Developing 

 

A 
representative 
and supported 
workforce 

3.1 
Fair NHS recruitment and selection processes lead to a more 
representative workforce at all levels 

 
Achieving 

3.2 
The NHS is committed to equal pay for work of equal value and 
expects employers to use equal pay audits to help fulfil their legal 
obligations 

 
Achieving 

3.3 
Training and development opportunities are taken up and 
positively evaluated by all staff 

Developing  

3.4 
When at work, staff are free from abuse, harassment, bullying 
and violence from any source 

 
Developing 

3.5 
Flexible working options are available to all staff consistent with 
the needs of the service and the way people lead their lives 

 
Developing 

3.6 
Staff report positive experiences of their membership of the 
workforce 

Developing  

Inclusive 
leadership 

4.1 
Boards and senior leaders routinely demonstrate their 
commitment to promoting equality within and beyond their 
organisations 

 
Developing  

4.2 
Papers that come before the Board and other major Committees 
identify equality-related impacts including risks, and say how 
these risks are to be managed 

Developing 

4.3 
Middle managers and other line managers support their staff to 
work in culturally competent ways within a work environment 
free from discrimination 

Developing 

  

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/
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2     ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  

2.1 Corporate Governance Report 

The purpose of the corporate governance report is to explain the composition and 
organisation of the CCG’s governance structures and how they support the CCG to 
achieve its objectives. 
 
This consists of: 

 A Directors Report 

 Statement of Accountable Officer Responsibilities 

 The Governance Statement 

 Accountability Report – Remuneration and Staff Report 

 

2.1.1 Director’s (Members’) Report   

Our Governing Body consists of 6 clinical members (elected members) and is 
supported by 2 further Lay Members (in addition to the Lay Chair), a Chief Finance 
Officer, the Strategic Director – People’s Services, the Director of Public Health, with 
expertise from an external Executive Nurse, Chief Nurse and Secondary Care 
Consultant (until April 2015).  

The Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) is Professor Stephen Cox, the CCG 
(Lay) Chair is Mr Geoffrey Appleton. 
 
Composition Governing Body 
 
The Governing Body meets bi-monthly throughout the year and the composition of the 
Governing Body throughout the year and up to the signing of the Annual Report and 
Accounts is detailed below: 
 
Professor Stephen Cox : Clinical Chief Executive 
Mr Geoffrey Appleton  : Lay Chair 
Dr Joseph Banat  : GP Governing Body member 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse : GP Governing Body member/Deputy Chair 
Dr Julie Whittaker  : GP Governing Body member 
Dr Paul Rose   : GP Governing Body member 
Dr Omar Shaikh  : GP Governing Body member 
Dr Hilary Flett   : GP Governing Body member 
Tony Foy   : Lay Member, Audit, Governance & Finance 
Rachel Jones   : Lay Member, Patient & Public Engagement 
Professor Sarah O’Brien : Chief Nurse 

 Paul Brickwood  : Chief Finance Officer 
 Elaine Inglesby  : Executive Nurse 
 Mike Wyatt   : Strategic Director – People’s Services 
 Liz Gaulton   : Director of Public Health 
 Dr Debra King   : Secondary Care Consultant (terminated tenure        
                                                                       April 2015) 
 
 Others in Attendance: 
 

The Governing Body may invite other people to attend all or any of its meetings or parts 
of a meeting in order to assist it in its decision making and discharge of functions as it 
sees fit. e.g. 

 
The Local Medical Committee Chair 
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Deputy Director and Clinical Lead, Northwest Leadership Academy 
St Helens Healthwatch Chair 
Practice Manager Representative 
CCG Senior/Executive Leadership Team 
CCG GP Membership 
 
The names of the individuals forming the Audit Committee throughout the year and up 
to the signing of the Annual Report & Accounts are detailed below; 
  
Mr Tony Foy :   Lay Member Audit & Governance, Chair,  
Rachel Jones :   Lay Member Patient & Public Involvement 
Dr Joseph Banat : GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse : GP Governing Body Member, Deputy Chair 
Dr Omar Shaikh : GP, Governing Body Member 
Jill Newton : Practice Business Manager 

             
 
Others in attendance: 

Paul Brickwood  : Chief Finance Officer 
Julie Abbott    : Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
Lisa Roberts   : Principal Accountant 
Caroline Lees   : Associate Director; Corporate Governance 
Louise Cobain   : (MIAA - Internal Audit) 
Rebecca Brown  : (MIAA – Internal Audit) 
Liz Temple-Murray   : (Grant Thornton – External Audit) 
Mike Thomas    : (Grant Thornton – External Audit) 
Mark Heap    : (Grant Thornton – External Audit) 
Virginia Martin   : (MIAA – Counter Fraud Service). 
 
 
Member Practices forming the Membership Body of NHS St Helens CCG 
 
At 31st March 2016, St Helens CCG is made up of 36 GP practices within the borough: 

 
Practice Name Address 

Bethany Medical Centre 151 Grafton St, St Helens 

Bowery Medical Centre Elephant Lane, Thatto Heath, St Helens 

Bridge Street Surgery 48 Bridge St, Newton-Le-Willows,St Helens 

Central Surgery 
Lowe House, Health Care Resource Centre, 

Crab St, St Helens 

Cornerstone Surgery 
Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas St, St 

Helens 

Crossroads Surgery 449 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens 

Dr Rahil's Surgery 21a Old Whint Road, Haydock 

Eccleston Medical Centre 
Christ Church Grounds, Chapel Lane, 

Eccleston, St Helens 

Eldercare St Helens Hospital, St Helens 
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Ferguson Family Medical Practice 140 Berrys Lane, Parr, St Helens 

Four Acre Surgery Burnage Ave, Clock Face, St Helens 

Garswood Surgery Billinge Road, Garswood, St Helens 

Hall Street Medical Centre 28-30 Hall Street, St Helens 

Haydock Medical Centre  Dr Breach, Station Road, Haydock, St Helens 

Holly Bank Surgery 
Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas Street 

St Helens 

Kenneth MacRae Medical Centre 32 Church Road, Rainford, St Helens 

Lancaster House Medical Centre 24-28 North Road, St Helens 

Lime Grove Surgery Station Road, Haydock, St Helens 

Lingholme Health Centre Atherton Street, St Helens 

Longton Medical Centre 451 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens 

Market Street – Dr James 102 Market Street, Newton-Le-Willows 

Mill Street Medical Centre Mill Street, St Helens 

Newholme Surgery 
Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, 

Crab Street, St Helens 

Newton Community Hospital Practice 
Newton Community Hospital, Bradlegh Road, 

Newton-Le-Willows, St Helens 

Ormskirk Street Surgery 
Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, 

Crab Street, St Helens 

Park House Surgery 
Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas Street, 

St Helens 

Parkfield Surgery 
Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, 

Crab Street, St Helens 

Patterdale Lodge Medical Centre Legh Street, Newton-Le-Willows, St Helens 

Phoenix Medical Centre 28 Duke Street, St Helens 

Rainbow Medical Centre 333 Robins Lane, Sutton, St Helens 

Rainford Health Centre 17 Higher Lane, Rainford, St Helens 

Rainhill Village Surgery 529 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens 

Recreation Drive Surgery Recreation Drive, Billinge  Near Wigan 

Sandfield Medical Centre 81 Liverpool Road, St Helens 

Sherdley Medical Centre 2
nd

 Floor, St Helens Hospital, St Helens 

Spinney Medical Centre 23 Whittle Street, Toll Bar, St Helens 
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The GP membership forms the Members Council (GP Forum) and meets bi-monthly to 
review CCG business matters in line with the constitution and scheme of reservation 
and delegation.  The membership is made up of a lead GP representative from each 
practice.   

 
CCGs are dependent on the unique role of general practice in connecting and acting as 
the intermediary for all the care patients receive. General practice connects patients 
with specialists; it connects clinical professionals who care for the same patients with 
one another; and it connects patients, carers and their families with the broad range of 
support they need from both within the NHS and social care. Most importantly, as 
trusted local community leaders, general practitioners have the ability to give a voice to 
the population of patients and communities they serve. 

 
Company Directorships 

 
Details of company directorships and other significant interests held by members of the 
management board can be viewed via  the NHS St Helens CCG Register of Interests 
2015-16 via the link below: 
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx 
 
 
Personal Data Incidents 
 
The CCG has had no personal data incidents that have required formally reporting to 
the Information Commissioners Office.  Please refer to pages 75-76 for further 
information. 
 
Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 
 

  
Each member of the Audit Committee present at the time the Members’ Report was 
received confirms;  

 
So far as the member is aware, that there is no relevant audit information which the 
clinical commissioning group’s external auditor is unaware; and, that the member has 
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member in order to make them 
self-aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the clinical 
commissioning group’s auditor is aware of that information.  

 
The Annual Report was approved in line with the CCG Constitution by the Audit 
Committee on 23rd May 2016.   

 
Relevant audit information means information needed by the clinical commissioning 
group’s auditor in connection with preparing their report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx
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2.1.2 Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 

 
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has 
appointed Dr Stephen Cox to be the Clinical Chief Executive (Clinical Accountable 
Officer) of the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for the propriety 
and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, for 
keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to 
ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and 
for safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities), are 
set out in the Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed 
each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial 
statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial 
statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net expenditure, changes 
in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

  In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with 
the requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health and in 
particular to: 

 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies 
on a consistent basis; 

 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 

 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for 
Accounts issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and disclose 
and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and, 

 

 Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities 
set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

I also confirm that:  

• as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the entity’s 
auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that I 
ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.  

• that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 
understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual report and 
accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and 
understandable 

 

  Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 

NHS St Helens CCG  

 

25 May 2016 
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2.1.3. Governance Statement 

Introduction and context  

The clinical commissioning group was licenced from 1 April 2013 under provisions enacted in 
the Health and Social Care Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 2006. 
As at 1 April 2015, the clinical commissioning group was licensed without conditions.  This 
meant that the CCG met all the necessary standards set by the NHS Commissioning Board 
(NHS England) in order to meet requirements set out in the Health & Social Care Act 2012. 
The CCG continues to report to NHS England regarding its on-going performance in meeting 
its statutory duties via the NHS England Assurance Framework assessment process.   

Scope of responsibility 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control 
that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims and 
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public Money. 
I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group 
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
 
I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered prudently 
and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding 
financial propriety and regularity. 

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 

We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have 
reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, 
including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to 
the CCG and best practice.  The CCG has been reported as fully assured of its Governance 
Arrangements via the CCG assurance process undertaken by NHS England throughout 
2015/16. 

 

 The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states: 

The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made appropriate 

arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted principles of good 

governance as are relevant to it. 
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Table 1; CCG Governance Framework 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Governing Body comprises a diverse range of skills from Executive, Clinical and 
Lay members and there is a clear division of responsibility between running the 
Governing Body and running the CCG’s everyday business. The CCG Scheme of 
Delegation details how the key CCG functions have been discharged through the 
organisation as agreed by its member practices in the CCG constitution.  The CCG Lay 
Chair is responsible for the leadership of the Governing Body and ensures that 
executives have had access to relevant information to assist them in the delivery of 
their duties.  The lay members have actively provided scrutiny and challenge at 
Governing Body and sub-committee level and provide lay scrutiny support to officers in 
their day to day work.  Each CCG sub-committee comprises membership and 
representation from appropriate officers, clinicians and Lay members with sufficient 
experience and knowledge to support the committees in discharging their duties. 

The CCG GP Membership is required to elect its GP members to the Governing Body 
through a clear election process to lead the CCG and represent the practices and public 
in delivering the CCG statutory functions. 

The Governing Body Core Membership as per the constitution as of 31ST March 2016 is 
detailed along with all CCG Sub-Committees in appendix A to this Governance 
Statement. 

 
Full details of the CCG’s membership, Committee Terms of Reference and scheme of 
reservation and delegation can be found within the CCG constitution available on the 
CCG’s website at www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk. 
 
The CCG discharges its duties through to its sub-Committees and key Committee 
highlights can be found below. 
 

 Governing Body Assurance  

The CCG Governing Body meetings are open to the public and during 15/16 the 
Governing Body has begun to take the meetings directly into the community with our 

Strategic Assurance Framework
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meeting in November 2015 held at Carmel College with local students attending to both 
listen to the meeting debate and ask the Governing Body questions regarding local 
services for young people.  Our ‘Governing Body on the Road’ will continue into 16/17 
as we aim to increase interest from the public in attending our meetings, understanding 
the work of the CCG and getting involved with our commissioning plans. 
 
The Governing Body has continued to seek assurance during 2015/16 in relation to key 
CCG objectives, including review and approval of the CCG’s strategic and operational 
plans. 
 
The Primary Care Strategy and Primary Care Nursing Strategy have been considered 
and approved by the Governing Body.  Both strategies will be crucial in delivering the 
change we need to drive up quality, efficiency and effectiveness within primary care. 
The CCG Mental Health Strategy Framework has also been a key project for the CCG 
and has been endorsed by the Governing Body. 
 
During 2015/16, the Governing Body has also requested a series of ‘deep dives’ in 
relation to some key performance issues.  For example, this has been in relation to falls 
and children’s urgent care measures, enabling further insight and direction regarding 
performance improvement in these areas.  The Governing Body highlights areas for 
deep dives at each governing body meeting and this will continue into 16/17.  
 
The Governing Body meetings also provide forum for review and scrutiny of key 
Partnership priorities.  This has been seen through seeking assurance on action across 
the partnership in relation to Children’s OFSTED assessment and Safeguarding 
Assurance Report.  In addition – review of the Section 75 agreement has been 
undertaken through the Integrated Programme Steering Group, which now includes 
priorities in relation to public health, the Better Care Fund and the Children’s Integrated 
Commissioning Team.  The Governing Body also sought assurance on delivery of the 
patient and public involvement strategy delivery and key highlights from this can been 
found on pages 31-36 of the report.  Linked to this was the review and approval of the 
CCG Equality Objectives and Equality & Diversity Annual Report the full detail can be 
accessed via our website. 
 
Due to growing financial pressures during 15/16 and seeing the financial challenges 
continuing into 16/17, the Governing Body has regularly reviewed the risk arrangements 
via the CCG QIPP and Recovery Group and also via the CCG Finance and 
Performance Committee.  The CCG approach to recovery is detailed further on pages 
27-29 of the performance report.  The Governing Body has approved a recovery plan 
during 15/16 to continue during 16/17 and this will also require full endorsement from 
NHS England who have worked with the CCG during this period. 

The Governing Body has also ensured its endorsement of the CCG Service Reduction, 
Redesign and Cessation Framework which ensures robust commissioning, risk 
management and governance arrangements are in place in considering circumstances 
when the CCG may need to undertake decommissioning, ensuring full quality and 
equality analysis is understood in informing decisions of this nature. 

Governance across Cheshire and Merseyside  

NHSE England, through the publication of the NHS Five Year Forward View, tasks 
CCGs with the Development of 5 year Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs) 
and the development of a one year operational plan, which is essentially the first year 
delivery of the STP.  By June 2016 the STP will need to have been developed and is 
required to be “place based” and covering the period October 2016 to March 2021. This 
requires wider system leadership as a team and including representation from Local 
Government and Health and Wellbeing Boards. NHSE sees the STPs driving delivery of 
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the 5 year forward view. Developing a robust STP will require strong system leadership 
requiring: 

 Local leaders coming together as a team. 

 Developing a shared vision which includes the local community and Local 
Government. 

 Programming activities to make it happen. 

 Executing a plan. 

 Learning and adapting. 
 

This in itself requires the establishment of collaborative governance arrangements in 

the development and delivery of the STP.    

St Helens will fall within a sub planning unit of the STP for Cheshire and Merseyside 
which will be known as the Local Delivery System (LDS) for the geographical area 
comprising Mid Mersey Knowsley (facing Whiston), St Helens, Halton, Warrington, 
Southport and Formby CCG, West Lancashire CCG and the Major providers as follows: 

 St Helens & Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust 

 Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust 

 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

 Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 

 Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 

The STP must cover all areas of CCG and NHSE commissioned activity including 
specialised commissioning, primary care and integration arrangements with Local 
Authorities reflective of health and wellbeing strategies. In summary STPs are about 
delivery of the NHSE “Triple Aim” of better health, transformed quality of care delivery 
and sustainable finances.  The Governing Body have approved the initial governance 
arrangements which involves development of an LDS ‘Committee in Common’ to 
oversee delivery and will work through the STP Reference Group in presentation of full 
STP plans to NHS England. 

All partners remain accountable to their Governing Boards and will ensure that all plans 
are approved via their respective organisation governance and reflect the collective 
views of the LDS. 

Plans for the STP will be written according to three tiers: 

Level 1 – represents in borough planning 

Level 2 – represents planning within the footprint of providers and neighbouring 

boroughs/CCGs (LDS) 

Level 3 (a) – represents strategic work across LCR 

Level 3 (b) – represents strategic work across Cheshire & Merseyside 

Further embedding and developing the governance and delivery arrangements will 

continue as we move into 16/17 and further information is contained within the 

partnerships section of the governance statement. 
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CCG sub-Committee Functions: 

The Below outlines the key functions of each Governing Body sub-Committee including 
the GP Forum (Members Council) and the key highlights/items of business during 15/16 
as delegated through the GP Forum (Members Council). 

  Executive Risk and Assurance Committee 

The Committee is responsible for the development, implementation and monitoring of 
the CCG’s integrated governance systems and processes and risk management.  The 
Committee oversees delivery of the corporate objectives including the management of 
the corporate risk register and Governing Body Assurance Framework.  The full terms 

of reference can be found in the CCG’s Constitution. 
 

During 2015/16, the Committee has continued to ensure compliance with key statutory 
governance requirements ensuring effective review of the CCG’s emergency planning 
and business continuity /major incident arrangements, undertaking a self-assessment 
against statutory duties providing assurance to NHS England on local compliance. The 
Committee has continued to oversee the organisation’s risk management via on-going 
review of the corporate risk register and Governing Body Assurance Framework, 
ensuring that significant risks are reported directly to the Governing Body for review 
following Committee Scrutiny.  The Committee actively reviewed the CCG Risk 
Management Strategy in 15/16 with the aim to ensure the CCG risk appetite and 
tolerance was fully appraised.  Work has been undertaken on those risks that have 
remained unchanged during 2015/16 with assurance sought from the CCG committees 
in this regard.  The CCG standards of business conduct and Gifts and Hospitality Policy 
has also been subject to review to ensure robust compliance with core standards in 
relation to counter fraud.  This has been done with the local Counter Fraud Specialist. 
 
The Committee has overseen the implementation of the Information Governance Action 
plan to ensure compliance with the IG Toolkit receiving significant assurance from 
MIAA.  In addition, consideration of MIAA reviews in relation to Conflicts of Interest 
management, ensuring effective responses and action plans are implemented to 
address any areas for improvement.  More recently, the Committee has had oversight 
on the development of the CCG’s Governance Framework for Service Reduction, 
Reduction and Cessation.    

 
The committee has delegated responsibility for the approval of key corporate policies 
and during the year has received updates and requests for approvals in relation to the 
following key policies and processes: 

 

 Information Governance and IG Toolkit compliance 

 Risk Management 

 Governing Body Assurance Framework 

 Health & Safety 

 Standards of Business Conduct and Conflicts of Interest  

 Emergency Planning Resilience and Response 

 Review and responses to recommendations from Internal Audit 
 

 Finance and Performance Committee  

 The Finance, Performance & Approvals Committee (FPA) assures the CCG Governing 
Body on all financial matters in relation to the discharge of its Statutory Functions in line 
with the Constitutions prime financial policies. The Committee ensures that the financial 
and activity performance of commissioned services is monitored.  The committee is also 
responsible to take appropriate action within contract terms and in support of the NHS 
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Constitution, on behalf of the Governing Body, to remedy any finance and performance 
variations, for example to those outlined in the CCG Assurance Framework and the 
Clinical Commissioning Plan. The committee will approve service developments brought 
forward from the Quality Committee (QC) and allocate resources according to annual 
financial plans.  

 The key remit of the group in 2015-16 was to: 

 Review the overall financial position of the CCG to ensure the organisation is able 
to meet its statutory financial duties and that the financial plans are consistent 
with and complementary to the annual budget, commissioning plan and strategic 
direction 

 Recommend corrective action in respect of the financial challenges faced by the 
CCG. 

 Receive feedback from the QIPP delivery group sub-committee and make 
economic decisions based on QIPP savings proposals. 

 Review all finance and performance related risk as an excerpt from the 
organisation’s risk register and make recommendations on any further mitigating 
actions and controls 

 Monitoring financial and operational performance, assessing any risk and 
recommending actions to address them, oversight of KPIs including those 
outlined in the commissioning framework 

 Monitoring delivery of the CCGs QIPP programme 

 Monitoring performance of the clinical commissioning strategy 

 Financial approval of key business decisions following the recommendations of 
the Quality Committee 

    

 Quality Committee  

The Quality Committee (QC) was established in accordance with St Helens Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (the CCG) Constitution, Standing Orders and Scheme of 
Delegation.  The Committee is responsible for the quality and safety processes across 
all CCG commissioned services, and for assuring the governing body that quality and 
patient safety activity is co-ordinated and transparent ensuring a coherent and 
systematic review of the system.  This includes the approval of new service 
specifications and the support governance for implementation. 

The highlights for the Quality Committee for 2015/16 have been as follows:  

 Overseen completion of a review of Intermediate Care and Out of Hospital 

Nursing 

 Agreed a new model for Designated Safeguarding Nursing Function in the CCG  

 Established a more robust process for reporting of quality and safety issues and 
performance across all commissioned services through a Provider Monitoring 
Report each month  

 Worked collaboratively and successfully with key partners such as Public Health 
to ensure service specifications meet clinical standards 

 Reviewed and refreshed terms of reference to ensure robust reporting from all 
quality subgroups and to Governing Body to enable the CCG to understand the 
quality of care and manage risk for the population of St Helens, for example 
Safeguarding, Risk assurance.  

 Completed a meeting effectiveness review with MIAA 

 Overseen establishment of a monthly C.diff panel at the Acute Trust to facilitate 
whole system learning 

 Approved Primary Care Nursing Strategy  

 Overseen development of clinical pathways for Map of Medicine 
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 Reviewed and commented on the Quality accounts for the CCG’s main 
providers 

 

 The Quality Committee oversees the following subgroups: 

 Medicines Management Committee 

 Patient Experience & Involvement Group 

 Patient Safety Group 

 Map of Medicine Group  

In addition to our internal governance for quality and safety, (SO here) 

In line with national guidance NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) hold a Quality 
Surveillance Group (QSG) to bring key agencies together to oversee and assure regarding 
quality across NHS providers.  NHS St Helens CCG is a member of this group and submits 
an overview of all the providers it commissions at each meeting and the Chief Nurse feeds 
back from QSG formally at the Quality Committee.  For each of our NHS providers, the 
CCGs hold Clinical Quality Performance Groups (CQPGs) to monitor quality performance 
and a summary on each of these meetings is provided at Quality Committee each month. 

Safeguarding 

The CCG has statutory functions in relation to safeguarding and fulfils these through the 
role of the Chief Nurse (Designated professionals and named GP).  Safeguarding is a key 
agenda item at Quality Committee and through the Quality Contracts, the CCG rigorously 
monitors commissioned NHS services.  In addition, the Chief Nurse sits on both the Adults 
and Children’s Safeguarding Boards in St Helens as a statutory partner and chairs sub 
committees of both boards and in the last 12 months the CCG has significantly contributed 
to some key areas of work. 

 Audit Committee  

The role of the Audit Committee is to review the establishment and maintenance of an 
effective system of integrated governance, risk management and internal control, 

across the whole of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s activities that support the 

achievement of the CCG’s strategic objectives. It supports the Governing Body's remit 

to ensure that the CCG operates effectively, efficiently and economically and that the 
CCG's process of decision-making is robust. 

 
During 2015/16, the Committee, under delegated authority, approved the Annual Report 
and Accounts. It has also approved the Internal and External Audit Plans; the Conflict of 

Interest Policy; the CCG’s Risk Strategy; policies and strategies relating to Anti-Fraud 

and Bribery; the CCG's Detailed Financial Policies. 
 

It carried out an in-depth review of a key risk area for the CCG - its commissioning 
system. In undertaking the review the committee interviewed 11 key managers and 
senior staff; its finding have prompted a wide ranging action plan to reinforce good 
practice and improve the CCG's commissioning system. 

  
Future reviews will include work on the complaints systems and Conflicts of Interest 
guidance. The committee will engage with management in gathering assurance on the 

CCG’s actions to achieve financial sustainability.  
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 Primary Care Decision Making Committee   

The Primary Care Decision Making Committee (PCDMC) has been established on 
approval by NHSE as the decision making committee having oversight of delegated 
commissioning of primary care (General Practice).  The Committee has been formally 
operational from April 2015 and is held in public bi-monthly.  The terms of reference of the 
committee have been approved and revised to ensure any conflicts of interest arising in 
the meeting are managed by the Chair.  

 The highlights for the Primary Care Decision Making Committee for 2015/16 are: 

 The committee has had oversight of the CCG process for reviewing the 
contracts of the 11 practices that hold Personal Medical Services (PMS) 
contracts. The CCG inherited this piece of work from NHSE and although the 
timescales were challenging the process has been completed in year.  
 

 The CCG has also reviewed the two practices that hold a single Alternative 
Provider Medical Services (APMS) contract containing two schedules. This 
process has also been concluded with the contract extension agreed for two 
(plus one) years to enable the CCG to implement its ‘out of hospital’ service 
review and develop its frailty strategy. This will enable proposals to be 
developed for the Eldercare practice which manages the care of housebound 
and Care home residents. 

 

 The committee has approved the CCG Primary Care Strategy which will be 
operationalised in 2016. A number of drivers have been identified that will 
support the CCG to ensure high quality primary care services are available. 
 

 The previous practice that held the Directed Enhanced Service (DES) for staff 
dealing with violent patients serviced notice and a local practice has been 
commissioned to provide the service. 
 

 Three practices applied to temporarily close their list to new patients and one 
was approved and two rejected. One practice also applied to change their area 
boundary and to ensure all practices are dealt with fairly a set of boundary 
variation principles were approved. 

 

 The CCG submits quarterly returns to NHS England rating the delegated 
functions of co-commissioning of primary care and provision of out of hours GP 
cover as good. 
 

 In addition to the PCDMC the CCG has also established a Primary Care Quality 
and Operational Group which is the co-commissioning working group. This 
group has also supported practices who are challenged (e.g. work force 
problems), to resolve the issues. 

 

 Integrated Programme Steering Group  

The IPSG oversees programmes and projects relating to integrated areas of work with 
the local authority and has operational responsibility for the maintenance and delivery of 
the Section 75 Overarching agreement between the CCG and Council. The 
membership is derived from both organisations and is jointly chaired by the CCG and 
Council. 

The highlights for the IPSG in 2015-16 have been: 

 Development of the Better Care Fund plan for approval by the CCG and Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
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 Continued development of the integrated commissioning team arrangements 

 Oversight of pooled budget arrangements for both the BCF and Continuing Health 
Care including the development of performance metrics and reporting 

 Oversight and understanding of partners respective financial position 

 

 Member’s Council (GP Forum)  

 The group’s “Member’s Council” the GP Forum represents all of the member practices 

of the group and reflects their opinion.  The Member’s Council has specific 

responsibility for: 

 

    Agreeing the vision, values and overall strategic direction of the group 

 Approving the groups’ constitution and proposed changes to the constitution  

 

The Member’s Council holds the Governing Body to account for the functions that the 
group has delegated to it through regular meetings with the Chair and Clinical Chief 
Executive. The full terms of reference can be found on the CCG website. 

The GP Forum has continued to develop in 2015/16 in terms of the clinical debate and 
review of CCG’s objectives and associated strategies. This is particularly significant in 
relation to improving the quality of Primary Care services and the full CCG membership 
role in this.  During 2015/16 the forum has debated and approved delegated 
commissioning of GP contracts along with continuing to engage the GP members in 
shaping local service models such as community children’s clinics and the acute 
visiting service.  The forum also provides the environment for the members to 
collaborate with Local Authority colleagues in key areas, for instance the Healthy Child 

Programme. 
 

  Key Highlights from Member’s Council in 2015/16 include:  

 Review of constitution 

 Out of hospital redesign 

 Referral management 

 Liverpool City Region and CCG Network update 

 Financial updates and discussions 

 Agreeing and reviewing investment in winter pressures schemes 

 Future of General Practice – clinical debate discussion 

 Clinical discussion and debate on the Acute Visiting Scheme 

 CCG 360o stakeholder survey  

 Medicines Management performance and review 

 Clinical pathway redesign discussions 

 Out of hours service update 

 

 HR & Remuneration Committee 

The Committee ensures compliance with statutory requirements.  The Committee 
reviews and agrees appraisal and remuneration of Executives and also has 
responsibility for Organisational Development Strategy, Human Resources & Equality 
and Diversity.  The full terms of reference are detailed in the CCG constitution. 
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During 2015/16, the Committee has continued to review compliance with its statutory 
requirements in relation to Equality and Diversity and delivery of our Equality 
Objectives, the 15/16 E&D Annual Report can be accessed via the CCG website. 

 
The Committee has also ensured the ratification of core CCG HR policies and protocols 
as part of an agreed work plan with the North West Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) 
and from March 1st 2016 with the Midlands and Lancashire CSU following the re-
procurement of commissioning support services during 15/16.  A staff training plan has 
been developed following sessions with the CCG Senior Management Team to 
understand both staff development and Organisational Development priorities to enable 
the strengthening of the delivery of the CCG priorities in 2016/17.  The Organisational 
Development Strategy has been subject to review in-year to reflect the on-going needs 
of staff and the organisation.  The refreshed OD strategy is due for approval by the 
Committee in June 2016   

 
Work has remained on-going to ensure compliance with statutory and mandatory 
training requirements. 

 

Performance of the Membership Body and Governing Body 

Overall NHS Constitutional performance and CCG Assurance Performance is detailed in the 
performance section.  In addition to this, and as a membership, we receive regular updates on 
the quarterly NHS England (NHSE) assurance process through our Members’ Council 
meetings.   We are consulted on all matters in accordance with our constitutional rights but 
also are well consulted on general financial risks, strategic planning processes and pathway 
work. 

The Governing Body undertakes regular facilitated development sessions and twice yearly 
‘away days’ to ensure appropriate development of key skills to support the effective 
stewardship of our organisation.    Members have personal development reviews supported by 
the Lay Chair and Clinical Chief Executive/Clinical Lead (the CCG Accountable Officer). 

In the last 12 months, the CCG has seen a change in its Senior leadership team and also 
Governing Body.   It has re-appointed its two Lay members supporting lay leadership and 
continuity of support in this challenging period for the CCG, effective governance and 
public/patient involvement during this period and as we move into 16/17 is crucial to support 
delivery of the CCG Commissioning Plans moving forward.  The Lay Chair - Geoffrey Appleton 
has ensured the CCG relationships with key partners are strengthened through his role on the 
Health and Wellbeing Board, Safeguarding Boards and relations with Chief Executives and Lay 
members of partner and provider organisations and in addition, taking a leadership role in 
supporting development of the Governing Body.  The Chief Nurse who is also Safeguarding 
Lead - Professor Sarah O’Brien has led on the CCG Out of Hospital Nursing and Intermediate 
Care Review and also the CCG Primary Care Nursing Strategy.  Dr Omar Shaikh has stood 
down as a key Governing Body member and we express our thanks to Omar on his tenure as 
deputy clinical lead and Governing Body member during 15/16 supporting the membership and 
CCG team around clinical leadership and partnership engagement during this period, Omar 
has been with the CCG throughout its authorisation and beyond .  Dr Michael Ejuoneatse was 
appointed as Deputy Chair/Deputy Clinical Lead and we welcome Dr Ejuoneatse who has 
been a full Governing Body Member since our inception into this role. Dr Paul Rose was re-
appointed unopposed to commence a new term with the Governing Body and will continue to 
act as clinical lead for Cancer driving improvements in outcomes locally for patients and 
steering the direction and implementation of the CCG Cancer strategy with our partners.    

Dr Debra King, the Independent Secondary Care Consultant on the Governing Body also stood 
down this year and the membership and Governing Body wish to also express thanks to Dr 
King for her Sterling support of the Governing Body and expert insight regarding local plans 
regarding quality in intermediate care services and care of the elderly.   
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The CCG wishes to express its sincere thanks to Sarah Johnson, Deputy Chief Executive as 
she left the CCG in 15/16.  Sarah has been with the CCG pre-authorisation and beyond and 
led the Authorisation process for the CCG, subsequently undertaking the Director of 
Commissioning and Operations at the CCG and more latterly undertaking the role of Deputy 
Chief Executive Role.  We wish Sarah every success in the future and express our thanks for 
all her contributions to the CCG during this time. 

Julie Abbott was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive following Sarah’s departure, moving 
from her role as Deputy Chief Finance Officer and we look forward to working with Julie in 
16/17 and her leadership of the CCG Operational Plan for 16/17 has been invaluable. 

Liz Gaulton the Local Authority Director of Public Health moved onto pastures new in the latter 
part of 15/16.  Liz has been a key member of the Governing Body from the outset and has 
been key in the strengthening of the integrated children’s arrangements in the borough.  We 
also wish Liz well for the future. 

Finally the CCG said goodbye to Eddie Cunningham, the CCG patient advocate, again Eddie 
has proved invaluable in supporting the CCG since its authorisation on different aspects of 
public involvement programmes.  Eddies passion and drive for raising awareness of different 
health issues in the borough and his particular passion for Mental Health issues has supported 
the CCG in gaining important insight on these matters to inform our commissioning plans.  The 
Local Voluntary Sector have commended Eddie for his support and time spent in the 
community raising awareness of the CCG and how to get involved and our links with the 
‘Saints’ has further helped raise awareness around our medicines waste campaign. 

 CCG performance  

The membership & Governing Body receives regular updates on CCG performance and 

commissioned service outcomes through the Members’ Council and via information published 

on our website.   Our elected Governing Body members represent us on Contract review and 

1Quality Boards for major providers and in partnership committees with the Local Authority.  

Full appraisal is provided within the performance analysis, however the Members Council is 

pleased to report that the CCG achieved the below: 

 Referral to Treatment for Admitted patients has consistently been above the National 

Target of 90% since April 2013. 

 Referral to Treatment for Non-Admitted patients have consistently been above the 
National Target of 95% since April 2013. 

 Referral to Treatment for Incomplete patients has consistently been above the National 
Target of 93% since April 2013. 

 Patients waiting for a Diagnostic Test has been below the National tolerance of 1% 
since April 2013. 

 National Cancer waits have been consistently met, except in a small number of cases 
related to the 62 day target.  The CCG Clinical Cancer lead reviews each and every 
case that breaches with the provider 

 St Helens CCG ambulance Red calls are on track to meet the targets set at year end.  

 Patients diagnosed with Dementia has continued to improve over the last 3 years  

 The CCG re-tendered for a new IAPT service which started in November 2015 and 
initial reports suggest the new service is providing excellent care for the patients of St 
Helens 

 The percentage of patients being admitted to a Stroke Unit with 4 hours within St 
Helens CCG is reporting 83.3% for Quarter 2 2015/16 against a National Average of 
62.4%. (update for Q3) 
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 Engagement 

In the last 12 months, the membership, Governing Body and CCG commissioning team have 
worked ever closer. The CCG has made excellent progress with its public engagement strategy 
implementation reported to the Governing Body and detail can be found in the public 
engagement section.  The Governing Body has endorsed the move towards developing more 
integrated approaches to engagement in the borough with partners resulting in a strategy 
refresh for this purpose.  This will strengthen current integrated working arrangements even 
further, by planning engagement more effectively and combing our resources regarding key 
priorities as determined by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  We hope that the CCG Patient 
and Experience and Involvement Group will have a central role in leading this approach during 
16/17.  The Clinical Chief Executive/Clinical Lead, six GP elected Governing Body members, 
the Chief Nurse, other Governing Body members, the Practice Manager representative and 
primary care team engage the membership through our Members’ Council, and annual practice 
visiting programme, two-monthly protected learning time events, the practice nurse forum and 
practice manager forum.   

This year the CCG has supported practices through the PMS review process under delegated 
commissioning arrangements with NHS England lead by our primary care team in the first year 
of delegated commissioning arrangements.  The review this year will lead some financial risk 
within our practices with reduced budgets following review and the CCG will continue to 
support practices during this time.  The Team have undertaken this work with little additional 
resource and are commended for their management of this in 15/16.  

With the leadership of our Lay Member for PPI, Patient Advocate and CCG engagement team, 
we have seen a close liaison between each practice’s Patient participation group [PPG] and 
the CCG PPG health forum.  These continue to be closely linked to Healthwatch.  We have 
participated in a large number of CCG coordinated events for providers, NHSE, third sector, 
patients and carers, and the details are outlined in our engagement section. 

Our public membership continues to grow and currently stands at 497 and we have over 4067 
Twitter followers.   

We have continued to engage with our secondary care consultants through GP-Consultant 
Listening Events held at Langtree Park Stadium. This will continue during 16/17 and further 
strengthen better integration and better pathway planning in the borough. 

 Partnerships and Integration 

Our closest partnership in commissioning terms is with our local authority. In the last year we 
have seen further strengthening of our commissioning functions with the embedding of  both 
organisations children’s and adult’s commissioning staff into single teams. Partnerships have 
further developed under the delivery of the NHS Five Year Forward view as it covers the 
arrangements relating to the STP development and neighbouring CCGs as explained above. 
 

 Integration with the Local Authority 

The 5 Year Forward View sets a clear ambition for “new partnerships with local communities 
and local authorities”. Whilst the initial planning guidance focuses mainly on NHS services 
developing a credible plan will require the NHS to work closely with social care, public health 
and other local government services. Within St Helens there is a clear track record of 
successful partnership working with the LA: 

Mike Palin, the new LA Chief Executive commenced his first year with the LA following the 
departure of Carole Hudson, and since initial CCG authorisation the Director of Adult Social 
Care (now Strategic Director People’s Services - SDPS) and Director of Public Health have 
been voting members of the CCG Governing Body. Key LA Directors are also members of the 
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Finance and Performance Committee, Quality Committee and Integrated Programme 
(Commissioning) Steering Group. 

The LA is represented at CCG Senior Management Team, and the Overarching Section 75 
arrangements in place with the LA covering all integrated arrangements and including 
information sharing protocol have been reviewed and strengthened in 15/16.  The CCG and LA 
have pooled budgets for the majority of Continuing Health Care (CHC) and share financial risk 
on the pooled fund of circa £24m. CHC is hosted and managed by the LA including the 
assessment and management of cases.  The Pooled budget for the Better Care Fund is circa 
£16m, and the CCG has received significant assurance from internal audit review relating to 
BCF arrangements in Year 1.  Following the Peer review of HWBB in 2015 – the LA, CCG and 
other partners continue to work collaboratively to develop the HWBB and to refresh key 
priorities for the next three years significant Public Health leadership and engagement. 
 

The Local Authority is undergoing an internal restructure towards its own vision for 2020.  This 
has led to the development of a People’s Directorate. The outcome is the aspiration to build on 
what is currently working very effectively locally whilst aspiring to be an “adaptive innovator”. 
Integrated partnership working is key to this aspiration with the LA seeking to develop stronger 
working partnerships with the public, private and voluntary sectors working together more 
efficiently to protect public services. The approach resonates with ambitions outlined for the 
NHS within the 5 Year Forward View for example empowering the community locally to enable 
them to find solutions and reduce over reliance on public services, empowering employees to 
be creative and to innovate in order to drive efficiency and integrating to achieve more.  

For the next financial year, the CCG and the LA continue to review and look at developments 
for further joint working arrangements and are working together to actively consider and 
develop:  

 Shared Commissioning Director level post working across the CCG and LA 
accountable to both statutory bodies but with line management responsibility to the 
SDPS. 

 Review the current commissioning team structure to ensure remains fit for purpose. 

 Shared management capacity in key roles. 

 Look at options for even closer working in relation to back office functions; 
procurement and contracting and performance management which offers VFM. 

 Further expansion of pooled budget arrangements to include Children’s CHC and  
pooling of commissioning staff budgets. 

 Review arrangements and progress with integrated personal commissioning (IPC) 
combining health and social care funding for those with complex needs 

 Opportunities relating to housing and community safety. 

 Continued close working with Public Health in relation to support for the CCG  
       Operational Plan. 
 

Better Care Fund 

2016-17 represents the second year of investment in the Better Care Fund (BCF). The Health 
and Wellbeing Board met in March 2016 and the board delegated authority to senior officers of 
the CCG and LA, together with the Chair of the CCG and HWBB to approve the plans to be 
submitted to NHSE in April 2016.    

The BCF fund for St Helens has increased from a total of £15.983m in 2015/16 to £16.366m in 
2016/17.  The CCG and LA are continuing to work together to produce a detailed project plan 
that underpins the planning return. The 2016/17 project plan is based on the schemes 
delivered in the current year, and remains largely unchanged. 

Performance of key BCF metrics for 15/16 is shown in the tables below: 
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2015/16 metrics extracted from Qtr 3 
submission 

 

Metric 1: Admissions to residential 
Care  

% Change in rate of permanent admissions to 
residential care per 100,000 

  

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against the 
metric? 

No improvement in performance 

Commentary on progress: Target 15/16 256 admissions (719 per 100k, 
Pop 35,578). Current position 215 admissions 
as at end of December 2015 (604 per 100k 
population), if continue at the same rate for the 
next quarter this would equate to 286 
admissions (30 above target for the year). 

  

  

Metric 2: Reablement Change in annual percentage of people still at 
home after 91 days following discharge, 
baseline to 2015/16 

  

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against the 
metric? 

On track for improved performance, but not to 
meet full target 

Commentary on progress: For Quarter 1 there were 81 people out of 89 
still at home after 91 days. For Quarter 2 there 
were 88 people out of 101 still at home after 91 
days.  For Quarter 3 there were 67 out of 73 still 
at home after 91 days. This gives a cumulative 
outturn of 90%. The actual reported 
performance will be based on a snapshot of 
people discharged to reablement in 
Oct/Nov/Dec 2015 i.e. Q4 performance 

  

Metric 3: Local performance metric 
as described in your approved BCF 
plan / Q1 / Q2 return 

The original measure was scaled down to 2.5% 
due to changes in the overall BCF NEL ambition 
and the current measure is as follows: Reduce 
the RATE of emergency hospital admissions for 
falls injuries for St Helens CCG registered 
patients aged 65 and over by 2.5% in 2015/16 
from the 2015/15 baseline (indirectly 
standardised per 100,000 includes expected 
population increase in population aged 65+) 

  

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against the 
metric? 

On track to meet target 
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Commentary on progress: Falls admissions are currently below plan year 
to date following good performance in Quarter 2 
and 3 for Non Elective Admissions. The actual 
performance for Qtr 3 is significantly less than 
plan however this data is subject to data quality 
refresh in March which may alter this value. 

  

Metric 4: Local defined patient 
experience metric as described in 
your approved BCF plan / Q1 /Q2 
return 

Satisfaction with an integrated service provision 
(Reablement). Comparable with Adult Survey 
which measures satisfaction with Social 
Services. 85% target for extremely and very 
satisfied. Indicator based upon rating of 
satisfaction in reablement survey. Target outturn 
of 85% is based on the same question asked in 
the Annual Adult Survey but increased from the 
average of 65% to allow for a direct service 
provision. 

  

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against the 
metric? 

On track to meet target 

Commentary on progress: 88% of respondents identified extremely/very 
satisfied with service provided at the end of Q1. 
For Quarter 2 a total of 62 out of 70 respondents 
identified themselves as being extremely/very 
satisfied, with 2 people identifying being quite 
dissatisfied. For Quarter 3 a total of 84 out of 91 
respondents identified themselves as being 
extremely/very satisfied, with no individual being 
dissatisfied. 

 

 Governance Assurance 

The CCG membership is represented by a GP and Practice Manager on the CCG Audit 
committee.  We have utilised MIAA to support a number of initiatives linked to governance and 
assurance in addition to the regular annual audit plan such as a baseline assessment of and 
compliance with the NHSE Assurance Framework and commissioning/Five Year Plan.  In 
15/16, in terms of good practice, the CCG asked MIAA to undertake a series of Committee 
Effectiveness reviews to further understand how the CCG can strengthen its corporate 
governance arrangements, each committee is now reviewing the outcomes which will help 
further with the effectiveness and robustness of our operations and decision making.  In 
addition a full review of the CCG Conflict of Interest Policy has again been undertaken and 
approved by NHSE as part of our on-going implementation of delegated Primary Care 
Commissioning.  The CCG has actively undertaken development sessions with staff and the 
Board in relation to Conflicts of Interest and has also led this workshop with the CCG Network. 

 Finance and Commissioning 

The membership have been fully appraised via the GP Forum and various engagement 
opportunities regarding the CCG financial position and been involved in discussions in relation 
to commissioning plans in support of sustainability and recovery and CCG commissioning 
priorities during the year.  
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Whilst the CCG is in a period of recovery, together with the support of the membership, the 
CCG have delivered some key achievements over the past two years. Continual engagement 
via the GP Forum, Practice Learning Time Events and PN and Practice Manager forums have 
been key to this, for example the Primary Care Nursing Strategy, Review and delivery of the 
Quality Contract are just a tow examples of the work we have undertaken together as a CCG.  
some key achievements are outlined in the performance overview of the report. 

 

Some of the CCG priorities moving forward agreed with the Governing Body and GP 
Membership include primary care, Out of Hospital Nursing and Frailty. In addition, the CCG is 
working with the St Helens Health and Wellbeing Board in determining the strategic priorities 
for the borough. 
 
The Members Council and Governing Body have been fully appraised on the CCG financial 
challenges and has agreed a recovery plan for the next five years in order to bring the CCG 
back to financial balance and delivery its full statutory duties and expected 1% surplus.  The 
CCG is developing its five year sustainability and transformation plan to support system 
change, together with a challenging QIPP plan as we move into 16/17.  This has been fully 
appraised and debated at the public Governing Body meeting and will be approved by NHS 
England early 16/17. 

The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework 

The CCG’s Risk Management Framework is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level 
rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and statutory 
duties; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to: 

 

 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s 
policies, aims and objectives;  

 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 

 
The Governing Body has developed the annual corporate objectives, and the evaluation of the 
risks to achieving these objectives are set out in the Governing Body Assurance Framework 
(GBAF), which is regularly reviewed and scrutinised by the Executive Risk and Assurance 
Committee, sub-Committees and Governing Body. 

 
The GBAF forms part of the CCG’s key assurance process and its purpose is to provide the 
Governing Body with ‘reasonable’ assurance that internal systems are functioning effectively. It 
is a high level document that is used to inform and give assurance to the Governing Body that 
the potential risks to achieving key objectives are recognised and that controls are in place or 
being developed to manage these potential risks.  

 
Risks are rated, and controls that will address these risks are identified. Gaps in control or 
assurance are noted and action plans to close gaps summarised and updated. Potential and 
actual sources of assurance are identified and the latter are also rated for the level of 
assurance provided. A summary (dashboard) of the assurance levels for all assurance 
framework entries is updated each quarter for tracking of assurance and accompanies the full 
document for initial submission to the Governing Body. 

 
The Corporate Risk Register provides the Governing Body with a summary of the principal 
risks the organisation is currently facing, with a summary of the actions needed and being 
taken to reduce these risks to an acceptable level. The information contained in the Corporate 
Risk Register is sufficient to allow the Governing Body to be involved in prioritising and 
managing significant risks. The risks described in the Corporate Risk Register will be more 
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wide-ranging than those in the Governing Body Assurance Framework, covering a number of 
domains. 

 
Potential risks to achieving organisational strategic objectives are identified in the GBAF. 
Where gaps in control are identified in the GBAF, the risk management process allows these to 
be added as ‘actual’ risks to the Corporate Risk Register if appropriate. The two documents 
thus work together as a system to provide the Governing Body with assurance and action 
plans on risk management in the organisation. 

 
The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed and updated on a bi-monthly basis by risk leads and 
each sub-committee holds and reviews its assigned risks at each meeting via its committee risk 
register.  These feed into the overall Corporate Risk Register which is presented for review and 
scrutiny to the Executive Risk & Assurance Committee Bi-monthly.  

 
The CCG’s risk appetite is determined by the amount of risk that the CCG is prepared to 
accept, be exposed to or tolerate at any point in time. The primary aim is to reduce risks to the 
lowest possible level (where this is reasonably practical). Where risks cannot be avoided, plans 
to mitigate the residual risk are put in place whilst enabling the CCG to support innovation and 
diversity in our commissioning intentions to ultimately improve the efficiency and value of local 
health services.  

 
The CCG does not (under any circumstances) accept any risk which would potentially/actually 
result in non-compliance with legislation or statutory responsibilities. Similarly, risks which 
threaten patient and/or staff safety are not tolerated and the CCG endeavours to minimise all 

risks of this type.  

In line with the Strategic Objectives for Risk Management, contained within the St Helens CCG 
Risk Management Strategy 2015/16-2018; the CCG has sought to; 

 Establish clearly defined responsibilities for risk management and lines of accountability 
throughout the organisation; 

 Develop and maintain a Corporate Risk Register; 

 Embed operational and project risk registers across all areas of the organisation; 

 Embed a systematic process for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment and 
monitoring of risks across all areas of the organisation; 

 Ensure that staff are trained and competent in their role and that they take account of 
the hazards and risks likely to be encountered in the work place. 

 
The CCG commissions a range of training programmes which include specific mandatory 
training for particular staff groups which aims to minimise the risks inherent in their daily work. 
Information Governance, Counter Fraud, Fire, Health and Safety, Equality and Diversity, 
Equality Impact Assessment and Safeguarding Training are mandatory training requirements 
for all staff. The CCG OD Strategy and Training Plan further supports staff development on a 
broader scale. 

 
Targeted bespoke training is provided to the designated risk leads to support development and 
management of risk registers.   

 
The CCG has a sound Health & Safety Policy which details our incident reporting system and 
this is overseen by the Executive Risk & Assurance Committee.  Training is provided to all staff 
in relation to the policy and procedures via the MLCSU who undertake regular risk 
assessments. 

 
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) and Quality Impact Assessments (QIAs) are integral to 
the CCG’s core commissioning business and assessments will be carried out appropriately 
against any commissioning plan or objective as part of the CCG commissioning process.  This 
is actively supported by the CCG’s Equality & Diversity Lead, CCG Governance and Quality 
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Teams.  In addition, regular training is provided to staff in relation to undertaking EIAs and 
QIAs, and this is reported to the Remuneration Committee. 
 
A strategy for Public Engagement and Involvement is in place to ensure key public 
stakeholders are involved in the development of the CCG’s strategies and plans which impact 
on them. The CCG engages with the public through a variety of methods as outlined within our 
engagement strategy, on its strategic commissioning plan, raising public awareness on key 
issues / health messages; undertaking communications through the media (e.g. during winter 
pressures, times of financial challenge and informing on access to services on key health 
messages). Details can be found on the CCG Internet Engagement Pages, within the CCG’s 
commissioning strategy, and more recently within the 16/17 operational plan and recovery 
plan. .    

 
Over the year we estimate we have reached over 18,000 people across the borough in relation 
to our commissioning plans as they have evolved, this is through the borough forums, CCG 
and partner events, networks, Healthwatch and CVS channels, Twitter, Facebook and CCG 
membership scheme.  The CCG has also sought patient representation on IAPT, Speech and 
Language Therapy and Minor Eye Service procurement panels, good practice we endeavour to 
replicate during 16/17.   

 
Using quality social marketing strategies with a sound evidence base, the CCG Has continued 
to deliver its local ‘Waste Not Want Not’ campaign.  This campaign was developed via the 
insight work of 500 local people from 16 years of age.  The targeted campaign across the 
borough used social media, radio, billboards and media in all 35 practices and partner 
buildings to encourage a behaviour change around wasting medicines and storing medicines.  
This supports the CCG’s sustainability plans and risks relating to financial performance.  In 
addition, the CCG ‘Simple things make a difference’ campaign has commenced roll out with a 
key aim of supporting the public in understand the simple changes in behaviour that can 
support the local NHS e.g. through the awareness of impact on not attending appointments, 
and using services appropriately.  The CCG Communications and Marketing strategy will aim 
to reduce risks in this area further as it is refreshed for 16/17 and beyond and will fully underpin 
our STP and operational plan for 16/17. 
 

Risk Assessment  

 
St Helens CCG has a comprehensive Risk Management Strategy in place which follows NHS 
Executives Controls Assurance risk management standards.  

 
All risk registers use the same risk scoring matrices to ensure consistency in describing risks 
across the organisation; these matrices are based on the NPSA matrices but have been 
customised for local use to reflect the CCG’s tolerance to risk.  MIAA have recently reviewed 
the CCG’s GBAF as part of the 2015/16 work programme. The assessment undertaken 
covered: 

 The structure of the Assurance Framework meets the requirements  

 There is Governing Body engagement in the review and use of the Assurance 
Framework 

 The quality of the content of the Assurance Framework demonstrates clear connectivity 
with the Governing Body agenda and external environment   

For each of the above, MIAA have provided positive statements: 

 The organisation’s Assurance Framework is structured to meet the NHS requirements.  

 The Assurance Framework is visibly used by the Governing Body 
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 The Assurance Framework reflects the risks discussed by the Governing Body. 
 

 
The updated Risk Management Strategy was ratified by the Audit Committee on 18th March 
2016.  The following key elements are contained within the Strategy: 
 

 Risk Management Strategy, Aims and Objectives; 

 Roles, Responsibilities and Accountability; 

 The Risk Management Process – Risk Identification, Risk Assessment, Risk Treatment, 
Monitoring and Review, Risk Prevention; 

 Risk Grading – Criteria, and; 

 Training and Support 

 
St Helens CCG has established a number of mechanisms for identifying and managing risks 
including risk profiling methodology, incident reporting, complaints and litigation data, and staff 
concerns/whistle-blowing. 
 
Risk management and the ensuing development of risk registers is generally achieved using a 
dual ‘top-down’ and ‘bottom-up’ approach to identifying and managing risks. The ‘top-down’ 
element is addressed through the Governing Body Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk 
Register. These two documents are based on models which have previously been accepted as 
meeting audit requirements. 
 
The ‘bottom-up’ element of the risk management system best fits with organisational structures 
and this has therefore been based on the directorate arrangements and subsequently director 
portfolios and teams. All functional leads have identified their arrangements for developing and 
reviewing risk registers and escalating risks tied into the ‘programme management approach’ 
to delivery of the CCG plans. 
 
St Helens CCG has put in place policies, procedures, guidance and support to ensure that 
personal and corporate information is handled legally, securely, efficiently and effectively, in 
order to deliver high quality services. Performance is monitored through the completion of the 
annual Information Governance (IG) Toolkit return and reports to the Executive Risk and 

Assurance Committee. 
 

Controls include: 
 

 Mandatory induction and refresher IG training for all staff  

 Identifying the movement of personal data and assessing associated risks, 
minimising where possible  

 Ensuring the encryption of all confidential data stored on portable devices 

 Reporting, investigation and escalation of all information governance incidents 
 

The Corporate Risk Register is managed centrally with risk updates, additions and 
removals sought monthly from each of the following Committees; 
 

 Quality Committee 

 Finance and Performance Committee  

 Medicines Management Committee 

 HR & Remuneration Committee 

 Integrated Programme Steering Group 

 Recovery QIPP Group 

 Executive Risk and Assurance Committee 

 Primary Care Decision Making Committee 
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The Executive Risk and Assurance Committee has responsibility for Quality Assurance of the 
risk register assessment and provides a forum for full corporate review of each committee risk 
register as described in the risk management framework section. 
 
The Corporate Risk Register supports the CCG Governing Body Assurance Framework by 
identifying operational risks which may impact on the ability to provide assurance against 
strategic risks.  Table 1, Table 2 and table 3 (below) summarises the CCG’s Risk Profile. 
 
Table 1:  Directorate split of current strategic and operational risks as at 31st March 2016 
 

Directorate No. of Strategic 
(GBAF) Risks 

No. of Operational 
Risks (CRR) 

Total no. of 
risks identified 
 

Governance (inc Engagement and 
HR/OD) 
 

4 4 8 

Commissioning 
 

3 2 5 

Finance, Performance and 
Contracting 
 

2 9 11 

Primary Care 
 

1 7 8 

Medicines Management 
 

0 1 1 

Quality & Safety 
 

2 15  17 

 

Table 2: Directorate Risk Profile as at 31st March 2016 – Corporate Risk Register 

Directorate Extreme Risks High Risks Moderate 
Risks 

Low Risks 
 

 
Governance (inc Engagement and 
HR/OD 

 
0 

 
4 

 
0 

 
0 

Commissioning 
 

1 1 0 0 

Finance, Performance and 
Contracting 
 

4 2 3 0 

Primary Care 
 

1 5 1 0 

Medicines Management 
 

0 1 0 0 

Quality & Safety 
 

2 12 0 1 
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Table 3: Directorate Risk Profile as at 31st March 2016 - GBAF 

Directorate Extreme Risks High Risks Moderate 
Risks 

Low Risks 
 

 
Governance (inc Engagement and 
HR/OD 

0 2 1 1 

Commissioning 
 

0 2 1 0 

Finance, Performance and 
Contracting 
 

1* 1 0 0 

Primary Care 
 

0 0 1 0 

Medicines Management 
 

0 0 0 0 

Quality & Safety 
 

0 2 0 0 

*risk against financial delivery 

A total of 50 (CRR & GBAF) risks were identified during 2015/16: 

 12 GBAF risks 

 38 CRR current risks 

 21 Removed risks (from Q1 April 15 - Q4 Mar 16) 

 The breakdown of the risks as at April 2015: 

 5 risks initially rated as Extreme (scored between 15-25)  

 16 risks initially rated as High (scored between 8-12)  

 10 risks initially rated as Medium (scored between 4-6)  

 5 risks initially rated as Low (scored between 1-3)  

By the end of March 2016 the breakdown of total risks was as follows: 

 8 risks rated as Extreme (scored between 15-25) 

 25  risks initially rated as High (scored between 8-12) 

 4  risks initially rated as Medium (scored between 4-6) 

 1  risk initially rated as Low (scored between 1-3) 

Major risks to strategic objectives are fully outlined in the GBAF and are accessible via the 
Governing Body Papers on the CCG website on a quarterly basis.  The CCG aims to further 
improve its rigour in reporting against commissioning delivery and performance during 16/17.  
Overall CCG Performance is reported through a governing body performance framework 
developed in collaboration with MIAA.  Information on this is provided in the performance 
section. In addition, a primary care performance framework is under development which will 
further complement the overall CCG performance and assurance reporting both to NHS 
England and through our internal governance assurance framework. 

Management of conflicts of interest is taken very seriously by the CCG and we work within a 
robust Conflict of Interest Management Policy and Framework in undertaking our CCG 
Business.  Assurance on this is provided quarterly to NHSE England and the CCG undertakes 
training and development with staff and the Governing Body and this has been a key focus for 
the CCG during 16/17 as we have embraced delegated commissioning of primary care.  We 
recognise that failure to manage this effectively can and will result in a loss of public and 
partner confidence in the CCG.  The CCG has worked with NHS England and also Counter 
Fraud to ensure that its policy and the embedding of this into the CCG and we work to 
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excellent standards in this regard.  MIAA will undertake a full review of the CCG policy and 
adherence with the policy in 16/17. 

The CCG also undertook a self-assessment with regards to its compliance against its statutory 
duties in relation to Emergency Planning, Resilience and Response (EPRR), and assessed 
itself as fully compliant in this area against the national standards required as part of the Civil 
Contingencies Act and awaits formal assessment from NHS England. 

A full review of the GBAF for 15/16 is underway with the GBAF for 16/17 currently being set by 
the Governing Body for review in May 2016.  This will ensure the CCG fully understands the 
further potential key risk areas in relation to governance, finance, quality, commissioning, 
patient engagement and primary care, and any gaps in assurance and control as we enter 
16/17.  Two separate sessions have taken place in 2015/16 with the Governing Body as they 
have sought to take time out to fully review progress against risk mitigation and closure of any 
gaps.   

The CCG has set outs its full Internal Audit Plan for 16/17 which will continue to support the 
CCG with on-going risk assessment and assurance performance in key areas of risk, this 
includes additional areas such as GP engagement.  Engagement of the membership is key to 
the success of the CCG’s commissioning plan and recovery plans moving forward and the 
CCG staff, primary care team and Clinical leads strive to ensure the GP Forum (members 
council) and practice staff as fully engaged and informed as possible.  We believe that asking 
MIAA to undertake a review on our engagement approach, we will understand any further 
areas for strengthening and improvement.  The CCG 360 stakeholder survey undertaken as 
part of the CCG Assurance process with NHS England will further help us to understand any 
areas of risk in our partnership working and across the membership.  A full action plan will be 
developed on receipt of the results in May 2016. 

MIAA will also undertake a review of the CCG recovery plan and decision making process in 
16/17.  2015/16 has seen the CCG undertake an internal review of commissioning and limited 
assurance was also received by MIAA. This has led to a strengthening of its prioritisation and 
decision making, including programme delivery approach as the review highlighted some key 
risk areas in relation to operations, capacity & capability.  A full action plan was presented to 
the Governing Body in March 2016 which has been approved with many of the actions being 
addressed and resolved has we move into 16/17.  The review of the recovery plan and 
decision making process will ensure the CCG has developed robust processes to underpin 
effective planning and delivery. 

The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework 

A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the clinical 
commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than 
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness. 
 
The CCG identifies and prioritises risk at strategic level through the CCG Governing Body 
Assurance Framework (GBAF).  The GBAF details the key strategic objectives for the CCG.  
The Governing Body and Senior Management team have actively assessed the potential risks 
to delivery of its objectives and the key controls in place to ensure effective delivery.  Any gaps 
in control and assurance have been identified with action plans developed to ensure any gaps 
in control and assurance that were highlighted at the beginning of the year are addressed.  The 
GBAF feeds down into the corporate risk register as risks become realised and require active 
management by the appropriate sub-Committee and lead officer.  The GBAF is presented for 
assurance and review to the Governing Body on a quarterly basis and is overseen centrally by 
the Executive Risk and Assurance Committee.  
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All risk registers use the same risk scoring matrices to ensure consistency in describing risks 

across the organisation; these matrices are based on the NPSA matrices but have been 

customised for local use to reflect the CCG’s tolerance to risk.   

In addition to the above the CCG uses a robust project management approach to delivery 
providing assurance on delivery of objectives to the Finance and Performance Committee and 
Governing Body / GP Forum through a robust performance management framework developed 
with MIAA delivering a Governing Body Performance Framework at each meeting of the GB.  
The CCG is also in the process of developing a PMO (Programme Manage Office) approach to 
further ensure robust governance around delivery of its commissioning objectives. 
 

Information Governance  
 
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which the 
NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal identifiable 
information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an Information 
Governance Toolkit and the annual submission process provides assurances to the clinical 
commissioning group, other organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt 
with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. 
 

We place high importance on ensuring that there are robust information governance systems 
and processes in place to help protect personal and corporate information. We have 
established an information governance management framework and have developed 
information governance policies and procedures in line with the Information Governance 
Toolkit. We have ensured all staff undertake annual information governance training and have 
implemented a staff information handbook which contains information to ensure staff 
awareness of their roles and responsibilities.  The CCG has received significant assurance in 
2015/16 from MIAA in relation to its Information Governance Toolkit assessment 

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of resources 
 
The CCG applies a number of key processes to review its effectiveness in ensuring that 
resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively. The assurance system provides 
regular reporting through to the Governing Body. 
   
As detailed above, the CCG has a sound system of governance in operation with key aspects 
of the organisation’s systems and process subject to review by MIAA during 2015/16.  This 
resulted in a view of Significant assurance by MIAA for: 
 

 ESR HR/Payroll Interface 

 Information Governance Toolkit 

 Safeguarding 

 Better Care Fund 
 

Positive assessment of the Governing Body Assurance Framework as outlined above. 
 

The CCG received a rating of ‘High Assurance’ for its Finance and Budgetary Control, which 
is the highest level of assurance that can be awarded. 
 
MIAA concluded that an Assurance Framework has been established which is designed and 
operating to meet the requirements of the Annual Governance Statement and provide 
reasonable assurance that there is an effective system of internal control to manage the 
principle risks identified by the organisation.  
 
The Internal Audit Plan for 15/16 also involved a review of committee effectiveness from the 
Governing Body and all of its sub-committees, looking at committee operation, challenges and 
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how these challenges might be addressed.  This identified the Committee’s recognition of the 
important role they undertake as part of the overall governance framework at the CCG.  The 
request by the CCG to carry out this review reflects the Committee’s attentiveness to its 
responsibilities.  The Audit Committee Self- Assessment undertaken with MIAA concluded that 
the Audit Committee is delivering its core duties effectively and continues to address the 
challenges associated with its wider remit. 
 
In addition, the CCG’s overall effectiveness is subject to quarterly review by NHS England as 
part of the overall CCG Assurance Process that CCG’s adhere to, the outcomes of which are 
summarised within the Strategic Report section.   
 
The CCG assurance reviews with NHS England rated the CCG as ‘good’ in the key domains of 
being a well led organisation, in relation to its primary care delegated functions, performance 
and planning. 
 
Adopting the ‘Rightcare’ approach in 15/16 as a key priority in the commissioning plan further 
ensures good practice in relation quality and efficiencies.  The PMS and Out of Hospital 
Nursing reviews also enable the CCG to review VFM across these services.  The 
Commissioning Support re-procurement involved extensive analysis of options in this area in 
terms of value and effectiveness.  The CAMHS, Community Paediatrics and IAPT 
procurements also allowed the CCG to seek VFM across all of these areas.   
 
The CCG were not required to undertake a Value for Money self-assessment for its External 
Auditors this year and this will be assessed as part of the annual accounts audit.   
 
As a result of breakdowns in financial control at other CCGs elsewhere, NHS England decided 

in 2015 that all CCGs should undertake a CCG Financial Control Environment Assessment.  

The assessment was submitted to NHS England following input and approval from members of 

the audit committee.  The assessment indicates that the CCG scores favourably with regard to 

the financial processes, financial reporting and budgetary control undertaken by the shared 

finance team, a view that is supported by the internal audit awards of High assurance for 

financial systems and high assurance for budgetary control.  

The assessment however also recognised the CCG’s need for improvement with regard to the 

in-year financial position and subsequently the level of net risk and the achievement of the 

QIPP targets. 

Feedback from delegation chains regarding business, use of resources and 

responses to risk 

During 2015/16, the Cheshire and Merseyside CCGs have undertook a competitive re-
procurement of Commissioning Support Services following the North West CSU failing to meet 
the established Lead Provider Framework Criteria.  This exercise was led by NHS England and 
involved options and financial appraisal regarding the CCGs requirements moving forward to 
inform the contract and commissioning support specification from 16/17. 

A representative group was established across the CCGs for this purpose to manage and lead 
the procurement with NHS England.  The Group had delegated authority from the respective 
Governing Body’s to drive the procurement and decision making through.  Throughout the re-
procurement on-going assessment of risk took place and the CCG reflected this within its own 
risk arrangements via the HR & Remuneration Committee and also provided regular reports to 
the Governing Body.   

The successful new provider following the competitive tender for Commissioning Support 
Services is the Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit and the new service 
went ‘live’ from 1st March 2016.  The mobilisation of the contract and subsequent contract 
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monitoring will be overseen by a Merseyside CCG Collaborative Group which has been 
established for this purpose.  The CCG now receives monthly delivery and status reports 
regarding the contract delivery and the Key Performance Indicators have been agreed to 
further inform the required reporting arrangements across the collaborative.  The MLCSU fully 
recognises the need to deliver value for money services to the CCG’s and this was fully 
assessed as part of the procurement exercise. 

The CCG’s shared finance team spans St Helens, Knowsley and Halton CCGs under the 
Direction of the CCG shared CFO.  The team is subject to annual audit via MIAA, works to an 
annual agreed business plan and objectives are monitored via the CCG Finance and 
Performance Committee. 

Review of the effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management & Internal Control 
 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control within the clinical commissioning group. 

 

Capacity to Handle Risk  

I have accountability for ensuring there are robust arrangements in place for the identification 
and management of risk.  I am supported in this role by the Associate Director; Corporate 
Governance and Executive Leadership Team. 

The Executive Risk and Assurance Committee reports to the Governing Body on the 
development, implementation and monitoring of integrated governance systems and 
processes.  The Committee also provides assurance on the systems and processes by which 
the CCG leads, directs and controls its functions in order to achieve operational objectives.  
This committee is also responsible for the management of the risk register and GBAF.  

The CCG Senior Management Team and Executive Leadership Team have received training 
on the CCG internal systems of assurance and control and risk management and are able to 
access “hands-on” support from the Governance Team.  The SMT/ELT actively reviewed the 
CCG Risk Management Strategy for effectiveness in 2015/16 and as a result made some key 
improvements to its escalation process regarding extreme risks. 

The CCG Fosters a culture of openness and encourages the sharing of good practice and 
learning when things go wrong.  All committees and sub-committees of the CCG are 
responsible for ensuring that risks associated with their delegated responsibilities are identified, 
analysed, evaluated and treated. 

 

Review of Effectiveness 

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the 
internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical 
commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me and my 
review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter 
and other reports.  
 
The Governing Body Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the 
effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its 
principles objectives have been reviewed.  
 
I have been advised on the implications of the results of my review of the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit Committee, Quality Committee, 

Finance and Performance Committee, HR & Remuneration Committee and Executive Risk and 
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Assurance Committee, if appropriate a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 

improvement of the system is in place. 

The Governing Body receives the minutes of all committees including the Audit Committee. In 

addition, a key issues highlight report is also presented. The Executive Risk and Assurance 

Committee approves relevant policies with endorsement from the Audit Committee. The Audit 

Committee will monitor action plans managed by the relevant sub-Committee arising from 

internal audit reviews. Internal Audit is a key component of internal control and effectiveness. 

The Audit Committee will approve the annual internal audit plan and progress against the plan 

is reported to the Committee. The reviews carried out in the year assist the Director of Internal 

Audit to form his/her opinion, which in turn feeds the assurance process. 

Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 

commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion 

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning group’s system of risk 

management, governance and internal control. 

Health & Safety  

NHS St Helens CCG is a low risk organisation with a positive health and safety culture. We 

have effective policies, procedures and a safety management system in place to ensure the 

continued health, safety, welfare and development of our staff. 

 Policy  
 

NHS St Helens CCG’s aim is to set and maintain sensible and proportionate standards 

of health and safety management to ensure the wellbeing of our staff and others who 

may be affected by our activities, and to minimise the losses (financial and reputational) 

to our organisation from ill health and injury.  The CCG operates a robust policy 

approved by the Executive Risk and Assurance Committee. 

 Organisation  

The Senior Management Team (SMT) leads on the overall direction of health and 
safety and continues to improve performance through monitoring progress. 
 
To assist the CCG in fulfilling their Health and Safety responsibilities they work 

collaboratively with: 

 Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit (MLCSU) 
 
The CCG receive specialist Health and Safety Support from the MLCSU.  The Health 
and Safety Lead is assisting in the development of the Health and Safety Policy, and is 
available to staff via email and telephone, also attends on site at least quarterly for face 
to face liaison.  This service includes advice to staff around Display Screen Equipment 
(DSE) Assessments and risk assessment of health and safety issues. 

Staff are asked to complete a DSE self-assessment form which is reviewed by the 
Health and Safety Lead who will undertake a site visit if necessary, this usually leads to 
equipment being identified or in certain circumstances staff are referred to Access to 
Work for a specialist assessment. The team have undertaken 3 on site assessments 
this year.  

 Landlord– St Helens Chambers/St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council 
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The CCG’s head office is located within a private building. St Helens Chambers are 

responsible for the building, including maintaining and servicing the building.  

NHS St Helens CCG Medicine Management Team are based in the Gamble Building 

which is a council building. St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council are responsible for 

the building, including maintaining and servicing the building.  

 NHS Property Services 
 
NHS Property Services undertake an Annual Fire Risk Assessment and an Annual 
Health and Safety Audit/Inspection, of the CCG occupied areas of St Helens 
Chambers.  They produce a report and an action plan (as appropriate) which is shared 
with the landlord and the CCG to action. 

 

 Fire Risk Assessments 
 
Fire risk assessment is now conducted by St Helens Chamber and not NHS Property 
Services and as the Landlord they are legally the ‘duty holder’ for this task. This was 
conducted in January 2016 and a fire drill was conducted in December 2015. St Helens 
Chamber will be providing this information to the Health and Safety Lead in due course 
and the CCG for further review.  
 

 Incidents 

NHS St Helens CCG have reported no Health, Safety, Fire or Security related 

incidents. 

 Breakdown for Non RIDDOR 

None Reported 

 Breakdown for RIDDOR 

None Reported 

 Compliance with Mandatory Training for H&S and Fire 

Course Name March 2016 

Health & Safety Awareness 80.3% 

Fire Safety 87.3% 

             
These are significant increases from the previous year for H&S training which was 
previously at 70.3%. However, we must aim for 100% compliance in both these areas.  

 
 Security 
 
The Health and Safety Lead conducts a security audit annually and no areas of concern 
were identified.  NHS Protect issued Security Commissioning Standards in February 
2015, which came into effect from the 1st April 2015.  These were deemed not fit for 
purpose and have recently been superseded by Security Commissioning Standards 
2016/17, released on 1st April 2016.  The LSMS Security Work plan for 2016/17 will be 
developed around meeting these standards in conjunction with the CCG and the 
Contracting Team. The CCG will NOT be audited against the 2015/16 standards but will 
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be expected to provide a Self-Review expected in November 2017 on the new 
standards.  
 

 In 2016/17 we plan to:   

 
1. Review Health and Safety Policy 

2. Review ALL building compliance information/reports to ensure it is up to date.  

3. Implement new NHS Protect Security Commissioning Standards 

4. Encourage staff to complete mandatory training 

5. Undertake annual security audit 

 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 
commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning group’s system of risk 
management, governance and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded that: 
 
Significant Assurance can be given that that there is a generally sound system of internal 
control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being 
applied consistently. However, some weaknesses in the design or inconsistent application of 
controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk.  

 
During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports which identified governance, 
risk management and/or control issues which were significant to the organisation: 
 
 
Commissioning – limited assurance 
The objective of this review was to undertake a mapping exercise of the 5 year forward view, 
CCGs clinical commissioning strategy and operational plan.   
 
The review highlighted three risks, 1 high, 1 medium and 1 low level risk. 
 
The review outcomes have been fully appraised by the Chair of the Audit Committee and the 
Committee have appraised and reviewed the CCG response and action plan to address the 
findings. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Governance Arrangements; Operating Effectiveness – High Risk 
 
Issue Identified - Whilst it is acknowledged that each directorate provided a general update on 
the progress of programmes in their areas to the IPSG (relevant sub-Committee), there was 
insufficient evidence to show that all of the projects are being monitored by the group to ensure 
they are delivering their desired outcomes, or that actions have been be put in place to address 
those programmes failing to achieve their targets. 
 
The outcome of the peer reviews were reported to the Governing Body on 16th July 2015 and 
identified that a number of projects were actually part of operational core commissioning 
functions. Discussions also confirmed that the reviews had identified several programmes in 
operation that the IPSG were not aware of and had not approved prior to implementation. 
 
Specific Risk- Programmes are being put in place without the approval of the IPSG as 
required by the committees terms of reference. New programmes may not be designed to 
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ensure the achievement of the 5 year Strategic Plan and may not have clear and identifiable 
measures and expected outcomes in place.  
 
New and existing programmes may not be effectively monitored in order to assess progress 
and identify programmes that are failing to achieve targets and require additional action.  

 

Management Response   

 

Following the commissioning review (pause) the IPSG meeting in August 2015 approved a 
refreshed Commissioning Programme which detailed the Commissioning Plan and areas of 
Enhanced Commissioning. The IPSG also approved a proposed approach to programme 
management of commissioning activity. The IPSG and Governing Body also approved the 
adoption of the “Blackpool Decision Tree model” which has been adapted for local use based 
on St Helens CCG Governance structure. This ‘Blackpool decision tree’ guides decision-
makers through a number of criteria, including how it links to the CCG 5 year strategy and 
includes being clear about outcomes and other measurable. This will ensure that before any 
new programmes or projects are added to the commissioning plan they are more rigorously 
evaluated by the Senior Management Team. The model strengthens the role of the Senior 
Management Team to strengthen challenge at an earlier stage and to ensure improved testing 
of the deliverability of projects against key outcomes and targets. The progress of each 
programme will be reported to Senior Management Team in the first instance, for validation 
purposes, and then to IPSG. The IPSG will continue to be the key committee to performance 
manage commissioning activity against a revised performance framework which is in 
development.  
 

2. Content of operational plan / commissioning plan; Control Design – Medium Risk 

Issue Identified - The content and format of the commissioning plan had been reviewed and 
developed throughout 2015/16. The commissioning plan in place until May 2015 contained 
columns that linked a KPI to each project and specified the measures that would be expected 
from each project in order to determine the success of the project. Following the ‘pause’ the 
commissioning review was refreshed. A review of the refreshed commissioning plan identified 
that the plan does not contain expected outcomes of each project and measurable targets 
were not identified to determine whether the expected outcomes had been achieved.  
 
At the time of audit the CCG was in the process of carrying assessments of each project on the 
refreshed plan using a template that contained a section for ‘expected outcomes’ and ‘outcome 
success measures’. Testing confirmed that templates had been completed for several projects, 
however in some instances the measurable targets were not clear and success measures had 
not been identified.  
 
NHS England guidance stated that the operational plans should include the CCGs planned 
trajectories against the seven outcomes framework, constitutional measures and activity 
targets. These targets have not been included in either of the operational plans. The review 
confirmed that an activity planning template detailing the CCG’s targets for the seven 
outcomes framework, constitutional measures and activity targets had been produced.  
 
Specific Risk – The CCG may not be clear on the programmes that are due to take place on 
an annual basis resulting in failure to implement programmes that contribute to the 
achievement of the five year strategy.  
 
Without clearly setting out the expected outcomes of the programmes taking place the CCG is 
unable to determine whether programmes in place are effective and achieving the CCGs 
priorities.  
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Management Response: 
 

 Agreed Commissioning Plan should include clear identifiable outcomes as 
described and be monitored and reviewed to determine whether have been 
achieved.  

 Agreed – the introduction of the Blackpool model in Q3 will address this  

 The CCG will consider this approach in respect of its 2016-17 Operational 
Plan/commissioning plan however given the stage of the financial year and capacity 
issues within the CCG it will not be adopted retrospectively for 2015-16  

 

3. Forward Planning – Control Design – Low Risk 

Issue Identified - Testing identified that there was no process in place for formally reviewing 
2014/15 performance at committee level and using the outcomes as a driver to inform the 
2015/16 operational/commissioning plan to ensure that weaknesses are addressed and 
lessons learned have been utilised in the development of the plan. 
 
Specific Risk – The CCG fails to identify areas of good practice that can be used in future 
years and lessons learnt are not utilised to ensure areas of weakness are not repeated. 
 
Recommendation - A process should be put in place at the end of the financial year to enable 
the CCG to look back at achievements and failures and utilise this information to contribute to 
next year’s operational plan. This could be achieved through the CCG’s governance structure 
as an extension to the monitoring of projects. This should be done in a timely manner to ensure 
that the commissioning plan is ready for the start of the year. 
 
Management Response: 
 
The adoption of this approach will depend on the timing of the Operational Plan submission 
from NHSE as a full year’s performance data may not be available. However in considering the 
Operational Plan/Commissioning Plan for any year it is accepted that it is good practice to 
review previous performance as part of the commissioning cycle and learn from this. An 
example is the evaluation of commissioning of Winter schemes for 2015-16 by the Finance and 
Performance Committee. The group who undertake planning for the CCG comprise 
Performance and Commissioning Team members and this recommendation will be taken into 
account for the 2016-17 planning round. 
 
MIAA are scheduled to undertake a thorough follow up review within 12 months.  The CCG 
Governing Body received an update report and approved the full action plan at the March 
Meeting which combined the outcomes of the MIAA review and the CCG internal review. 

Data Quality 
 

The CCG receives and utilises data from a variety of sources both from within and without the 
NHS. This data is used for a variety of purposes and reports at both informal and formal 
committees. All data the CCG holds is subject to public scrutiny either through public governing 
body sessions or via Freedom of Information (FOI) requests. The CCG takes data quality very 
seriously and takes a number of steps to assure data before its use or publication. 

Data sourced from our partner organisations such as the Local Authority is subject to their own 
organisational data quality processes. It is still however quality checked by CCG officers prior 
to use and any concerns or questions are fed back for resolution. 

Data sourced from our commissioning support unit is quality assured within the unit. It is then 
still subjected to quality checks by CCG officers. These may include looking over historic trends 
for unusual patterns or checking the outputs of the unit’s quality reports. The CCG receives 
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data relating to its performance from NHSE, for example as part of the quarterly assurance 
process and in the form of a “balanced scorecard”. The CCG verifies this information against 
local data sources and would notify NHSE of any issues or queries regarding the data. The 
CCG would also utilise this data to help manage its performance and to provide comparison 
with other organisations. 

Data from Acute Trusts and other organisations providing care to our patients is also reviewed 
locally by the CCG. Data is also used to support commissioning programmes of work for 
example in developing business cases and in relation to improving service specifications and in 
supporting the QIPP agenda. 

Business Critical Models 
 

NHS St Helens CCG confirms that an appropriate framework and environment is in place to 
provide quality assurance of business critical models, in line with the recommendations in the 
MacPherson report. 

Data Security 

We have submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information governance toolkit 

assessment.  The evidence used has also been independently audited, with ‘significant 

assurance’ given, prior to submission. 

There have been no Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data security breaches, and no 
other incidents that were required to be reported to the Information Commissioner 

 
Discharge of Statutory Functions 
 
Arrangements put in place by the clinical commissioning group and explained within the 
corporate governance framework have been developed with extensive expert external legal 
input, to ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation.  That legal advice also informed 
the matters reserved for Membership Body and Governing Body decision and the scheme of 
delegation. 
 
In light of the Harris Review, the clinical commissioning group has reviewed all of the statutory 
duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and 
other associated legislative and regulations.  As a result, I can confirm that the clinical 
commissioning group is clear about the legislative requirements associated with each of the 
statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of those 
functions. 
 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.  
Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability and capacity 
to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s statutory duties. 

Conclusion 

 
I confirm that no significant control issues have been identified and areas of limited assurance 
have been fully addressed. 

 

 

Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 

NHS St Helens CCG  

 

25 May 2016    
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2.2 Remuneration and Staff Report  2015/16 

Policy on remuneration of senior managers 

Policy on remuneration of senior managers: The Remuneration Committee determined the salaries and contract terms of the following senior positions: 

Clinical Accountable Officer, Chair, GP Governing Body Members, Lay Members, Chief Financial Officers, Deputy Chief Executive, Director of Finance 

Performance and Contracting and Chief Nurse. The remuneration packages for these senior posts comprised base salary in the light of the requirements of 

the national Very Senior Managers policy and Hay Group recommendations. Senior Managers are not subject to performance related pay. The CCG made 

no payment to past senior managers or for loss of office. 

 

Salaries and allowances 2015/16 (audited) 
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Remumeration Report 2015/16

Elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit, namely; the Single total figure of remuneration for each Governing Body member, the CETV disclosures for each Governing Body member, the "Fair pay" (pay multiples) disclosures and the Analysis of staff numbers.

Salaries and allowances 2015/16 (audited)

Name Title Note Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total

(bands of payments pay and performance related benefits (bands of payments pay and performance related benefits

£5,000) taxable to bonuses pay and bonuses £5,000) taxable to bonuses pay and bonuses

the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of

£00 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000) £00 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000)

£'000 £'00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

William Guest Chair 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 25-30 0 0 0 0 25-30

Geoffrey Appleton Chair 2 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25 10-15 0 0 0 5-7.5 20-25

Dr Stephen Cox Clinical Accountable Officer 150-155 0 0 0 15.0-17.5 165-170 150-155 0 0 0 10-12.5 160-165

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 3 100-105 0 0 0 120.0-122.5 220-225 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Joseph Banat GP Board Member 4 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75 75-80 1 0 0 0 75-80

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse GP Board Member 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75 75-80 0 0 0 0 75-80

Dr Julie Whittaker GP Board Member 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75 75-80 0 0 0 0 75-80

Dr Shikha Pitalia GP Board Member 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Omar Shaikh GP Board Member 75-80 0 0 0 0 75-80 90-95 0 0 0 0 90-95

Dr Paul Rose GP Board Member 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45 40-45 1 0 0 0 40-45

Dr Hilary Flett GP Board Member 6 45-50 0 0 0 0 45-50 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 7 45-50 17 0 0 0.0-2.5 45-50 45-50 18 0 0 0 45-50

Lynda Carey Lead Nurse, Quality & Safety 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 15-20 2 0 0 5-7.5 25-30

Sarah O'Brien Chief Nurse, Quality & Safety 9 90-95 0 0 0 147.5-150.0 240-245 30-35 0 0 0 17.5-20 45-50

Dr Debra King Secondary Care Consultant 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 11 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Tony Foy Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20 25-30 0 0 0 0 25-30

Mark Arnold Lay Member 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0-5 0 0 0 0 5-10

Rachel Jones Lay Member 13 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20 5-10 0 0 0 0 5-10

Chrissie Cooke Interim Director of Commissioning 14 50-55 0 0 0 0 50-55 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sheila Lynch Recovery Director 15 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expense payments are in respect of lease vehicles and mileage and are show in £ hundreds.

Notes:

1. William Guest was the Chair to 30th September 2014.

2. Geoffrey Appleton was the Chair from 1st October 2014.

3. Julie Abbott is a regular attendee at Governing Body meetings.

4. Due to the absence of data relating to the prior year it is not possible to calculate Dr Joseph Banat's "All pension-related benefits"

5. Dr Shikha Pitalia was a member of the Governing Body to 31st August 2014.

6. Dr Hilary Flett was a member of the Governing Body from 1st September 2014.

7. Paul Brickwoods remuneration is split across NHS St Helens CCG, NHS Knowsley CCG and NHS Halton CCG.  The remuneration costs shown represent NHS St Helens CCG's share of the total remuneration paid 

by the three CCG's.  The total remuneration paid was within the band £115,000 to £120,000 and the allocation of cost to the CCG is based on the size of each CCG's constrained population, as follows:

CCG %

St Helens 40

Knowsley 33

Halton 27

8. Lynda Carey was the Lead Nurse Quality & Safety to 30th June 2014.

9. Sarah O'Brien was the Chief Nurse Quality & Safety from 7th November 2014.

10. Dr Debra King was a member of the Governing Body to 30th April 2015. Dr King was not on the CCG payroll and was therefore an off-payroll engagement (see table 1)

11. Elaine Inglesby is not on the CCG payroll and is therefore an off-payroll engagement (see table 1). All payments are made directly to her employer.

12. Mark Arnold was a Lay Member to 30th June 2014.

13. Rachel Jones was a Lay Member from 20th October 2014.

14. Chrissie Cooke is a regular attendee at Governing Body meetings but is not on the CCG payroll and is therefore an off-payroll engagement (see table 1). All payments are made directly to her employer.

       The post of Interim Director of Commissioning ceases June 2016. A permanent appointment has been made to this role to commence from 23rd May 2016.

15. Sheila Lynch is a regular attendee at Governing Body meetings but is not on the CCG payroll and is therefore an off-payroll engagement (see table 1). All payments are made directly to her employer.

     Sheila Lynch was appointed Interim Recovery Director during 2015-16 and was appointed as CCG substantive Recovery Director in April 2016 and added to the CCG payroll at that time.

2015-16 2014-15
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Pension Benefits 2015/16 (audited)

Name Title Real increase Real increase Total accrued Lump sum at Cash Real increase Cash Employer's

in pension in pension pension at pension age Equivalent in Cash Equivalent contribution

at pension age lump sum at pension age at related to Transfer Equivalent Transfer to

(bands of pension age 31 March 2016 accrued Value at Transfer Value at 31 stakeholder

£2,500) (bands of (bands of pension at 31 1 April 2015 Value March 2016 pension

£2,500) £5,000) March 2016

(bands of 

£5,000)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton (1) Chair -                            -                         -                             -                       6                              -                          -                          -                 

Steve Cox Accountable Officer 0-2.5 2.5-5.0 20-25 60-65 341                          32                            377                         -                 

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 0-2.5 0-2.5 50-55 160-165 1,111                      28                            1,153                      -                 

Sarah O'Brien Chief Nurse, Quality & Safety 5.0-7.5 15.0-17.5 20-25 60-65 211                          86                            300                         -                 

Sarah O'Brien Chief Nurse, Quality & Safety 0-2.5 -                         0-5 -                       -                          14                            14                            -                 

Joseph Banat (2) NA NA 10-15 35-40 NA NA 257                         -                 

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 5.0-7.5 15.0-17.5 35-40 105-110 553                          119                          678                         

(NA-Not Available)

1. Geoffrey Appleton opted out of the NHS Pension Scheme as at 1st June 2015.

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

The pension entitlement above is the total pension entitlement for each Director, is not split across other organisations and may have been partly accrued in a non senior

manager capacity.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

Real Increase in CETV

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the 

member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. CETVs are calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension 

Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulations 2008.

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of 

any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

2. Due to the absence of data relating to the prior year, it is not possible to calculate Dr Joseph Banat's Real increase in pension at pension age, Real 

increase in pension lump sum at pension age or Real increase in Cash Equivalent Transfer Value.

On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects 

the calculation of CETV figures in this report.

Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for members of the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous discount 

rate and have not been recalculated.
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Pay Multiples 2015 - 16 (audited)

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body in NHS St Helens CCG in the financial year 2015-16 was

£150,000 - £155,000 (2014-15; £150,000 - £155,000).  This was 3.72 times (2014-15; 4.02) the median remuneration of the workforce,

 which was £40,964 (2014-15; £37,952).

In 2015-16, remuneration ranged from £0-5,000 to £150,000-155,000 (2014-15; £15,000-20,000 to £150,000-155,000)

This calculation of the ratio between the remuneration of the highest paid director and the median remuneration of the workforce is

based on full time equivalent employees in post at 31 March 2016 on an annualised basis, includes staff who are being paid

through the payroll system and agency workers. As the CCG is not party to the actual amount earned by agency workers an

estimate of their salary, based upon the charge out rate from the agency on an annualized basis using 220 working days, has been

included for this calculation. The median remuneration is the total remuneration of the staff member lying in the middle of the linear

distribution of the total staff, excluding the highest paid director. A median will not be significantly affected by large or small salaries

that may skew an average (mean) – hence it is more transparent in highlighting whether a director is being paid significantly more

than the middle staff in the organisation.

In 2015-16, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid member of the Governing Body (2014-15; none). 

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director/Member in their 

organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does 

not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

The median remuneration has increased from £37,952 to £40,964 during 2015-16.  This is due to the change in the staffing profile that 

has been necessary because of the challenging position the CCG is in.
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Off-Payroll Engagements 

The following tables provide details of off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2016. 

Table 1 

Off-Payroll Engagements 
  

   

   Off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2016 for more than 
£220 per day and that last longer than six months 

Number 

 Number of existing engagements as at 31 March 2016 7* 

 Of which, the number that have existed:   

 for less than one year at the time of reporting 6 

 for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

 for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 1 

 for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

 for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
 

  New off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2015 and 31 
March 2016 for more than £220 per day and that last longer 
than six months 

Number 

 
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six 
months in duration, between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 

6 

 Number of new engagements which include contractual 
clauses giving the CCG the right to request assurance in 
relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations 

0 

 Number for whom assurance has been requested 4* 

 Of which:   

 assurance has been received 4 

 assurance has not been received 0 

 engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being 
received 

0 

 
 

  

 Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, 
and/or senior officers with significant financial responsibility, 
during the year 

1 

 Number of individuals that have been deemed “board 
members, and/or senior officers with significant financial 
responsibility” during the financial year. This figure includes 
both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements 

13 

 
 

  Three out of the seven off-payroll engagements are employed by other NHS 
organisations so assurance in relation to their income tax and National Insurance 
obligations is not required. 
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Table 2 
Number of senior managers by band  

 
 

Table 3 

Staff numbers by month (audited) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Senior Managers by 

Payscale as at 31st 

March 2016

WTE
Head 

Count

Band 8A 5.73 6

Band 8B 4.95 5

Band 8C 3.00 3

Band 8D 1.48 2

Lay 0.85 4

Medical 3.80 10

VSM 2.00 2

Grand Total 21.81 32

Month
Staff WTE by 

Month

April 2015 50.7

May 2015 53.1

June 2015 55.1

July 2015 56.59

August 2015 54.59

September 2015 56.02

October 2015 55.02

November 2015 54.08

December 2015 52.21

January 2016 51.21

February 2016 54.71

March 2016 53.71

Average 53.92
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Table 4 

Staff by Occupation 

 
 

Table 5 

Analysis of payscale by gender 

 

 
 

Table 6 

Staff gender analysis 

 

  
 

Sickness Absence Data   

Staff by occupation Code as 

at 31st March 2016
WTE

Head 

Count

General Medical Practitioner 

(Public Health & Community 

Services

3.80 10

Senior manager Central 

functions
3.00 3

Manager Central functions 6.00 6

Clerical & administrative Central 

functions
24.65 25

Manager Community Services 1.00 1

Add Prof Scientific and 

Technical
1.48 2

Scientist Pharmacy 7.13 9

Technician Pharmacy 5.80 7

Non Executive Director - Lay 

Chair
0.40 1

Non Executive Director 0.45 3

Grand Total 53.71 67

Band 3 2 0 2 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%

Band 4 2 1 3 3.0% 1.5% 4.5%

Band 5 12 0 12 17.9% 0.0% 17.9%

Band 6 4 2 6 6.0% 3.0% 9.0%

Band 7 9 3 12 13.4% 4.5% 17.9%

Band 8A 5 1 6 7.5% 1.5% 9.0%

Band 8B 2 3 5 3.0% 4.5% 7.5%

Band 8C 2 1 3 3.0% 1.5% 4.5%

Band 8D 2 0 2 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%

VSM 2 0 2 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%

Lay 2 2 4 3.0% 3.0% 6.0%

Medical 4 6 10 6.0% 9.0% 14.9%

Grand Total 48 19 67 71.6% 28.4% 100.0%

Total %
Payscale Description as at 

31st March 2016
Female Male Total

% 

Female
% Male

29 43.3%

19 28.4%

10 14.9%

9 13.4%

67 67

St Helens CCG Gender Analysis

Female 48
Full Time Female

71.6%
Part Time Female

Male 19
Full Time Male

28.4%
Part Time Male
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The below sickness absence data is taken from the Health & Social Care Information Centre 

statistics published and relates to the year ended 31 December 2015. 

 

 
 

Staff policies applied during the year 

 

The CCG is committed to equality of opportunity for all employees and is committed to employment 

practices, policies and procedures which ensure that no employee, or potential employees receive 

less favourable treatment on the grounds of gender, race, colour, ethnic or national origin, sexual 

orientation, marital status, religion or belief, age, trade union membership, disability, offending 

background, domestic circumstances, social and employment status, HIV status, gender 

reassignment political affiliation or any other person characteristic as outlines in the Equality Act ( 

2010) and any other status covered by the Human Rights Act (1998). Diversity will be viewed 

positively and in recognising that everyone is different, the unique contribution that each individual’s 

experience, knowledge and skills can make is valued equally. 

 

The promotion of equality and diversity is actively pursued through policies and ensures that 

employees receive fair equitable and consistent treatment and ensures that employees, and 

potential employees, are not subject to direct or indirect discrimination.  To ensure that CCG policies 

do not have an adverse impact in response to the requirements of the Equality Act (2010), policies 

are reviewed for relevance during policy development processes and full equality impact 

assessments are conducted where necessary. 

 

It is a condition of employment that all employees respect and act in accordance with the Equality 

and Diversity policy. The CCG takes equality and diversity serious and will not tolerate 

discrimination in any form. As such failure to do act in accordance with the CCG’s Equality and 

Diversity so will result in the policy could lead to disciplinary procedure being instigated, which could 

result in dismissal. 

 

The CCG operates a fair and objective system for recruiting, which places emphasis on individual 

skills, abilities and experience.  This enables a full diversity of people to demonstrate their ability to 

do a job.  Selection criteria contained within our job descriptions and person specifications are 

regularly reviewed to ensure that they are justifiable and so do not unfairly discriminate directly or 

indirectly and are essential for the effective performance of the role.  We offer a guaranteed 

interview scheme for disabled applicants who meet our essential selection criteria.   

 

NHS Sickness Absence Figures for NHS 2015-16 Financial Accounts

Source: HSCIC - Sickness Absence Publication - based on data from the ESR Data Warehouse

Period covered: January to December 2015

ESR does not hold details of normal number of days worked by each employee.  Data on days available and days recorded sick are based on a 365-day year.

Average Annual Sick Days per FTE has been estimated by dividing the estimated number of FTE-days sick by the average FTE, and multiplying by 225 (the typical number of working days per year).

There may be inconsistencies between these data and the statutory basis for accounts, in terms of the organisation against which staff are reported for a particular month.

HSCIC Statistics

Copyright © 2015 and 2016, Health and Social Care Information Centre.  All rights reserved.

This work remains the sole and exclusive property of the Health and Social Information Centre and may only be reproduced where there is explicit reference

to the ownership of the Health and Social Care Information Centre.

CCGs with partial data are listed separately below the main table.

Name

OCS 

code Av FTE

Adjusted 

FTE sick 

days

FTE-Days 

Available

FTE-Days 

recorded 

Sickness 

Absence

Average 

Annual Sick 

Days per FTE

NHS St Helens CCG 01X 53 581 19,323           942                11.0               

Statistics Published by 
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The CCG has policies in place to support staff who are disabled or who become disabled during the 

period of employment at the CCG. 

 

Expenditure on consultancy 

 

During the year ended 31 March 2016 the CCG spent £71,254 on external consultants. These 

consultants were engaged in a variety of projects across the CCG.  

 

Exit packages  

 

Please see note 4.4 of the annual accounts  

 

Awards to Past Senior Managers 

 

No significant awards have been made to past senior managers during 2015/16. 

 

Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office 

 

No compensation on early retirement or for loss of office was paid during 2015/16.  

 

Payments to past directors  

 

No payments to past directors were made during 2015/16.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 

NHS St Helens CCG  

 

25 May 2016             
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Appendix A to Governance Statement; CCG Committee Membership as of 31
st

 March 2016 

Governing Body: 

Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer), St Helens CCG 
Mr Geoffrey Appleton, Chair, St Helens CCG (Chair) 
Mr Paul Brickwood, Chief Financial Officer 
Mr Tony Foy, Lay Member, Chair, Audit Committee  
Mrs Rachel Jones, Lay Member, Patient & Public Involvement 
Dr Hilary Flett, GP 
Dr Mike Ejuoneatse, GP and Deputy Chair, St Helens CCG 
Dr Joseph Banat, GP, Chair, Clinical Quality & Approvals Committee 
Dr Omar Shaikh, GP  
Dr Paul Rose, GP 
Dr Julie Whittaker, GP, Chair, Medicines Management Committee 
Professor Sarah O’Brien, Chief Nurse 
Elaine Inglesby, Executive Nurse 
Liz Gaulton, Director of Public Health, St Helens Council 
Mike Wyatt, Strategic Director – People Services. 
Secondary Care Consultant (position vacant) 
 
Executive Risk and Assurance Committee: 
 
Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)  
Paul Brickwood, Chief Financial Officer (or Deputy) 
Julie Abbott, Deputy CEO 
Caroline Lees, Associate Director; Corporate Governance (Chair) 
Karen Leverett, Primary Care Management Lead 
Margaret Geoghegan, Assistant Director; Medicines Management 
Professor Sarah O’Brien, Chief Nurse/Chair of Quality Committee 
Ian Campbell – Assistant Director; Contracting 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse – GP/Deputy Chair 
Dr Hilary Flett-  GP/Chair of Finance & Performance Committee 
Dr Julie Whittaker – GP/Chair of Medicines Management Committee 
 
HR & Remuneration Committee: 
 
Mr Geoffrey Appleton, Lay Member 
Mr Paul Brickwood, Chief Financial Officer (if required) 
Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 
Mr Tony Foy, Lay Member 
Mrs Rachel Jones, Lay Member 
Dr Joseph Banat, GP Governing Body member 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse, GP Governing Body Member, CCG Deputy Chair 
Mrs Gillian Roberts, HR Lead Manager 
Caroline Lees, Associate Director – Corporate Governance 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Mr Andrew Woods, Senior Governance Manager 
Kay Worsley-Cox, Associate Director Clinical Leadership/CCG Development 
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Finance and Performance Committee: 

Dr Hilary Flett, Committee Chair (GP with lead for finance and performance) 
Mr Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 
Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive or/ 
Julie Abbott, Deputy Chief Executive 
Dr Omar Shaikh, GP Governing Body member 
Tony Foy, Lay Member 
Peter Hughes, Head of Policy, St Helens LA 
Chrissie Cooke (Interim Director of Commissioning) 
Kerry Ingham, Performance Manager 
Adam Vinyard, Senior Finance Manager  
 

Quality Committee: 

Professor Sarah O’Brien, Chief Nurse (Chair) 
Dr Joseph Banat,GP Governing Body Lead for Clinical Governance (Vice Chair) 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse, GP Governing Body member  
Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive/Clinical Lead (Accountable Officer) 
Liz Gaulton, Director of Public Health 
Mike Wyatt, Strategic Director Peoples Services, St Helens MBC 
Rachel Jones, Lay Member, Patient Representation 
Elaine Inglesby, Executive Nurse 
Secondary Care Consultant (post vacant at present) 
Margaret Geoghegan, Assistant Director – Medicines Management 
Chrissie Cooke, Interim Director of Commissioning 
   
In attendance: 

Caroline Lees, Associate Director – Corporate Governance 
Director of Commissioning 
Karen Leverett – Primary Care Lead 
Katie Power, Governing Body Practice Manager representative 
LMC Representative 
 
 
Members Council (GP Forum): 

The Members Council has a GP lead representative from each of the 36 practices. 

Audit Committee: 

Tony Foy (Lay member) Chair of the Committee  
Rachel Jones (Lay Member of the Governing Body) 
Dr Joseph Banat, GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Omar Shaikh, GP Governing Body member 
Jill Newton, Practice Manager Representative 
 
In attendance: 
Paul Brickwood, Chief Finance Officer 
Lisa Roberts, Principal Accountant 
Caroline Lees, Associate Director – Corporate Governance 
Louise Cobain, Mersey Internal Audit Agency 
Liz Temple Murray, Grant Thornton 
Mark Heap, Grant Thornton 
Virginia Martin, Mersey Internal Audit Agency  
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Primary Care (Decision Making) Committee: 

 
Geoffrey Appleton, Lay Chair 
Tony Foy, Lay member,  (Deputy Chair)  
Rachel Jones, Lay Member, PPI  
Mike Wyatt, Strategic Director, Peoples Services 
Julie Abbott, Deputy Chief Executive 
Professor Sarah O’Brien, Chief Nurse 
Paul Brickwood, Chief Finance Officer 
Margaret Geoghegan, Asst. Director, Medicines Management 
Elaine Inglesby, Executive Nurse 
Professor Stephen Cox, Clinical Chief Executive 
Dr Joe Banat – GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Michael Ejuoneatse – GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Omar Shaikh – GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Paul Rose – GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Julie Whittaker – GP Governing Body Member 
Dr Hilary Flett – GP Governing Body Member 
 

Standing invitations to attend: 

Healthwatch nominated representative 
Health and Wellbeing Board representative 
LMC representative 
 

 

Integrated Programme Steering Group: 

Professor Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive Officer CCG (Co-Chair) 

Mike Wyatt – Strategic Director of Peoples Services (St Helens Council) (Co-Chair) 

Julie Abbott – Deputy Chief Executive  

Deputy Chief Finance Officer (CCG)  

Ian Roberts, Assistant Chief Executive (Finance) St Helens Council 

Professor Sarah O’Brien - Chief Nurse St Helens (CCG) 

Liz Gaulton - Director of Public Health (Council) 

Peter Hughes, Head of Policy (Council) 

 

Support Officers: 

 

Associate Director of Integrated Commissioning; Adults, CCG 

Caroline Barlow - Assistant Director - Business Support and Contracts, LA 

Sharon Fryer; Assistant Director, Integrated Children’s Health, LA Public Health 
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Appendix B to Governance Statement; Committee Attendance Records 

 

ST HELENS CCG GP Forum (Members Council) SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015-16 
 

Name 14 Jan 13 May 16 Sept 18 Nov 13 Jan 17 Mar 

Berrymead Medical Centre (Ferguson)  0     

Bethany Medical Centre       

Bowery Medical Centre  0     

Central Surgery       

Cornerstone Surgery       

Crossroads Surgery       

Eccleston Medical Centre  0     

Eldercare/Sherdley      0 

Four Acre Surgery       

Garswood Surgery       

Hall Street Medical Centre       

Haydock MC (Dr Breach & Partners 0      

Holly Bank Surgery    0   

Kenneth McRae Medical Centre       

Lancaster House Medical Centre       

Lime Grove Surgery       

Lingholme Health Centre       

Longton Medical Centre       

Market Street  0     

Mill Street Medical Centre       

Newholme Surgery       

Newton Community Hospital      0 

Newton MC (formerly Bridge St Surgery)       

Ormskirk House Surgery       

Park House Surgery     0  

Parkfield Surgery     0  

Patterdale Lodge Medical Centre  0   0  

Phoenix Medical Centre     0  

 Dr Rahil’s Surgery  0    0 

Rainbow Medical Centre       

Rainford Health Centre       

Rainhill Village Surgery      0 

Recreation Drive Surgery (Billinge MP) 0     0 

Sandfield Medical Centre    0 0  

Spinney Medical Centre       

 

 
Key:    indicates attendance; 0 indicates absence 
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QUALITY COMMITTEE SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015-16 

Name JAN FE
B 

MAR MAY JUN
E 

JULY SEPT OCT NOV 
 

JAN 
 

FEB MAR 

Dr Joe Banat             

Dr Stephen Cox        X  X X  

Margaret 
Geoghegan 

       X   R R 

Dr Debra King  X  X X X X X X X X X 

Mike Wyatt    X X R R  X  R R 

Liz Gaulton   R  R  R   R   

Sarah O’Brien X   X      X   

Sarah Johnson X  X X X X X X X X  X 

Caroline Lees   X  X   X    X 

Beth Collins X X X X X X X X X X X X 

Karen Leverett  X   X        

Elaine Inglesby X   X  X   X  X  

Dr Paul Rose X X X X   X X    X 

Dr Mike Ejuoneatse  X           

Dr Julie Whittaker  X   X X  X X X X X 

Dr Hilary Flett     X   X  X X X 

Tom Hughes  X  X X R R R R R R X 

Katie Power          X   

Paula Guest  X X  X X X  X X X X 

Safeguarding 
Lead* 

X  X X X X X X  X X  

Dr Ivan Camphor        X X X  X 

Rachel Jones X X    X   X    

Adam Vinyard X X X X X X X X X X X X 

Nicola Cartwright X X X X X X X X X    

Tracey Forshaw   X  X X X X X X X X 

Esther Golby  X X X X X X X X X X X 

David Pye  X  X X X X X X X X X 

Ruth Hunter X  X X      X X X 

Sharon Fryer X  X X X X X X X X X X 

Ann Dunne X  X X X X X X X X X X 

Susan Forster X X  X X X X X X  X X 

Mark Hughes             
 

Key:    indicates attendance; X indicates absence; R indicates represented by a colleague.   
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ST HELENS CCG FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE – SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015-16 
 

Members 
 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15  

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 16 
CANCELLED 

Dr J Whittaker NO LONGER A MEMBER FOR 2015-16 (Although attended in Sep/Oct 2015 and 
Jan/Feb 2016) 

 

Dr J Banat NO LONGER A MEMBER FOR 2015-16 (No attendance)  

Dr O Shaikh             

Dr S Cox             

Dr H Flett             

J Abbott             

P Brickwood             

J Mellor             

C Cooke             

K Ingham             

T Foy             

P Hughes             

Others in 
attendance 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15  

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 16 
CANCELLED 

I Campbell             

D Knowles             

J Taylor             

S Duckers             

A Vinyard             

L Hopes             

S Lynch             

N Duffy             

Dr M 
Ejuoneatse 

            

C Lees             

Sarah O’Brien             

 



 

91 
 

ST HELENS CCG PRIMARY CARE DECISION MAKING COMMITTEE MEETING 

SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015/16 

 
 

Name  Members 21.05.15 20.08.15 15.10.15 08.10.15 01.03.16 

S Cox      

G Appleton      

J Banat Apols  Apols Apols Apols 

P Brickwood      

M Ejuoneatse      

L Gaulton Apols Apols    

Paul Rose   Apols Apols  

Omar Shaikh  Apols Apols Apols  

Julie Whittaker  Apols   Apols 

Tony Foy   Apols   

Hilary Flett    Apols  

Rachel Jones      

Elaine Inglesby  Apols    

Mike Wyatt     Apols 

Sarah O’Brien      

Margaret Geoghegan      

Julie Abbott   Apols Apols  

IN ATTENDANCE      

Caroline Lees   Apols   

Catherine Edge      

Karen Leverett      

Alison Farquharson      

Rose Gorman     Apols 

Tom Hughes      
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ST HELENS CCG AUDIT COMMITTEE SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015-16  
 
 
 

Meeting Date 18/03/15 26/05/15 16/09/15 16/12/15 15/03/16 
 

Members      

Tony Foy      

Dr Joseph Banat Apologies     

Dr Micheal Ejuoneatse   Apologies Apologies Apologies 

Dr Omar Shaikh     Apologies 

Jill Newton     Apologies 

Rachel Jones   Apologies  Apologies 

In Attendance      

Paul Brickwood   Apologies   

Julie Abbott     Apologies 

Lisa Roberts    

Stuart Curran   Apologies Apologies 

Caroline Lees   Apologies   

Louise Cobain (MIAA)        

Rebecca Brown (MIAA)      

Liz Temple-Murray (Grant 
Thornton) 

  Apologies   

Mark Heap (Grant Thornton)  Apologies  Apologies  

Roger Causer (MIAA – Counter 
Fraud) 

     

Virginia Martin (MIAA – Counter 
Fraud) 

Apologies    Apologies 

Darrell Davies (MIAA – Counter 
Fraud) 
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NHS ST HELENS CCG HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 

2015-16 

  

Name Members 18.2.15 27.5.15 23.9.15 9.12.15 9.03.16 

S Cox 
 

   Apols  

Geoffrey Appleton 
 

 Apols    

Caroline Lees 
 

     

Joe Banat 
 

     

Michael Eujoneatse 
 

  Apols Apols  

Kay Worsley Cox 
 

    Apols 

Gillian Roberts 
 

     

Andrew Woods 
 

 Apols  Apols Apols 

Alison Johnson 
 

     

Tony Foy 
 

     

Rachel Jones 
 

     

Julie Abbott 
 

     

In Attendance 

Sarah Johnson 
 

Apols Apols Apols   

Catherine Edge 
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INTEGRATED PROGRAMME STEERING GROUP SCHEDULE OF ATTENDANCE 2015-16 

 

Name 19.02.15 19.05.15 04.06.15 08.07.15 12.08.15 16.09.15 1.10.15 11.11.15 3.12.15 20.01.16 10.2.16 16.03.16 

Mike Wyatt    Apols  Cancell
ed 

   Cancelle
d 

  

Dr Stephen 
Cox 

Apols      Apols  Apols   Apols 

Dr Omar 
Shaikh 

            

Caroline 
Barlow 

Apols            

Julie 
Abbott 

 Apols      Apols     

 
Sarah 
Johnson 

 Apols  Apols         

Peter 
Hughes 

   Apols        Apols 

Jayne 
Mellor 

            

Sarah 
O’Brien 

 Apols   Apols  Apols    Apols Apols 

Caroline 
Lees 

            

Ian 
Roberts 

   Apols        Apols 
 

Sharon 
Fryer 

  Apols     Apols   Apols  

Liz Gaulton  Apols       Apols    
 

In 

Attendance 
            

Dr Julie 
Whittaker 
(Deputy for 
O Shaikh) 

            

Adam 
Vinyard 

   Apols         

Rachel 
Cleal 

            

Dympna 
Edwards 

            

Helen 
Williams 

            

Sue 
Forster 

            
 

Chrissie 
Cooke 

           Apols 

Liz Hopes             
 

Moria 
Johnston 

            

Kerry 
Ingham 
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3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

3.1. Report by the auditors to the Members of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF ST 
HELENS CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
 
We have audited the financial statements of St Helens CCG for the year ended 31 March 2016 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Act"). The financial statements comprise the 
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of 
Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and 
adapted by the 2015/16 Government Financial Reporting Manual (the 2015/16 FReM) as contained 
in the Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts 2015/16 (the 2015/16 MfA) and the 
Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board with the approval of the Secretary of 
State as relevant to the National Health Service in England (the Accounts Direction).  
 
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration and Staff Report that is subject to audit, 
being:  

the table of salaries and allowances of senior managers and related narrative notes on page 77 
the table of pension benefits of senior managers and related narrative notes on page 78 
the table of exit packages on page 84 
the analysis of staff numbers  on page 81; and 
the tables of pay multiples and related narrative notes on page 79. 

 
This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of St Helens CCG, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Act  and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the 
Governing Body of the CCG those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the CCG and the members of the Governing Body of the CCG, 
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the Accountable 
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view and is also responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and 
income. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in 
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor General as 
required by the Act  (the "Code of Audit Practice"). 
 
As explained in the Annual Governance Statement the Accountable Officer is responsible for the 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the CCG's resources. 
We are required under Section 21 (1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to 
report our opinion as required by Section 21(4)(b) of the  Act. 
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We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the CCG's 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and have been consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 
Accountable Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all 
the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report  to identify material inconsistencies 
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of 
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
 
In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 
expenditure and income recorded in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes 
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.  
 
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
the use of resources 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criteria, issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 
2015, as to whether the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 
local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as that necessary for 
us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in 
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2016, and to report by exception where we are not satisfied. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice.  Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all 
significant respects, the CCG had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of St Helens CCG as at 31 March 2016 and 
of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, 
as interpreted and adapted by the 2015/16 FReM as contained in the 2015/16 MfA and the 
Accounts Direction. 
 
 

Opinion on regularity 
 
In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income recorded in the financial 
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions 
in the financial statements conform to the authorities which govern them. 
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Opinion on other matters 
 
In our opinion: 
 

 the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been properly prepared 
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted 
by the 2015/16 FReM as contained in the 2015/16 MfA and the Accounts Direction; and 

 the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the annual 
report and accounts is consistent with the financial statements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
We are required to report to you if: 

 in our opinion the governance statement does not comply with the guidance issued by the 
NHS Commissioning Board; or 

 we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Act because we have 
reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a 
decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about 
to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be 
unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act; or 

 we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 of the Act; or 

 we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.  

 
We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
Certificate 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of St Helens CCG in accordance with 
the requirements of the Act and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark Heap 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 
 
Royal Liver Building, Liverpool, L3 1PS 
 
26 May 2016 
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3.2.Financial Statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016 99
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Analysis of impairments and reversals 119
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015-16 2014-15

Note £000 £000

Total Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4.1.1 3,123 2,504

Operating Expenses 5 312,849 278,111

Other operating revenue 2 (3,979) (4,781)

Net operating expenditure before interest 311,993 275,834

Investment Revenue 8 -                  -             

Other (gains)/losses 9 -                  -             

Finance costs 10 -                  -             

Net operating expenditure for the financial year 311,993 275,834

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 11 -                  -             

Total Net Expenditure for the year 311,993 275,834

Of which:

Administration Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4.1.1 2,192 1,822

Operating Expenses 5 1,932 2,717

Other operating revenue 2 (38) (71)

Net administration costs before interest 4,086 4,468

Programme Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4.1.1 931 682

Operating Expenses 5 310,917 275,394

Other operating revenue 2 (3,941) (4,710)

Net programme expenditure before interest 307,907 271,366

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 2015-16 2014-15

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals 22 -                  -             

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment -                  -             

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles -                  -             

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets -                  -             

Movements in other reserves -                  -             

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets -                  -             

Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale -                  -             

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes -                  -             

Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures -                  -             

Reclassification Adjustments

On disposal of available for sale financial assets -                  -             

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 311,993 275,834

The notes on pages 103 to 126 form part of this statement
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Note £000 £000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 13 11 13

Intangible assets 14 -                   -                  

Investment property 15 -                   -                  

Trade and other receivables 17 -                   -                  

Other financial assets 18 -                   -                  

Total non-current assets 11 13

Current assets:

Inventories 16 -                   -                  

Trade and other receivables 17 6,334 2,975

Other financial assets 18 -                   -                  

Other current assets 19 -                   -                  

Cash and cash equivalents 20 40 20

Total current assets 6,374 2,995

Non-current assets held for sale 21 -                   -                  

Total current assets 6,374 2,995

Total assets 6,385 3,008

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (13,833) (11,617)

Other financial liabilities 24 -                   -                  

Other liabilities 25 -                   -                  

Borrowings 26 -                   -                  

Provisions 30 -                   -                  

Total current liabilities (13,833) (11,617)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (7,448) (8,609)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 -                   -                  

Other financial liabilities 24 -                   -                  

Other liabilities 25 -                   -                  

Borrowings 26 -                   -                  

Provisions 30 -                   -                  

Total non-current liabilities -                   -                  

Assets less Liabilities (7,448) (8,609)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (7,448) (8,609)

Revaluation reserve -                   -                  

Other reserves -                   -                  

Charitable Reserves -                   -                  

Total taxpayers' equity: (7,448) (8,609)

The notes on pages 103 to 126 form part of this statement

Professor Stephen Cox

Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer)

25 May 2016

The financial statements on pages 99-102 were approved by the Audit Committee on 23 May 2016 and signed on its 

behalf by:
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended 31 March 2016

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Balance at 1 April 2015 (8,609) -              -        (8,609)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS 

bodies -              -              -        -              

Adjusted CCG balance at 1 April 2015 (8,609) -              -        (8,609)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (311,993) (311,993)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment -              -              -        -              

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets -              -              -        -              

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets -              -              -        -              

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve -              -              -        -              

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets -              -              -        -              

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale -              -              -        -              

Impairments and reversals -              -              -        -              

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions -              -              -        -              

Movements in other reserves -              -              -        -              

Transfers between reserves -              -              -        -              

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure -              -              -        -              

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets -              -              -        -              

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies -              -              -        -              

Reserves eliminated on dissolution -              -              -        -              

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (311,993) -              -        (311,993)

Net funding 313,154 -              -        313,154

Balance at 31 March 2016 (7,448) -              -        (7,448)

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15

Balance at 1 April 2014 (9,672) -              -        (9,672)

Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 

April 2013 transition -              -              -        -              

Adjusted CCG balance at 1 April 2014 (9,672) -              -        (9,672)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15

Net operating costs for the financial year (275,834) -              -        (275,834)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment -              -              -        -              

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets -              -              -        -              

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets -              -              -        -              

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve -              -              -        -              

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets -              -              -        -              

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale -              -              -        -              

Impairments and reversals -              -              -        -              

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions -              -              -        -              

Movements in other reserves -              -              -        -              

Transfers between reserves -              -              -        -              

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure -              -              -        -              

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets -              -              -        -              

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies -              -              -        -              

Reserves eliminated on dissolution -              -              -        -              

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (275,834) -              -        (275,834)

Net funding 276,897 -              -        276,897

Balance at 31 March 2015 (8,609) -              -        (8,609)

The notes on pages 103 to 126 form part of this statement
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015-16 2014-15

Note £000 £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (311,993) (275,834)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 2 76

Impairments and reversals 5 -               -               

Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption -               -               

Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange -               -               

Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash -               -               

Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash -               -               

Interest paid -               -               

Release of PFI deferred credit -               -               

Other Gains & Losses -               -               

Finance Costs -               -               

Unwinding of Discounts -               -               

(Increase)/decrease in inventories -               -               

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 17 (3,359) (2,152)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets -               -               

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 23 2,216 1,000

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities -               -               

Provisions utilised 30 -               -               

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 30 -               -               

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (313,134) (276,910)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest received -               -               

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment -               -               

(Payments) for intangible assets -               -               

(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health -               -               

(Payments) for other financial assets -               -               

(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT) -               -               

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment -               -               

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets -               -               

Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health -               -               

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets -               -               

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT) -               -               

Loans made in respect of LIFT -               -               

Loans repaid in respect of LIFT -               -               

Rental revenue -               -               

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities -               -               

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (313,134) (276,910)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 313,154 276,897

Other loans received -               -               

Other loans repaid -               -               

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT -               -               

Capital grants and other capital receipts -               -               

Capital receipts surrendered -               -               

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 313,154 276,897

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 20 (13)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 20 33

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies -               -               

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 40 20

The notes on pages 103 to 126 form part of this statement
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) shall meet the accounting requirements of 

the Manual for Accounts (MFA) issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements of NHS St Helens 

CCG (the CCG) have been prepared in accordance with the MFA 2015-16 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies 

contained in the MFA follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to CCGs, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the MFA permits a choice of accounting 

policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the CCG for the purpose of giving a 

true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the CCG are described below. They have been applied consistently in 

dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 

evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a CCG ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by another public 

sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of accounts. If services will continue to be provided 

the accounts are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be 

‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting 

Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so any transactions 

which have been accounted for under merger accounting have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for 

their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the 

public sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net 

Expenditure (SoCNE), and is disclosed separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to 

income and expenditure entries.

1.5 Charitable Funds

The CCG did not operate any charitable funds in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

1.6 Pooled Budgets

Where the CCG has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 the CCG accounts 

for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the 

pooled budget agreement.

If the CCG is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the CCG recognises:

·                The assets the CCG controls;

·                The liabilities the CCG incurs;

·                The expenses the CCG incurs; and,

·                The CCG’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities.

If the CCG is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the above, the CCG recognises:

·                The CCG’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the assets);

·                The CCG’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and,

·                The CCG’s share of the expenses jointly incurred.

1.7 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the CCG’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the 

estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 

and future periods.

1.7.1  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

Apart from those involving estimations (see below), the CCG has made no critical judgements in applying accounting policies.

1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the CCG’s accounting policies that have the 

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Payables estimates

Due to the time lag around the availability of data, the prescribing payable is estimated as the difference between the prescribing expenditure 

profile to 31 March 2016 (as determined by the NHS Business Services Authority) and the actual confirmed amount of expenditure recorded. 

The key risk is that the actual data is different to the estimates made, resulting in the prescribing payable being either over or understated. 

As at 31 March 2016, the prescribing payable was £5.7 million (31 March 2015: £5.9 million).
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements (cont'd)

1.8  Revenue

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of 

the consideration receivable.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.9 Employee Benefits

1.9.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, including 

bonuses earned but not yet taken.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that 

employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit 

scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England 

and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme 

assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the CCG of participating 

in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements, other than those due to ill health, the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the 

liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the CCG commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of 

payment.

1.10 Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the 

fair value of the consideration payable.

Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the CCG has a present legal or constructive obligation, which occurs when 

all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.11 Property, Plant & Equipment

1.11.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

·                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

·                It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the CCG;

·                It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

·                The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,

·                The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,

·                Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are 

under single managerial control; or,

·                Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective 

cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are 

treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

1.11.2 Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the 

asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All 

assets are measured subsequently at valuation.

Land and buildings used for the CCG’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their re-

valued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be 

determined at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:

·                Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and,

·                Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it 

would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes 

professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. 

Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in 

existing use.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously 

recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation 

decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation 

reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a 

clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other 

comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

1.11.3 Subsequent Expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where 

subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the 

item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.12 Intangible Assets

The CCG had no intangible assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).
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Notes to the financial statements (cont'd)

1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-

current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or 

service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the CCG expects to obtain economic benefits or 

service potential from the asset. This is specific to the CCG and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful 

lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under 

finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

At each reporting period end, the CCG checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets have 

suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine 

whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. 

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the 

revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that 

arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been 

determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the 

decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

1.14 Donated Assets

The CCG had no donated assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.15  Government Grants

The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to income. Deferred income is recognised only where 

conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.16 Non-current Assets Held For Sale

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.17 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other 

leases are classified as operating leases.

1.17.1 The CCG as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are 

apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the CCG’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised 

initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 

operating or finance leases.

1.18  Private Finance Initiative Transactions

The CCG is not party to any Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.19  Inventories

The CCG did not hold any inventories as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.20 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash 

equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 

integral part of the CCG’s cash management.

1.21   Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the CCG has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the CCG 

will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a 

provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 

risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the 

present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:

·                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.50%

·                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.05%

·                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%

·                All employee early departures: 1.30%

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 

recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably.

The CCG had no provisions as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.22   Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the CCG pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation 

Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation 

Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the CCG.

1.23   Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The CCG participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under 

which the CCG pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims 

arising. The annual membership contributions and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses 

as and when they become due.

1.24 Continuing healthcare risk pooling

In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  

Under the scheme CCGs contribute annually to a pooled fund which is used to settle the claims.

The contribution made by the CCG in the financial year 2015-16 was £560,000 (2014-15: £392,000)
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Notes to the financial statements (cont'd)

1.25 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme

Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not 

expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open market value. As the CCG 

makes emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the 

allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The CCG considers 

this to be immaterial therefore no provision was recognised as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.26 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG, or a present obligation that is not recognised 

because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 

sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow 

of economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

The CCG had no contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

1.27 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the CCG becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when 

the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been 

transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

·                Held to maturity investments;

·                Available for sale financial assets; and,

·                Loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.27.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose 

separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any 

resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the CCG’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned 

on the financial asset.

1.27.2 Held to Maturity Assets

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a 

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

1.27.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or that do not fall within any of 

the other three financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the revaluation reserve, with the 

exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition.

1.27.4 Loans & Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After 

initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised 

using the effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to 

the initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the end of the reporting period, the CCG assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ 

are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 

or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 

asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 

amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised 

in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 

after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that the 

carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had 

the impairment not been recognised.

1.28  Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the CCG becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 

financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised 

when the liability has been discharged (i.e. the liability has been paid or has expired).

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

1.28.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of:

·                The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less cumulative amortisation; and,

·                The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets.

1.28.2  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose 

separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with 

any resultant gain or loss recognised in the CCG’s surplus or deficit for the financial year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest 

payable on the financial liability.
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Notes to the financial statements (cont'd)

1.28.3 Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from 

Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest 

method.

1.29  Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the CCG are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not 

recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. 

Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.30 Foreign Currencies

The CCG’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into 

sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in 

foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are 

recognised in the CCG’s surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.31 Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the CCG has no 

beneficial interest in them.

1.32  Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 

legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared 

with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which 

would have been made good through insurance cover had the CCG not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being 

included as normal revenue expenditure).

The CCG made no losses or special payments in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

1.33 Joint Operations

Joint operations are activities undertaken by the CCG in conjunction with one or more other parties but which are not performed through a 

separate entity. The CCG records its share of the income and expenditure; gains and losses; assets and liabilities; and cash flows.

1.34 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2015-16, all of 

which are subject to consultation:

·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

·                IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement

·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts

·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2015-16, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits -             -             -             -             

Patient transport services -             -             -             -             

Prescription fees and charges -             -             -             -             

Dental fees and charges -             -             -             -             

Education, training and research 155            -             155            24              

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: NHS -             -             -             -             

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS -             -             -             -             

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity -             -             -             -             

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions -             -             -             -             

Non-patient care services to other bodies 3,732         34              3,698         4,593         

Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions -             -             -             -             

Income generation -             -             -             -             

Rental revenue from finance leases -             -             -             -             

Rental revenue from operating leases -             -             -             -             

Other revenue 92              4                88              164            

Total other operating revenue 3,979         38              3,941         4,781         

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare related services.

3 Revenue

All revenue is from the supply of services. The CCG receives no revenue from the sale of goods.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the 

CCG and credited to the General Fund.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2015-16

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 2,645           2,353           292              1,868           1,580           288              777              773              4                 

Social security costs 210              210              -              151              151              -              59               59               -              

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 268              268              -              173              173              -              95               95               -              

Other pension costs -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Other post-employment benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Other employment benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Termination benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,123           2,831           292              2,192           1,904           288              931              927              4                 

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 3,123           2,831           292              2,192           1,904           288              931              927              4                 

Less: Employee costs capitalised -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,123           2,831           292              2,192           1,904           288              931              927              4                 

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2014-15

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 2,090           1,981           109              1,527           1,420           107              563              561              2                 

Social security costs 182              182              -              138              138              -              44               44               -              

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 232              232              -              157              157              -              75               75               -              

Other pension costs -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Other post-employment benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Other employment benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Termination benefits -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Gross employee benefits expenditure 2,504           2,395           109              1,822           1,715           107              682              680              2                 

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 2,504           2,395           109              1,822           1,715           107              682              680              2                 

Less: Employee costs capitalised -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 2,504           2,395           109              1,822           1,715           107              682              680              2                 

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

The CCG made no recoveries in respect of employee benefits in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

Total Admin Programme

Total Admin Programme
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4.2 Average number of people employed

2014-15

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Total 55 51 4 47

Of the above:

Number of whole time equivalent people engaged 

on capital projects 0 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements

2015-16 2014-15

Number Number

Total Days Lost 581               205

Total Staff Years 53                 43

Average working Days Lost 11.0              4.8

The CCG had one member of staff on long term sickness absence during 2015-16.

2015-16 2014-15

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 0

£000 £000

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 0

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

No exit packages or severance payments were agreed by the CCG in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

2015-16

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme. Where the CCG agrees early retirements, the additional 

costs are met by the CCG and not by the NHS Pension Scheme.
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4.5 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these 

provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.

The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 

direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS 

bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.

Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of 

participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.

The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every year. 

An outline of these follows:

4.5.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the Scheme (taking into account its 

recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last 

such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2012 and covered the period from 1 April 

2008 to that date. Details can be found on the pension scheme website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 

For 2015-16, employers’ contributions of £323,760 were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2014-15: £233,057) were payable to 

the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 14.3% of pensionable pay.  The scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually 

every four years and now based on HMT Valuation Directions, following a full scheme valuation.  The latest review used data from 31 

March 2012 and was published on the Government website on 9 June 2014. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 

4.1.1. 
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5. Operating expenses

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Gross employee benefits

Employee benefits excluding governing body members 2,871                  1,940        931                      2,251                  

Executive governing body members 252                    252           -                       253                    

Total gross employee benefits 3,123                  2,192        931                      2,504                  

Other costs

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 1,770                  907           863                      1,907                  

Services from foundation trusts 72,380                28             72,352                 60,541                

Services from other NHS trusts 121,927              104           121,823                135,481              

Services from other NHS bodies 55                      -            55                        -                     

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 43,859                -            43,859                 33,329                

Chair and Non Executive Members 350                    350           -                       556                    

Supplies and services – clinical 92                      -            92                        132                    

Supplies and services – general 100                    35             65                        67                      

Consultancy services 71                      42             29                        27                      

Establishment 395                    174           221                      349                    

Transport 3                        2              1                         7                        

Premises 1,773                  188           1,585                   961                    

Impairments and reversals of receivables -                     -            -                       -                     

Inventories written down -                     -            -                       -                     

Depreciation 2                        2              -                       76                      

Amortisation -                     -            -                       -                     

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment -                     -            -                       -                     

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets -                     -            -                       -                     

Impairments and reversals of financial assets -                     -            -                       -                     

·          Assets carried at amortised cost -                     -            -                       -                     

·          Assets carried at cost -                     -            -                       -                     

·          Available for sale financial assets -                     -            -                       -                     

Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale -                     -            -                       -                     

Impairments and reversals of investment properties -                     -            -                       -                     

Audit fees 59                      59             -                       78                      

Other non statutory audit expenditure -                     

·          Internal audit services -                     -            -                       -                     

·          Other services -                     -            -                       -                     

General dental services and personal dental services -                     -            -                       -                     

Prescribing costs 39,706                -            39,706                 38,518                

Pharmaceutical services -                     -            -                       -                     

General ophthalmic services -                     -            -                       -                     

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 27,650                -            27,650                 3,298                  

Other professional fees excl. audit 147                    16             131                      49                      

Grants to other public bodies 1,811                  -            1,811                   2,178                  

Clinical negligence -                     -            -                       -                     

Research and development (excluding staff costs) -                     -            -                       -                     

Education and training 37                      25             12                        65                      

Change in discount rate -                     -            -                       -                     

Provisions -                     -            -                       -                     

Funding to group bodies -            -                       -                     

CHC Risk Pool contributions 560                    -            560                      392                    

Other expenditure 102                    -            102                      100                    

Total other costs 312,849              1,932        310,917                278,111              

Total operating expenses 315,972              4,124        311,848                280,615              

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
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6.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15

Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 4,721         50,968       5,103         41,741        

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 4,586         50,772       4,773         40,675        

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 97.14% 99.62% 93.53% 97.45%

NHS Payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 2,074         197,246     1,907         198,787       

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,037         197,203     1,692         196,697       

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 98.22% 99.98% 88.73% 98.95%

The CCG met the 95% target in all areas for 2015-16.

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

7 Income Generation Activities

The CCG had no income generation activities in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

8. Investment revenue

The CCG had no investment revenue in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

9. Other gains and losses

The CCG had no other gains and losses in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

10. Finance costs

The CCG had no finance costs in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

11. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

The CCG had no net gains and losses on transfer by absorption in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid 

invoice, whichever is later, with a target performance of 95%.

The CCG did not make any payments under the provisions of the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 in the financial year 

2015-16 (2014-15: nil).
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12. Operating Leases

12.1 As lessee

The CCG has one operating lease agreement in place with St Helens Chamber for the lease of the CCG's HQ accommodation.

The CCG also occupies property owned and managed by Community Health Partnerships Ltd 

12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments -                 1,734             10                  1,744             -         926         10          936        

Contingent rents -                 -                 -                 -                 -         -          -         -         

Sub-lease payments -                 -                 -                 -                 -         -          -         -         

Total -                 1,734             10                  1,744             -         926         10          936        

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payable:

No later than one year -                 131                8                    139                -         132         10          142        

Between one and five years -                 131                2                    133                -         262         7            269        

After five years -                 -                 -                 -                 -         -          -         -         

Total -                 262                10                  272                -         394         17          411        

The lease term is from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2018 and therefore has a maximum of 2 years remaining with a minimum lease payment of £262,536 should the CCG 

continue to the end of the lease.

Whilst the CCG's arrangements with Community Health Partnerships Ltd and NHS Property Services Ltd fall within the definition of operating leases, the rental charge for 

future years, including any charge for void space, has not yet been agreed. Consequently, note 12.1.2 does not include future minimum lease payments for these 

arrangements

2015-16 2014-15

2015-16 2014-15
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13 Property, plant and equipment

2015-16

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation as at 1 April 2015 16              167             183             

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account -             -             -             

Additions purchased -             -             -             

Additions donated -             -             -             

Additions government granted -             -             -             

Additions leased -             -             -             

Reclassifications -             -             -             

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -             -             -             

Disposals other than by sale -             (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains -             -             -             

Impairments charged -             -             -             

Reversal of impairments -             -             -             

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -             -             -             

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation -             -             -             

Cost or Valuation as at 31 March 2016 16              -             16              

Depreciation as at 1 April 2015 3                167             170             

Reclassifications -             -             -             

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -             -             -             

Disposals other than by sale -             (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains -             -             -             

Impairments charged -             -             -             

Reversal of impairments -             -             -             

Charged during the year 2                -             2                

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -             -             -             

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation -             -             -             

Depreciation as at 31 March 2016 5                -             5                

Net Book Value as at 31 March 2016 11              -             11              

Purchased 11              -             11              

Donated -             -             -             

Government Granted -             -             -             

Total as at 31 March 2016 11              -             11              

Asset financing:

Owned 11              -             11              

Held on finance lease -             -             -             

On-SOFP Lift contracts -             -             -             

PFI residual: interests -             -             -             

Total as at 31 March 2016 11              -             11              

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£000's £000's £000's

Balance as at 1 April 2015 -             -             -             

Revaluation gains -             -             -             

Impairments -             -             -             

Release to general fund -             -             -             

Other movements -             -             -             

As at 31 March 2016 -             -             -             
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13 Property, plant and equipment (cont.)

2014-15

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation as at 1 April 2014 16              167             183             

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account -             -              -             

Additions purchased -             -              -             

Additions donated -             -              -             

Additions government granted -             -              -             

Additions leased -             -              -             

Reclassifications -             -              -             

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -             -              -             

Disposals other than by sale -             -              -             

Upward revaluation gains -             -              -             

Impairments charged -             -              -             

Reversal of impairments -             -              -             

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -             -              -             

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation -             -              -             

Cost or Valuation as at 31 March 2015 16              167             183             

Depreciation as at 1 April 2014 2                92               94              

Reclassifications -             -              -             

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -             -              -             

Disposals other than by sale -             -              -             

Upward revaluation gains -             -              -             

Impairments charged -             -              -             

Reversal of impairments -             -              -             

Charged during the year 1                75               76              

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -             -              -             

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation -             -              -             

Depreciation as at 31 March 2015 3                167             170             

Net Book Value as at 31 March 2015 13              -              13              

Purchased 13              -              13              

Donated -             -              -             

Government Granted -             -              -             

Total as at 31 March 2015 13              -              13              

Asset financing:

Owned 13              -              13              

Held on finance lease -             -              -             

On-SOFP Lift contracts -             -              -             

PFI residual: interests -             -              -             

Total as at 31 March 2015 13              -              13              

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£000's £000's £000's

Balance as at 1 April 2014 -             -              -             

Revaluation gains -             -              -             

Impairments -             -              -             

Release to general fund -             -              -             

Other movements -             -              -             

As at 31 March 2015 -             -              -             
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13 Property, plant and equipment cont'd

13.1 Additions to assets under construction

The CCG had no assets under construction as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

13.2 Donated assets

The CCG received no donated assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

13.3 Government granted assets

The CCG had no government granted assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

13.4 Property revaluation

13.5 Compensation from third parties

13.6 Write downs to recoverable amount

13.7 Temporarily idle assets

The CCG had no temporarily idle assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

13.8 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The CCG had no fully depreciated assets still in use as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

13.9 Economic lives

Buildings excluding dwellings 0 0

Dwellings 0 0

Plant & machinery 8 8

Transport equipment 0 0

Information technology 0 0

Furniture & fittings 0 0

14 Intangible non-current assets

The CCG had no intangible non-current assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

15 Investment property

The CCG had no investment property as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

16 Inventories

The CCG had no inventories as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

The CCG had no property as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil) and therefore there has not been any 

property revaluation in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

There has been no compensation received from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: 

nil).

There have been no assets written down to recoverable amounts and no reversals of previous write-downs in the financial year 2015-16 

(2014-15: nil).

Minimum 

Life (years)

Maximum 

Life (Years)
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17  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables: Revenue 2,865                -                     830                 -                      

NHS receivables: Capital -                   -                     -                 -                      

NHS prepayments -                   -                     -                 -                      

NHS accrued income 1,864                -                     1,185              -                      

Non-NHS receivables: Revenue 439                  -                     172                 -                      

Non-NHS receivables: Capital -                   -                     -                 -                      

Non-NHS prepayments 62                    -                     -                 -                      

Non-NHS accrued income 53                    -                     95                  -                      

Provision for the impairment of receivables -                   -                     -                 -                      

VAT 4                      -                     5                    -                      

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership 

arrangement prepayments and accrued income -                   -                     -                 -                      

Interest receivables -                   -                     -                 -                      

Finance lease receivables -                   -                     -                 -                      

Operating lease receivables -                   -                     -                 -                      

Other receivables 1,047                -                     688                 -                      

Total Trade & other receivables 6,334                -                     2,975              -                      

Total current and non current 6,334 2,975

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£000 £000

By up to three months 145 141

By three to six months 13 39

By more than six months 43 107

Total 201 287

£12,799 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

The CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables

18 Other financial assets

The CCG had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

19 Other current assets

The CCG had no other current assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

The CCG conducted an impairment review of all receivables as at 31 March 2016.

The majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to CCGs to commission services, 

no credit scoring of them is considered necessary. 

The CCG does not have any provision for impairment of receivables as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil) as it believes the credit quality 

of all receivables to be sufficient that no provision for impairment is required.
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

2015-16 2014-15

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 20 33

Net change in year 20 (13)

Balance at 31 March 40 20

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 40               19           

Cash with Commercial banks -              -          

Cash in hand -              1             

Current investments -              -          

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 40               20           

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service -              -          

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks -              -          

Total bank overdrafts -              -          

Balance as at 31 March 40               20           

Patients’ money held by the CCG, not included above -              -          

21 Non-current assets held for sale

22 Analysis of impairments and reversals

The CCG had no impairments or reversals of impairments recognised in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).
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Current Non-current Current Non-current

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest payable -                 -                 -                -                

NHS payables: revenue 1,003              -                 783                -                

NHS payables: capital -                 -                 -                -                

NHS accruals 1,046              -                 1,337             -                

NHS deferred income -                 -                 -                -                

Non-NHS payables: revenue 794                 -                 1,006             -                

Non-NHS payables: capital -                 -                 -                -                

Non-NHS accruals 9,578              -                 7,021             -                

Non-NHS deferred income -                 -                 -                -                

Social security costs 35                  -                 35                 -                

VAT -                 -                 -                -                

Tax 35                  -                 41                 -                

Payments received on account -                 -                 -                -                

Other payables 1,342              -                 1,394             -                

Total Trade & Other Payables 13,833            -                 11,617           -                

Total current and non-current 13,833            11,617           

Other payables include £47,703 outstanding pension contributions as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: £36,421)

24 Other financial liabilities

The CCG had no other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

25 Other liabilities

The CCG had no other liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

26 Borrowings

The CCG had no borrowings as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

27 Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

The CCG had no private finance initiatives, LIFT or other service concession arrangements as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

28 Finance lease obligations

The CCG had no finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

29 Finance lease receivables

The CCG had no finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

30   Provisions

31 Contingencies

The CCG had no contingencies as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

32. Commitments

The CCG had no capital or other financial commitments as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

23 Trade and other payables

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities in 

relation to CHC Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before the establishment of the CCG. However, the legal liability 

remains with the CCG. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf of the 

CCG as at 31 March 2016 was £0.40 million (31 March 2015: £1.46 million).
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33 Financial instruments

33.1 Financial risk management

33.1.1 Currency risk

33.1.2 Interest rate risk

33.1.3 Credit risk

33.1.3 Liquidity risk

The CCG borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. The borrowings are for 1 

to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the 

loan. The CCG therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the CCG revenue comes parliamentary funding the CCG has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum 

exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The CCG is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted annually by 

Parliament. The CCG draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The CCG is not, therefore, exposed to significant 

liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because the CCG is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. 

Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which 

the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The CCG has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and 

liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the CCG in undertaking its 

activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the CCG standing 

financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the CCG and internal auditors.

The CCG is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling 

based. The CCG has no overseas operations. The CCG therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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33 Financial instruments cont'd

33.2 Financial assets

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -                       -                   -                   -                  

Receivables:

·          NHS -                       4,729 -                   4,729

·          Non-NHS -                       492 -                   492

Cash at bank and in hand -                       40 -                   40

Other financial assets -                       1,047 -                   1,047

Total as at 31 March 2016 -                       6,308 -                   6,308

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’

Loans and 

Receivables Available for Sale Total

31 March 2015 31 March 2015 31 March 2015 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -                       -                   -                   -                  

Receivables:

·          NHS -                       830 -                   830

·          Non-NHS -                       172 -                   172

Cash at bank and in hand -                       20 -                   20

Other financial assets -                       688 -                   688

Total as at 31 March 2015 -                       1,710 -                   1,710

33.3 Financial liabilities

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’ Other Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -                       -                   -                   

Payables:

·          NHS -                       2,049 2,049

·          Non-NHS -                       11,714 11,714

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations -                       -                   -                   

Other borrowings -                       -                   -                   

Other financial liabilities -                       -                   -                   

Total as at 31 March 2016 -                       13,763 13,763

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’ Other Total

31 March 2015 31 March 2015 31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -                       -                   -                   

Payables:

·          NHS -                       2,120 2,120                

·          Non-NHS -                       9,421 9,421                

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations -                       -                   -                   

Other borrowings -                       -                   -                   

Other financial liabilities -                       -                   -                   

Total as at 31 March 2015 -                       11,541 11,541              



 

123 
 

 

 

  

NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

34 Operating segments

The CCG considers that it only has one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services.

35 Pooled budgets

2015-16 2014-15

£000 £000

Income 31,112 12,921

Expenditure (31,979) (12,853)

36 NHS Lift investments

The CCG had no LIFT investments as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

The CCG's share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year was:

 The CCG and Local Authority have pooled budgets for the majority of Continuing Health Care (CHC) and share financial risk on the 

pooled fund with the CCG contributing £16.9 million of the total pooled amount of £24.2 million. CHC is hosted and managed by the 

Local Authority including the assessment and management of cases. The Pooled budget for the Better Care Fund is £15.8 million 

with the CCG contributing £14.2 million.



 

124 
 

  

NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

37 Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

2015-16

Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due from 

Related Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is 

Park House Surgery as partner in the practice 1,093 0 87 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is 

St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS 

Halton CCG as Chief Finance Officer 154 (118) 38 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS 

Knowsley CCG as Chief Finance Officer 332 (20) 85 0

Professor Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive:  Related 

party is Spinney Medical Centre as partner in the practice 955 0 38 0

Professor Stephen Cox - Chief Clinical Officer:  Related party is 

St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related 

party is Central Surgery as a partner in the practice 994 0 191 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related 

party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Mill 

Street Medical Centre as partner in the practice 1,359 0 0 (77)

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Aspect Health as Director 24 0 0 0

Liz Gaulton - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Council as Director of Public Health 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Dr Robert Hirst - GP Tutor:  Related Party is Haydock Medical 

Centre as partner in the practice 932 0 58 0

Dr John Holden - GP:  Related Party is Garswood Surgery as 

partner in the practice 829 0 241 0

Dr John Holden - GP:  Related Party is Aspect Health as 

director 24 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Council as Director of 

Policy 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Citizens Advice 

Bureau as Board Member 159 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Coalition for Disabled 

People, spouse is Chief Executive 29 0 2 0

Dr Debra King - Governing Body Member: Related party is 

Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Financial Trust as 

employee 186 0 9 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Crossroads Surgery as partner in practice 454 0 11 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Rota as practitioner for Acute Visiting Scheme 907 0 0 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Newholme Surgery as partner in practice 642 0 158 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Patterdale Lodge Medical Services Ltd as a partner in the 

practice 1,596 0 58 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Part is St 

Helens Council as Director of Adult Social Care & Health 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Halton and St Helens Voluntary and Community Association 

as representative on the board 57 0 10 0

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is 

Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust as employee. 598 0 0 0

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government 

bodies. Most of these transactions have been with St Helens Council.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. In the financial year 2015-16 the CCG has had a significant number of material 

transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. These entities are:

• NHS England (including NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning Support Unit, NHS Arden & Greater East Midlands Commissioning 

Support Unit and NHS Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit)
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37 Related party transactions (cont'd)

2014-15

Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due from 

Related Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Geoffrey Appleton - Chair: Related party is Liverpool Heart and 

Chest NHS Foundation Trust as Deputy Chair (related party for 

the period 01/10/14 to 30/10/14) 73 0 0 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is 

Park House Surgery as partner in the practice 121 0 0 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is 

St Helens Rota as member 1,050 0 0 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS 

Halton CCG as Chief Finance Officer 111 (280) 13 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS 

Knowsley CCG as Chief Finance Officer 323 (806) 0 (12)

Professor Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive:  Related 

party is Spinney Medical Centre as partner in the practice 116 0 0 0

Professor Stephen Cox - Chief Clinical Officer:  Related party is 

St Helens Rota as member 1,050 0 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related 

party is Central Surgery as a partner in the practice 108 0 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related 

party is St Helens Rota as member 1,050 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Mill 

Street Medical Centre as partner in the practice 139 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Aspect Health as Director 33 0 0 0

Liz Gaulton - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Council as Director of Public Health 19,310 (706) 313 (68)

Dr Robert Hirst - GP Tutor:  Related Party is Haydock Medical 

Centre as partner in the practice 115 0 0 0

Dr John Holden - GP:  Related Party is Aspect Health as 

director 33 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Council as Director of 

Policy 19,310 (706) 313 (68)

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Citizens Advice 

Bureau as Board Member 164 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance 

Committee:  Related Party is St Helens Coalition for Disabled 

People, spouse is Chief Executive 29 0 0 0

Dr Shikha Pitalia - Governing Body Member: Related party is 

Director of SSP Health (related party for the period 01/04/14 to 

31/08/14) 17 0 0 0

Dr Shikha Pitalia - Governing Body Member: Related party is 

Bowrey Medical Centre as partner in the practice (related party 

for the period 01/04/14 to 31/08/14) 21 0 0 0

Dr Shikha Pitalia - Governing Body Member: Related party is 

St Helens Rota as member (related party for the period 

01/04/14 to 31/08/14) 381 0 0 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Crossroads Surgery as partner in practice 57 0 0 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Rota as practitioner for Acute Visiting Scheme 1,050 0 0 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Newholme Surgery as partner in practice 71 0 0 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

St Helens Rota as member 1,050 0 0 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

Patterdale Lodge Medical Services Ltd as a partner in the 

practice 235 0 0 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is 

St Helens Rota as member 1,050 0 0 0

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St 

Helens Council as Director Adult Social Care & Health 19,310 (706) 313 (68)

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Part is Halton 

and St Helens Voluntary and Community Association as 

representitive on the board 44 0 0 0

• NHS England (including Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning Support Unit)

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. In the financial year 2014-15 the CCG has had a significant number of material 

transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. These entities are:

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government 

bodies. Most of these transactions have been with St Helens Council.
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38 Events after the end of the reporting period

39 Losses and special payments

The CCG had no losses or special payments in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

40 Third party assets

The CCG held no third party assets as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

41 Financial performance targets

The CCG has a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The CCG's performance against those duties was as follows:

2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15

Section Duty Maximum Performance Maximum Performance

£000 £000 £000 £000

223H(1)* Expenditure not to exceed income 316,071 315,972 283,365 280,615

223I(2)

Capital resource use does not 

exceed the amount specified in 

Directions -               -                -                -                

223I(3)

Revenue resource use does not 

exceed the amount specified in 

Directions 312,092 311,993 278,584 275,834

223J(1)

Capital resource use on specified 

matter(s) does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions -               -                -                -                

223J(2)

Revenue resource use on specified 

matter(s) does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions -               -                -                -                

223J(3)

Revenue administration resource use 

does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 4,264 4,086 4,992 4,468

All duties were achieved for the financial years 2015-2016 and 2014-2015.

42 Impact of IFRS

Accounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the CCG in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

43 Analysis of charitable reserves

The CCG held no charitable reserves in the financial year 2015-16 (2014-15: nil).

There are no events after the end of the reporting period that require disclosure.

*Note: For the purposes of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross expenditure on revenue and 

capital in the financial year; and, income is defined as the aggregate of the notified maximum revenue resource, 

notified capital resource and all other amounts accounted as receiveable in the financial year (whether under provisions 

of the Act or from other sources, and included here on a gross basis).


